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The cover for this year's Annual Report features one of nine bonsai trees we have planted around UOB Plaza in Singapore since
2024. Specially incorporated into our office landscape, these living works of art add a touch of nature to the heart of the Central
Business District, allowing visitors to appreciate their beauty in this urban oasis.

Bonsai trees require meticulous nurturing over many years to achieve their optimal form. Cultivating bonsai trees involves
discipline and perseverance. With the right maintenance and care, bonsai trees with their strong foundations can flourish
for generations.

The qualities associated with the art of bonsai reflect UOB's unique culture and values. Anchored by a strong foundation, together
with careful nurturing and a long-term view to investing, UOB has grown over 90 years into a leading bank in the region with one

of the largest footprint in Southeast Asia.

Our culture and values will continue to guide us as we work towards our purpose of building the future of ASEAN.
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UOB is a leading bank in Asia. Operating through our
head office in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in
China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam,
we have a global network of more than 470 branches
and offices in 19 markets in Asia Pacific, Europe and

B1935F M I LUK, KERTTIET B S R EM—RTIAIREZIL
1T R BT Ro NS RERITRIFHERTARRITZ— 118
BT “Aal” IR, IS EFRMTRMBEDFIA T “AA-" L,

AR ECOFR, KEERITIHAURF PO, UEIEKIZME
7B, SEHE#, BETEY, WEFRAHEN—, EFHEH,
RERTEETRERBRINS S HE, HEBER N AM B
BISEIF R Ko

KRB E— eI I SMLE, RERITEB B AR HRET
THE B BIEN A Z AR, AERTES SR IR
FRERMAEEE R, NEE S ERIIRS FRMERTS %=,

RERTENDFHRB U ATRRARE, FIRRIEH# L S
HEd, NIRRT, LR FTRIE K. KEERITREM
MEARNERRSIN, BEFBUHSHFEAN ) LENHEN

Since our incorporation in 1935, we have grown organically
and through a series of strategic acquisitions. Today, we
are rated among the world's top banks: Aa1 by Moody's
Investors Service and AA- by both S&P Global Ratings
and Fitch Ratings.

For the last nine decades, we have adopted a customer-
centric approach to create long-term value by staying
relevant through our enterprising spirit and doing right
by our customers. We are focused on building the future
of ASEAN - for the people and businesses within, and
connecting with, ASEAN.

We connect businesses to opportunities in the region with
our unparalleled regional footprint, leverage data and
insights to innovate and to create personalised banking
experiences and solutions catering to each customer's

North America. unique needs and evolving preferences.

KR, BT KM AR K 77 R I — BRI,

We are also committed to helping businesses forge a
- 3‘ ﬁ{\]mﬂkﬂ sustainable future by fostering social inclusiveness, creating
: [JRYUESS positive environmental impact and pursuing economic
el ".jl SEE LT G P o o ~ progress. We believe in being a responsible financial
— ERIN N LB | RERITEIERATERITU S RENURITIRS REEEMK  services provider. We are steadfast in our support of art,
= o WL B IL . J e 2 il ) ) ' ' ER= MO SE], ERIEHEEMNRRARSS X BET  children and education, and doing right by our communities
ﬂ y e " e e _ _ = . ANER1T FAASRTT. B ERTT BAVRITANAGERITARSS . 8 E  and stakeholders.
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ALl T L e o | 2 - : : .
e / st ) mp j e i ) - . = 1|1 B ‘ UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally

through our three core business segments - Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Group Global Markets.
Our range of services cover our customers' needs across
consumer banking, private banking, commercial banking,
corporate banking and institutional banking. Through our
subsidiaries, we also provide asset management, private
equity fund management and insurance services, among
others.
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About UOB China

RERITHENA
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2015 ERERITEARMAERITHEEME LSS 25 2T AR, HTF
2022 FEMBIEE 20 2Tt ARM. B, KERITHE S EM RS A
B 7512 AR™, GEMSENREE A TR, FIHIE AAA Ko

ER—HKFZ AR ERARS AL, HAB DA AMEBXHNEEFR
X HEHRAEEERIEREE. Hl I AN ES I SE K, Rt
BEFABMEZAR) LENMHE AT T ZL R,

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB China)
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of UOB, a leading
bank in Asia. UOB China is headquartered in
Shanghai and was incorporated in the People's
Republic of China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have grown
our network to 16 branches and sub-branches in major Chinese cities.

UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB China by RMB2.5
billion in 2015 followed by another capital injection of RMB2 billion
in 2022. UOB China's current registered capital is RMB7.5 billion and
the Bank is rated ‘A" by Fitch Ratings and 'AAA' by China Cheng Xin
International.

We believe in being a responsible financial services provider and we
are committed to making a difference in the lives of our stakeholders
and in the communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated
to helping our clients grow their businesses, UOB China is steadfast
in our support of social development, particularly in the areas of
art, children and education.
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I Financial Highlights

FEWSER

Chairman’s Statement I

EERKHEH
2024 F BRI SR ERKI—F,
WERARNBRERNXEZF,

2024 is a year of challenge,
transformation and legacy.

2024 2023 Increase
(Decrease)
ZEBR Operating result ARMFIT RMB'000 %
EWRANET Total operating income 1,802,980 1,887,133 (4.5)
ElrEER Total operating expenses 1,228,332 1,244,535 (1.3)
RFERERK Impairment charges 257,343 160,610 60.2
A NpINES Profit before tax 316,911 481,162 (34.1)
B Balance sheet AE™TF 7T RMB'000 %
AR Total assets 89,247,101 82,280,883 8.5
S5 HERR Financial indicators % % %
BRI Return on equity 2.2 3.6 (1.4)
BRI Return on average total assets 0.3 0.5 (0.2)
52N N1 Expenses/income ratio 67.2 65.0 2.2
FEBERMEEBNLE RN Net fee and commission income/ 8.5 8.4 0.1
total operating income

ex{nd Loan-to-deposit ratio 86.3 83.5 2.8
TIFFE Leverage ratio 9.2 9.5 (0.3)
TREME Non-performing loan ratio 1.4 0.7 0.7
KEBEEX Non-performing loan coverage ratio 168.6 339.5 (170.9)
BIFIR &R Provision-to-loan ratio 2.4 2.5 (0.1)
P UiES Liquidity matching ratio 137.8 134.4 34
BRI R TR High-quality liquid asset adequacy ratio 206.7 205.4 1.3
RARTEREIEIR Capital adequacy ratio

BO—RERTRE Core Tier 1 CAR 15.9 16.3 (0.4)

—RABRKRTEE Tier 1 CAR 15.9 16.3 (0.4)

BEFER Total CAR 16.6 18.9 (2.3)

10 KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

X—F, RESIKAEMEFMMEBUENARE MFEEFE, &
1 EEFRE S RBEIRE R AR RIS K. PES
FRERAR SEE699H 27T, FLLIEK%. FE-REEHRES
X3 OhRFAFKFIERNELE R, AR IDETNITF2025FEE,

X—5, F{IRR T RERITRAPERMHIHE40EF, Fid
H—RIENER T KERTSPERSA ], BhHEERER
REREN, 553 TMHXKHBEITHEE &S,

2025%, KERITERIMDERIO B FER A — KW R E2F, K
ERITER R ANILNRIT L AR, HNNEFPEHZRIK
iR, CHEFESFBEREENEBIRIBHE
REBMAPEXBVRITMBHENE, ZNLERNFREGE—
ENEIR R ZRIT

A 55 Ak SR $FFHD 1%

20245, REFFZEWESEOFF BUNEL, FATEUNT
RETEARMISIZITL L, 5 Mg #EFE U SRIE LI K4.3%,

BT HREL/IMETET3%EART12.3127T, HEBRER N
RIATE R TFRITMATARAEHNRENE, EARE
BEREREAART?673.3F 7T, #MSHH/EAFEE L T
36%, W AKRM2.3127T0

Amid the ongoing macroeconomic and geopolitical
uncertainties, we saw strong momentum in China-ASEAN
cross-border trade and investment. Bilateral trade volume
between China and ASEAN grew 9 per cent year on year to
reach RMB6.99 trillion. China and ASEAN have substantially
concluded the ASEAN-China Free Trade Area (ACFTA) 3.0
upgrade negotiations with the upgraded agreement set to
be signed in 2025.

This year, we celebrated our 40t anniversary in mainland China
and reaffirmed our commitment to Chinag, to help businesses
to connect with ASEAN, and to do right by our customers and

communities through a series of events and programmes.

2025 marks 90 years of growth for UOB- from a single branch
to a leading bank in Asia. We are in China for the long term
and are confident in the country’s prospects, especially its
connectivity with ASEAN. Tapping banking supply chains within
ASEAN and Greater China, UOB sets our ambition to be the

number one cross-border trade bank in ASEAN.
Resilient financial performance

In 2024, our operating income held steady at RMB1.8 billion
despite lower interest income due to a dip in net interest
margin, while trading and investment income remained robust

and grew 4.3 per cent.

Total operating expenses were 1.3 per cent lower at RMB1.2
billion, mainly from lower staff costs. Impairment charges rose
RMB96.7 million due to non-performing loan (NPL) disposals,
which resulted in a 36 per cent decrease in net profit after
tax to RMB232.7 million.
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I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

2024F R, WARMENARTH374.8127%, FRMENART
433.41270, FREREN.4%.

B1E2024F 128318, RITRFBREFNAZSIRRM R EK
T, Rt LR RMABOREE R = TR X 75 7137.8%
206.7%, LB &R EEE K,

ROHZO— KRBTSR ERMEERTEERDF/915.9%H
16.6%, i TRIKEEE R,

RERITFENGAV SENREEAHTR, FHIEAAA K
BEF WA KIS

20245, RERITRUENS QLS EAL REFKITT ZHLSH
% 2REBE IWREF WS T ARSI —F T
RN EEIET S, F B FRA BT RARBE 5569
BEIERIT. Rt R BRI R Z WS, FITE N ERE R
BEEIRLENE, ERERIMNIREILS,

=P BRENQWS, KERTHFESERE—RITEXE
EI BRI D ASRE, HlTFALE " BEERER"
5 RS8R R MASRIRFESEL 7, FR T Bt
XHRKEAR K.

EREITEATI S AENEREHE, KERTHSFEERS
ZleHZERR. LBIRBEFLRE (&R BRAR. LEEER
BAEZRE. EMANRENELTEEZESFESR, Bk
AP &R SRR, NEIRR S SR A AN REESER,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Loans stood at RMB37.5 billion and deposits were RMB43.3
billion as at 31 December 2024. NPL ratio was 1.4 per cent.

As at 31 December 2024, our liquidity and funding positions
remained healthy with liquidity matching ratio at 137.8 per
cent and high-quality liquid asset adequacy ratio at 2068.7 per

cent, both well above the minimum regulatory requirements.

Our common equity tier 1 and total capital adequacy ratios
were 15.9 per cent and 16.6 per cent respectively, also above

the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China Chengxin

International Credit Rating.

Partnering Businesses to Unlock Growth
Opportunities

In 2024, UOB deepened our Wholesale Banking focus,
anchored on our footprint, coverage, sector expertise and
integrated supply chain platform. With ASEAN's most extensive
trade network, we are well placed to connect our clients
across borders to capture business growth opportunities

and expansion in ASEAN and beyond.

To sharpen focus on our Wholesale Banking business, UOB
China signed an agreement to transfer the retail portfolio
to Fubon Bank (China) Ltd. The Bank will continue to double
down on two strategic areas: connectivity and sustainability,
to enable us to grow for the long term together with the

people, businesses and communities.

As part of our business commitment, we also signed multiple
memoranda of understanding with businesses, financial
institutions and trade associations such as the China Council
for the Promotion of International Trade, Shanghai Lingang
Economic Development (Group) Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Gold
Exchange, to explore growth opportunities and facilitate

cross-border trade and investment flow.

FITBER U ARRN PE-FRBENRAAS N, BPHSRE
FEXE. Bt EIRBIR RS RNE, RIS ER N
AEPEPRUEE BT R ER P SR LRMARX K
BB, HIT AT E "R —uAz0" ARSS HHE L R1TE)
MR ERSEAL S,

WA R A R

RERITEIRERE IR BNERBRL R, SEF A
SRIREXT, OB PRI R R,

20245, HATRM AR BERR R BB F AR LE
BRIEWFTRNE P ERIR GRS PRSI 7 2.
W, FITRU SRR E SRS RS REBNGE NHE
IR AR AR TS 5 RBIFRATINASY 2 RAPE AT EE
RAERIER RIS, B ERRAE . AT T ERH
sl AT A R RIS AR IS (R,

EHEBEF U A R S R RIER, FHITHEL:
BHRL B SN, 2024F 118, KERITHE S
AE—RERTREND BN ATE EXNHMN & B X2
LERETRNE A TRAFSEFHOAAALRIE,
FREENSHTRE, S50 R,

Our award-winning China-ASEAN cross-border cash sweeping
solutions helped clients manage fund flows efficiently across
regions and currencies. To better meet clients’ foreign exchange
and interest rate hedging needs, we also enhanced our ASEAN
Currency One-Stop Service and launched standard bond

forward trading in the interbank bond market.
Driving towards a Sustainable Future

UOB supports our customers in their sustainability journeys
by providing sector-specific solutions and collaborating with

ecosystem partners to build a more sustainable future.

In 2024, we provided green and sustainability-linked financing
to clients across various industries, including renewable
energy, green transportation and infrastructure as well as
green manufacturing. For example, we deepened partnership
with a large-scale clean energy integrated service provider to
provide financing solutions for its cross-border procurement.
We also stepped up support for leading Chinese electrical
vehicle manufacturers in expanding into ASEAN markets. We
also supported the issuance of the first sustainability-linked

panda bond issued by a Singapore company.

Besides assisting clients in advancing business sustainably,
we continually strive to reduce our own carbon footprint.
In November 2024, UOB Plaza, our Head Office building in
Shanghai became the first Grade-A commercial building -
out of more than 200 office buildings in Lujiazui Financial
City - equipped with distributed photovoltaic (PV) panels.
These PV panels generate around 150,000 kilowatt hours
of green electricity annually, reducing carbon emissions by

150 tonnes per year.
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I Chairman’s Statement

EERKNH

SHEXHEEHR

RIERITRET T THERN LIERBENRR, Fh@Ed il
EEERRTERED, KRN KHERRARBEE,

o FATUSFAEIBMEMRETERIRERB. EAMEE
IF, HEZE5 T “RERTE O L= XTHEMAmINE,
NBRTAXFN AR I EEBARTS0H TER;

o BRITASEHTM 73,036 NN ARTERIRS, AmER
BRI EFIEKT75%;

« BRITELFLFFENEREFUHSIFIZRERITEIHER
KA B RS (FutureLab), FAERMEL “RERTEREK
FBEARK”, LUSACIFIERIZ R, HERNE XA,
HEBESFRE—ABNZRAT,

EEREI T RERITRN THRENER. EAGEMEN
HRBI RS,

1EF A A7 —The UOB Way

The UOB Way (K2 1E) BEEHRTNEN. RE5ATE
DIERR B AEZR A RISS T, RITE N ARENEE—
MR BN SN BRZIF R,

20245, BATHRSHE S BN R RITRREEITL FM
B, BPRELAeH. ISR R R A THRITEE=
&, #rSE IR TERRE N - KRR EMSIhEEN—I&, 7
BEEIHM T — A USSR IMERN T B =18)o

RS, HJAVBNTIEFERAS, B R TRIEENRASE
5B, BRTHREE A TER AL BY42 [ S AREF o A T RERIIAIRN, AR T
RHEZFISRENE, HMEEER TEN KRR, BiFit
RS TEASEMNIBXRGHIER.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Strengthening Communities

UOB is dedicated to driving meaningful change through
corporate philanthropy and employee volunteerism, focusing

on art, children and education.

*  Nearly 1,000 colleagues, customers and partners from
13 cities where we operate participated in our annual
flagship corporate social responsibility event, the UOB
Global Heartbeat Run/Walk. Together, we raised RMB

500,000 to support our community programmes.

e Qur colleagues contributed 3,036 volunteer hours to a

good cause, marking a 75 per cent year-on-year growth.

*  We supported the Art and Design Education: FutureLab
as the Lead Partner for the fifth consecutive year and
upgraded the UOB Art in Ink Awards to promote cultural
exchange, inspire innovative art practices and discover

more young artistic talents.

These initiatives reflect UOB's long-term commitment to

building a strong and more inclusive society.
Growing Our People - The UOB Way

The UOB Way is a framework that encapsulates UOB's values,
purpose and people philosophy and our commitment to nurturing

an environment where our people feel recognised and valued.

In 2024, we continued to roll out programmes such as Women@
Work and Employee Wellness to help our colleagues pursue
sustainable careers. Our newly-opened Staff Clubhouse on
the third floor of UOB China's headquarters offers colleagues
a networking and collaboration space with green features

and multifunctional facilities.

At the same time, we are committed to nurturing young talents,
reskilling and upskilling our workforce as well as expanding the
breadth of their professional experiences. Through continuous
investment in learning and development, we empower our
people to be future-ready and to serve our customers' and

stakeholders' evolving needs.

Bt

T, ZREBERGPLEEFHEFER B UL R ERITRONE
MEY R ST R R ORSEE RN KPIES S AT, #ohi
1TESEIL BARBYES £ RBRE11T. SN, IR BN 5! Bis S EMERYIR
YEBRERFEAESFRTT, HRDE—BRENMANEST =,

&/E, BRFTE RPN AERITHE T UNGEE, AR5 EH
SHEFHBIERGFRIARRE!

B
EERIRE
2025538
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commitment to UOB's core values. | also extend my gratitude to
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our non-executive and independent director, Mr Wu Yu Hua,
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Mr Chu Yi Yun as a new member of our Board of Directors.

Finally, to our customers, thank you for your trust in UOB China
and | look forward to your continued partnership as we build

a brighter future together.

Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

March 2025
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WBEW— RKEK5H

20245, REARITHELUR# A SS40EF RN, LIBEN—, RESH" A
TR, BE—FIENRRETENEFNNPE-FEERREETER, 5+
ERERA, AEHREFERE, SRIMEEHFBEITRRERRE,

2024 marks the 40t anniversary of UOB China. Under the theme “Right by You for
40 years and beyond’, the Bank rolled out a series of events and programmes to
reaffirm our commitment to Ching, to help businesses to connect with and within

ASEAN, and to do right by customers, colleagues and communities.

FEA0— KERITPEIOFFRRELE

AR EZFNESR

Launched UOB China 40% Anniversary Exhibition and Virtual
Exhibition to showcase four decades of commitment and

growth in China

B REBEERRT
RIEeHmLEE

One Bank for ASEAN
integrated campaign
invites businesses to be
a part of ASEAN's most

extensive trade network

S5F—MEEFASE, HEEL Ll £RK) ZIRE, REVESFESEEFOIEKIEMNMNEREE

Developed 'Leading ASEAN With UOB' series with Yicai Media Group to underpin new growth opportunities

between China and ASEAN

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

EFEEREESZ2MZ T ZEARED,
{RFHIESILZR

Presented various art and cultural
events with our partners to promote

cultural exchange

SR T RIS
¥, E40AEBEH
Different employee
engagement
initiatives to celebrate
our legacy and

meaningful impacts

EENRBIEINFER,
BRETRRHESHRE

Exhibited our milestones and
achievements at leading business

events

HASREEY,
HER3036 NI 2 EBIRS
Special volunteer activities
contributing 3,036 hours to a

good cause
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2024 K512

—A January

RERTSFERERAZRHERS (PE
RER) BB EFET
WHF0NRFEREEBSFESR, T
2014F 2024 FHEETRAERITRE
BERSHPERRESEUSFIARBIRT

UOB renewed Memorandum of Under-
standing (MOU) with the China Council
for the Promotion of International Trade
(CCPIT)

The MOU with first signed in 2012 and
renewed in 2014 and 2024, is CCPIT's first
collaboration with a bank in Southeast Asia

FHR 5 T ARFI T RICARE

ERMIRD PRSI FIMRR”, [T, #ig
“BIC mEA R TFEERGHNE, LUH
BRIMELES

Upgraded flexible benefit Programme
"CARE"

by providing additional HEAL dollars and
adding 'Parkway’ to medical check-up
provider list to better meet personalised
needs

SINPIBRER AL FEEh A
TRAE S TAESRITAS A IMIRRR A KN &

Introduced Career Mobility
Programme

to empower colleagues to gain new
experiences and skills take charge of
their career growth within UOB

=HMarch

FDRBMNSAKEFETZELAHESR
W

LUR R B350 85, MR B KR A
XML FEFS BB EEEINIED

Hosted a roundtable meeting, bringing
together the esteemed Chief Minister
of Johor, Malaysia and C-suite leaders
from prominent Chinese businesses
Marking the 50 anniversary of
China-Malaysia diplomatic ties, the
roundtable aimed to explore market
opportunities and strengthen China-
ASEAN cooperation

ERYIEED T “BEMRE — 2023K%ERIT
FEREKEZRREREFmE

Launched the “The Beauty of Ink- 2023

UOB Art in Ink Campus Edition winning
artworks exhibition” in Shenzhen

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

HFE2024E R SER S (FTIIK) B
ENE~ mmERES

HHH PEEREHRABMENEATNE
NS, KRB SEL RS

Attended 2024 Conference on Inter-
national Industrial Cooperation
(Singapore) and China's Machinery and
Electronics Show

and co-organised the Seminar on the
Investment Environment and Projects
of China’s Key Provinces and Cities
to deepen industrial value chain
cooperation between China and
Singapore

a8 April

TEIN Tk el 2o “SREE R #S M HEH 57
BN RIME BRI RS SERARS
S ELEEREFUHEZEFEESR, )

AINEFRBNZRAZR

Hosted the “Unlocking Opportunities
Across Asia” conference at the China-
Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park
and signed several MOUs with local
partners to further enhance Suzhou's
trade relations with ASEAN

HE2024FH R ILIZER
HEBERRRASRBRIIE NERITH
el & RTR RS =

Attended 2024 Zhongguancun Forum
and presented our solutions to support
technology companies at the Core
Technology Investment and Development
Forum

HAMay

SR FRAENFRRNRE~HERAE
ELHELBR SN
H—PZFHIBRARL T, kY RE
=R IRAE R S

Signed a comprehensive strategic
cooperation agreement with a world'’s
leading stainless and nickel producer
to support client in exploring the ASEAN
markets and expanding its business
network in countries along the Belt and
Road Initiative

7xAJune

ERERELHIRS ERIIMNERTT, SHE
Koo Es gl EiTemARLSSE
HESR

TEAEE “ESHIE”, AP EMARETH

Being the first foreign bank to sign
an MOU with a leading a car original
equipment manufacturer in China

to support its global expansion strategy
and to expand its supply chain ecosystem
in ASEAN

ER(RERITEWVREERAERS2024 (FE
Pt )

BRERTR, DU RKEBIFFRUSE, T
A AR EEE, REDEEINESR
REEE It

Released the UOB Business Outlook
Study 2024 (China Report)

The report indicates that businesses
are optimistic about future growth, with
rising operating costs as the top factor
affecting businesses. ASEAN remains
the preferred destination for businesses
expanding overseas

tHJuly
ELeh-FiNEeESEEERERERE
W, KERITS LBIREEFERE (EH)
BRATRNEERNHEESEFNESR

At the fifth meeting of the Shanghai-
Singapore Comprehensive Cooperation
Council, UOB and Shanghai Lingang
Economic Development (Group) Co., Ltd.
signed an MOU to deepen strategic
cooperation

MAME52024HhEEREEAR, HE
N —H R BEEHREEFILIE
RIDLET ZETIHEASENNEE
5, SHEEEHRFTUBUHRNZETE
ENEEHHIRNES

Participated in China Gold Congress
2024 by organising the sub-forum
themed "Belt and Road" Gold and
Jewellery Cooperation”

Industry leaders and experts exchanged
insights on gold market trends and
challenges with Chinese gold and
jewellery enterprises

EXERATERL - &2
AR TR RMNIMEN T E=IE

Launched the Staff Clubhouse
offering a dedicated space for relaxation,

networking and recovery for our people

J\B August

FREI IR E R RE
FHEREAFIRA NS, A AF RTINS
IR IR MR R gEE A, ARER
ARG R R PR B SR A
SR A BB S IETAE

Upgraded digital banking and trading
system

With the upgrades, our Wholesale
Banking clients can add more recipient
emails for digital banking notifications,
access more financial supply chain
management products and perform
more transactions and activities online

BRED RPERXBAT AR HHE”
ARPLEITISELR TS AT A

Launched the second run of the “Greater
China X-Academy”

to build a robust leadership pipeline in
Greater China

BH—F—ENREA

B AT KEZE AT N ERUE
o, RESFUHIERE, & 52 TR
A AHETR

Hosted the annual Appreciation Month
under the theme of “"Appreciating U the
UOB Way" to encourage colleagues to
actively live the UOB Way and recognise
value heroes around them

7LA September

FRT RITEERITIAT T BT
e

LA g7t B 2 P A8 KPR BRI FR K

Completed the Bank’s first standard
bond forward trading in the interbank
bond market

to better meet customers' needs for risk
hedging and investment demand

BRI R M T ERERTEREHH S

UOB Art Gallery presents 'Rise’, a solo
exhibition by artist Zhang Xiaodong

“RERITE ORI 1I3FHANFR
ETRETINERE. EANSERFSS
XBIEM AT R, AT AT S
W EEBMS0B TTER

Kicked off UOB Heartbeat Run with
activities across 13 cities

Close to 1,000 colleagues, customers
and partners participated in this flagship
event and raised more than RMB500,000
in funds to support the Bank’s community
programmes

SENE AR SERENERAIRIT
£ LIBMTIE 2024 EN - EF SR
RInBREPERERASIE, HIRENB 2
B FENIE

Jointly hosted the Indonesia-China
Business Forum 2024 in Shanghai
with the Indonesian Consul General in
Shanghai and Bank Indonesia
exploring topics on bilateral economic
and trade cooperation as well as new
investment opportunities between
Indonesia and China

+A8 October
RERTESZSRURRLEUSESES
§

O

REBE ST, B AR EARR AR LT

UOB signed MOUs with Shandong-
based leading enterprises
supporting Shandong enterprises in
expanding ASEAN markets and enhancing
regional economic integration

+—H November

2024 “KEESRITERKBERAR ERTE
A5igitolFRFHAEE RS (FutureLab)
MiHIGEE, "M ERRIRFREM

NE MR E A E RS RTEFutureLOb A LEERTT
ZRBEFMAERTERBERES

Six winning artists of the 2024 UOB
Art in Ink Awards (Mainland China)
were unveiled at the Art and Design
Education FutureLab

All of the finalists’ artworks were exhibited
at FutureLab and the UOB Art Gallery.

KERITERE LS SPEERE O
ne

SR ‘hieEFSIREIEL, JEREE
T BT & R S PR EBRE RS

UOB participated in China International
Import Expo for the seventh consecutive
year

and signed an MOU with one of Beijing-
based Chinese "Time-Honoured Brands',
to provide high-quality financial support
to leading businesses in the consumer
goods sector

ZFIRERERRNPEARRITHE,
RERTS LEEERBREESFRRE
—

SR
FREFEARHPRLEFHREERS
B TREWERTHNLERSFIE

UOB signed an MOU with Shanghai
Gold Exchange (SGE)

The MOU is a part of the bilateral
cooperation initiatives agreed by the
People's Bank of China and Monetary
Authority of Singapore at the 20% Joint
Council for Bilateral Cooperation meeting

RERITSS5E " EPEE RN E
LS

LSRR R EEIRIT N ER, BRIALER
TEHMEEEPNXERE

UOB showcased comprehensive
supply chain solutions at the 2" China
International Supply Chain Expo

Under the theme "One Bank for ASEAN",
the Bank demonstrated how it connects
directly to businesses big and small,
across supply chains and sectors, on one
integrated platform

ARERITREDHRNARBBEXHM KB
Xe L BHRXESREE N ATRAES
EFHDHAARIE

UOB Plaza distributed photovoltaic (PV)
project officially put into operation

The Plaza is the first Grade A commercial
buildings equipped with distributed PV
panels in Shanghai Lujiozui Financial City

+_—H December
Rt APEEESHSBERISKEN

Being approved to be an honorary vice
president organisation of the China
Gold Association
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I Awards and Accolades

RERE

2024 Triple A FJ#FEERIR — (M1E) The Triple A Awards 2024 - Sustainable Finance Award - The Asset
RIEMFESIEH RGBSR, hE (ER) Best Sustainability-Linked Loan-NBFI, China onshore
2024FEHRERmITE — (EMNERTR) China Awards 2024 - The Asian Banker
FESEEBRRAEEENR Best Cross-Border Liquidity Management , China
2024“& M AF-EEE S NRG — (211 ELEFiRiE) 2024 Gold-shell Cases in Asset Management - 27t Century Business Herald
FHPE-RRBIRRZET The Outstanding China-ASEAN Cross-border Trade Bank
2024 ESG @&ik® - esgbusiness.com ESGBusiness Award 2024 - esgbusiness.com
BERHE Smart City Award
2024EEMBFRBRREBTR — LEEER5 Shanghai Gold Exchange 2024
FEMRFHNESR Best Special Member
L . R N . L FEREENRBERA Best Benchmark Price Trading Member

KERTHFEERT KRR, HAOERAEUMVAEER B SHEIRET, HIEFZAHE

o E_”:% 45 5E ;E 2024FZAHT “ENRH — QUHLEFIRE) 2024 Golden Sail Awards - 21st Century Business Herald

N EJ T35 ° 2024 FEREX REAH L IRITARS The Best Wholesale Bank in Greater Bay Area-ASEAN business

v = N - \,— L e N 2024 FEEHE—MEEMNERE — F—UE 2024 China Financial Value Ranking - Yicai Media Group
RENMNAIUSEFEFER, EEHAAPFFSHAXR, P T
HEE urun Report

2024tAiAEkEREEWTOP1000 2024 Hurun Global 1000 Awards

20244, BHNNERTHFAIRRIULRE, BAAEF . A THSENHIINRITHEES .
We are committed to building the future of ASEAN with the long term in mind.

Our progressive solutions, comprehensive network and unwavering commitment to do Right ability for the long term
By You continue to drive the success of our customers towards a sustainable tomorrow.

We dedicate these 2024 wins to our customers, colleagues and partners. 2024NEEERERE — WA 2024 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
RIERE10058 Top 100 China Best Employers
RELEXIEE Best Employers for Female Employees
SBERFHRRFRC The Great Place to Work Institute
AR R E AR A IAIE Great Place to Work Certification™, Mainland China
2024FEEtRERR — STHE 2024 X awards - Kenexa
Al R {ESC R Best Practice in Corporate Culture
HENERAERRETHR Best Practice in Digital Transformation
2024 R RERG — (LEEIRY 2024 Corporate Social Responsibility Case Collection - Shanghai Daily
FEHASTRELIFE Social Responsibility Innovation Award
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ERRN AR R RN ERESE, HIFNT T AR R
B, FE MBI RS AT 44 A Al bk 31
FERTHFER IO ST AL st A4 R RS, SR PRI
MK HFAAFRFLRFK

RTINS RRABEEITERERITEANFS AR
TE AN BR Y E A Eo EF RS ERIE R A RB RS
2030F AR A BN 7B F50 A B BiniEH, B
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SHRMPE “+HR" AINFERE R, RREER
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ARENSHEERFIE

Sustainability governance and policy

RITEEEARAEREARAFSERARENRR.ZERS
HERIFSRAREBIEEER, SREB IS URSTHER)
BIBL S TAME, HEWES AT RrEUR RABEA BARRYE SEH M E
BRERRUNBEERTCRIF

ARREARERR

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

We are reinforcing our commitment to forging a sustainable
future with our customers, colleagues and communities. Our
sustainability strategy is guided by our four pillars:

1. Drive Growth Sustainably

2. Keep Customers at the Centre

3. Develop Professionals of Principle
4. Uphold Corporate Responsibility

The four pillars are consistent with UOB Group's overall
sustainability strategy, which is aligned to the 17 United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals. The pillars provide
the Bank with a clear direction and purpose, as well as guide
the Bank’s initiatives in line with our business focus, China’s
14th Five-Year Plan and the country's economic and social
development strategies.

The Sustainability Committee (SC) is a management committee
that reports directly to the Management Committee and the
Board on sustainability matters. The committee is chaired by
Chief Sustainability Officer, who collaborates with members
from business and support units to ensure that our sustainability
strategy and objectives are implemented effectively.

Board of Directors

Management Committee

Sustainability Committee

MBHFEFHEDRSEAFRE R B IRRISEI

Promote United Nations Sustainable Development Goals with our stakeholders

RIS+
Drive Growth Sustainably

BRS5 mIHF4E
Keep Customers
at the Centre

e

IS -
Develop Professionals of
Principle

@e@}

HETRETHE
Uphold Corporate
Responsibility

s NHXEFARAMNE
Contribute economically
to the progress of our
communities

BIMRRIPOCHSRENR
B8 (ESG) XKL E
BHNBFREEERAER
Embed environmental,
social and governance
risk in our approach to
risk management

BHEMHFERENNET
BRI AR
Integrate social

and environmental
considerations into our
credit evaluation and
approval processes

RNFHHET N SIET R
KEMFES R, AR
PRI RRE T

Adopt and promote
climate-resilient
practices to support

our customers in their
transition to a low
carbon economy

o FFARFIREFIFEIRAZEN
RS ZR
Develop and provide
sustainable financing
and sustainable
investment solutions

o BT REMRENAR IR
15, RIFPE P EUEN Rt R 2
Protect customer data
and privacy through
secure and robust
systems and practices

RIFEBREN G BRAT
25
Ensure Fair Dealing

ITEEE AN CRRER I
ERALE

Create intuitive and
impactful customer
experiences

BEBREVCEENZRER
BRI EE, #HMmizHEE
BB EREN R 2MIRITARS
Make banking simpler,
smarter and safer
through ethical use of
technology and data

RIELERSE “BRE N
7RSS

Make banking more
accessible and inclusive

NRE L BN AR B
NZratsass

Support businesses
across all stages of
growth

o HEITEESEAFIEE
FRHVBITAA
Develop high-performing
teams and future-
focused individuals

- BEIESEENTE
Promote work-life
harmony

s XMRATHRERLERIIE
HAMSHFE % R SEIE
G
Encourage volunteerism
and advocacy for social
and environmental

causes

s MREARTIESS5ENHR
E
Ensure employee
engagement and
satisfaction

¢ FIERR.RENXERT
W ITIEIF IR
Ensure workplace health,
safety and well-being

o BN Z T (b B EERN
BES
Embrace diverse abilities
and strengths

BARATIRAS 3 EX. TR OMBE S ER A ER

o BIEABAEMNLSLAY
Rt
Maintain highest
standards of governance
and risk culture

c HREESM
Ensure regulatory
compliance

EERMARKER K
Protect the financial
system against abuse

B L BRNEEI
1THIRIETT
Incorporate
sustainability principles
into our procurement
practices

EIE B SRR, 5%
FhREFRIPIFE

Manage direct
environmental impact
and encourage
environmental
stewardship

IR ZE R LENHE
TFEHERE

Champion social
development in art,
children and education

Rooted in Our Values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment
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I Sustainability Strategy

AT R R A

e b AT 45 4%
Drive growth sustainably

RERITHRE ZHEH BN T P BT REER RS, BB AU
MRS R Al RS, BATERRERA . T BERR 28
BFNF MBI F P MR, S Mg rI FEE R ESE
R ABEFUKRNINS BRI EMIRS R, RITEFERES
FIRZUUBMSINESCERR ™ MIEERIL 1£2024 5, HITHIEERS
EURABERERTI A RMURIE T RRIRESCR LR LK
WHEIARTFEERMERMR, FI T U AN FITEREERMATH
SR RUHEE DEPAR,

AT AIH4R

Develop professionals of principle

REEARERTEREL T —MEEHFE L ER)ImE (UOB
Sustainability Academy) , ETEITR &R R TS A #5405 BRVIEMR
FINHZZNIM B B 210 1ME LB TifiE, £EEE 7 IFERIP.
HEREEFSRESHENZORS, AILUREZHFENF IER.

R I E T p Al
Maintaining carbon neutrality

RITE202NF LRI LI ERPH. RITESEBEE, Rk
KRENE U BE RS, FhEd R BAERERIE (RECs) A0
ERIES, kP LUERRE EFHIA R ST FF e B 4 sE TR L
KB HIE o

EARERITHER D BHIMEIEREE, TS B AEKRE
ROREDHANATNEEFREFEERHAMNELB.XELE
FERIE TR E A TRABFSHEFH OB RTE 2]
BEFENEF150KRTEEER S, FitR DA E1500,

E8, RITHLESRETE . RITEAEELE T TRRAHE
W RRER R TRARRRIR, B EAERRS R R AN
R ABINAE, ATER T TR EIYHE. ARE. oA
BBERSWLL L, BB E L5, BETE B BinE R #aEiR
AENERORLD DRI AR AR S5 DHLE e A
IR IORE T AR, BB T HITRL B BRE T,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

UOB China has taken various measures to support customers’
sustainability strategies. By offering innovative sustainable
financial solutions, we assist customers from multiple industries
such as new energy vehicles, renewable energy and green
buildings in their decarbonisation journeys, thereby contribute
to the construction of a sustainable economic ecosystem. Our
sustainable financial solutions keep receiving the domestic
and international recognitions in recent years. In 2024, our
sustainable financing solutions provided to electric vehicles
and renewable energy sectors were honoured with the
ESG Business Award and The Asset - Triple A Sustainable
Finance Award, which is an affirmation of our distinguished
contributions to driving the green transformation.

UOB has launched the UOB Sustainability Academy, a
comprehensive training programme designed to deepen
our colleagues’ sustainability knowledge this year. There are
10 series of micro e-learning modules that cover essential
knowledge on various environmental, social and economic
& governance issues. The training programme caters to all
interests and knowledge levels.

We have been maintaining operational carbon neutrality for
our own footprint since 2021. We encourage green operation
and work actively to conserve energy and reduce carbon
emissions at the workplace. The hard-to-abate operational
emissions are offset through the purchase of renewable
energy certificates and carbon credits, which also support
various renewable energy generation and carbon emissions
reduction programmers.

As an important measure for UOB China to reduce carbon
emissions, the distributed solar panels have been installed in
our head office building, UOB Plaza, and officially connected
to the power grid in 2024. UOB Plaza is the first Grade-A office
buildings with distributed solar panels in Lujiozui Financial
City. These solar panels are able to generate round 150 MWH
of clean power and reduce the carbon emission by 150 ton
annually.

At the same time, the Bank continues to drive green operation
actively. The Bank launched an initiative to encourage a
greener workplace by raising employees’ awareness and
optimising resource utilization efficiency. Fruitful results were
demonstrated in the reduction by five per cent above in
per-vehicle fuel consumption, paper usage, and electricity
consumption at branches. In addition, efforts such as adoption
of electric vehicles, reduction of paper cups consumption in
office areas and partnering DHL to use sustainable aviation
fuels also contribute to mitigate our carbon footprint.

BB

KERIT (FE) BRAE
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Peter Foo Moo Tan
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Corporate Information I

nEER

Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Peter Foo Moo Tan

Registered Office

Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor
12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor 13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor
14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19
(Actual Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No 116 and No 128,

Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.UOBChina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration for Market Regulation

Unified Social Credit Code
913100006694147236

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 7,500,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Supervisor
Cham Tao Soon

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Peter Foo Moo Tan (President and CEO)
Christine Ip

Nie Ming

Chu YiYun

Executive Committee

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Chu Yi Yun (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Christine Ip

Nie Ming

Audit Committee
Nie Ming (Chairman)
Christine Ip

Chu YiYun

Connected Transactions Control Committee
Chu Yi Yun (Chairman)

Christine Ip

Nie Ming

Board Risk Management Committee
Christine Ip (Chairman)

Nie Ming

Chu YiYun

Company Secretary
Eliza Wang Yuan

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office
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Epetea
Cham Tao Soon
PAE

Supervisor

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

B2023F1 A1 HEIBAERERTHEK
ZER EEIE B F2017F £ 20226 #EHEE
KTRIEEZHR, HBF2008FE20164F
HEHEAEAITHRIINIFRITES.

EHEEHMKSoup Holdings (R1& A
=R ER) FRE EE R IR
EIINRNSL. = B E R R0 B g
ZIRMBTES K, TE2MFS Bk 4EEH.
RIERITREM B ABERETHIIES.

RTINS B USRI 7R AW, BEIR 2
IR R A F BRI 2 ER AT EE
BRI, UK FE T AFHIEIR
o 20035, EHRRRIEMINKES R
FRRVETIIRE X “TRINWE” , UIREZHTEH
B IUEBIN TR

ER—RZNFENT I TIZM, EHURA
BORUAFTATIEFFLEREFUM
BAFHFEFPTREAUMREIA
FRENFETF U BRI T2
ME IR T2 RE 2R T2k KE
MM TIEMFENERER, URIFHRER
TERFBIMER L.

Prof Cham was appointed as the Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) with effective
from 1January 2023. Prof Cham was the Deputy
Supervisor of the Bank from 2017 to 2022 and
a non-executive and independent director of
the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Emeritus Chairman and Special
Advisor of Soup Holdings (formerly the Soup
Restaurant). He was previously the Chairman
of NSL, Soup Restaurant and Singapore Rail
Academy, and also a former director of MFS
Technology, WBL Corporation and UOB and
its subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education
scene, Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of
Singapore University of Social Sciences and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the
founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore's highest National
Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom. He is also a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of
Engineering, United Kingdom and Institution
of Mechanical Engineers, United Kingdom and
a foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy
of Engineering Sciences.

2007128 5B EE A ALERTT (FE)
BEELBERK ERTIEGRIES, BN
BERATHITERSTEMRES LM

ZREMRo

B R —IIAB45RFEZLWAERI IRTT
R, F1979FEMANF I ALERTT, 78
1990 FIRIBEKRERITES, BHBEKX
ELRITEEREIEEREH.

BRERBRERERMNEZTHERE.
RERT (BRAL) NEFREIEFER
RERT (RE) WEZRIE ERE
RERTT () NEEK, FEERRE
THES,

BHRERAMSERHBTUNERLE, 2
IR SETASURF KBTS SR
FIREESMNAR.MTIRHTHEES
SEESHRR, URFNEhESES
BEEE, AT, it BEEHINEER %
BRMEIER. I ESE. Ll EH.
TR BEERAMAEIESEMES, UL
KVisa APERRBEFEESK A,

BAELARZIASEN, BEFZARERHN
BN, LRERETHNES,

ETF 2R BISIAR, 2013 FMthERIRE
IRBUEMA R “RERSEE,

2022%, HRERR(IIMNRITEIMA
B “CEOUMMME", HIRMIMKESE
MERTF “RECEOMS (KER LEHA
8) 7o B S E TR (R W B R & B9 2021
FEN022FENHBAR,

BE-RAEHBEERTFREEARFE
FEL (IHEER) FUMNFH L (KA
25F) Fl.

Mr Wee was appointed as director and
Chairman of the Bank on 5 December 2007.
A non-executive and non-independent
director, he is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 45 years of
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined
UOB in 1979 and has been a director of UOB
since 1990. He is currently the Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of UOB.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas
Insurance (Chairman), United Overseas Bank
(Malaysia) (Deputy Chairman) and United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
(Chairman). He is the President Commissioner
of PT Bank UOB Indonesia. Mr Wee was also
formerly a director of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community development,
Mr Wee serves as a Council Member of The
Association of Banks in Singapore and The
Institute of Banking and Finance. He is also
a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation and Honorary
Council Member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He was
previously Deputy Chairman of the Housing
and Development Board, a director of the
Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group and United International
Securities, and a member of Visa AP Senior
Client Council.

Akeen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of
the Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. He is also
a director of the Wee Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public
Service Star by the Singapore Government
for his contributions to the financial industry.

In 2022, Mr Wee was conferred The Asian
Banker CEO Leadership Achievement for
Singapore Award and named the Best CEO
by the Singapore Institute of Directors for
large-cap listed companies. Mr Wee was also
awarded The Business Times Businessman of
the Year 2021/2022.

MrWee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied
Economics) from American University, Washington,
DC.

Board of Directors I
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Wee Ee Cheong
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Chairman
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Peter FOO Moo Tan
ITKFEHEWHITE
President and Chief
Executive Officer

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

F2016F 128 HERERITHEITKEE
FEHITE—IR, HF2017F1 B18HZEEM
ARERITHEES R FARERITHE
BEESHTES, HIRIITER RS,

FEFRETF20MEMAKRIERTT, TEREM
WIKERER BN I 55, HF2012
FHRBERERITREITKRERENT
E_H/D\o

FERREIAISRERITI MAETE IIANK
FERITZ /), (SR EEEEIRITERNE, 8
B SN EERAL, BERINRDITER
PITE LREFERMRFAARITHIIRE
ELEZBLRIR DT EREEE,
It AT, fBYERIV 2 FRIE 5 F1988% 2000
i8], SfRTEERELALINFRT, EERITU
TR BFIE SR TIE A EIRIR S R ST ER
Bl IR 19874, (RN BRI A
bl /NI ) 15 NS

FAEERMAIEFRITIFNITES, TN
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Mr Foo was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) in December 2016 and
a director of the Board of UOB China on 18
January 2017. An executive and non-independent
director, he is a member of UOB China's Executive
Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the
Group's Treasury and Global Markets business forits
overseas subsidiaries and branches. He also served
as President and CEO of UOB Thailand from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 35 years of experience in
banking and financial markets. Prior to joining
UOB, he served for 11 years at Fortis Bank, S.A./N.V.
Singapore, where he assumed many management
roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific Management
Board member, Managing Director of Private
Banking and Head of Global Markets. Mr Foo's
previous professional experience also includes
holding various executive positions at Bank Austria
Creditanstalt, Bank of America, and Chemical Bank
between 1988 and 2000. Mr Foo embarked on
the career as management associate with Shell
Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is a non-executive director of Hengfeng
Bank and the Director of AllF Capital Partners
Limited, the general partner of Asia Impact
Investment Fund | L.P. He is also appointed
as the Advisor to The Singapore Chamber of
Commerce and Industry in China (SingCham)
Shanghai Chapter. Previously, he served as a
Council Member of Capital Markets Policy Council
(CMPC) of CFA Institute, the Executive Committee
Member and Regional Representative of South
East Asia of ACI-The Financial Markets Association,
Board Member of CFA Singapore, Council Member
of the Association of Banks in Singapore and an
independent director of SGX listed/Temasek’s
CitySpring Infrastructure Investment Trust.

Tapping his international banking experience, Mr
Foo leads UOB China to promote connectivity
between China and ASEAN, deeply involve in China'’s
financial liberalisation and contribute to Shanghai's
development as an international financial centre. In
recognition of his contribution, Mr Foo was awarded
as a 2020 Shanghai Financial Industry Innovation
Figure at the Shanghai Financiers Awards hosted by
Xinhua News Agency. He also received the Magnolia
Silver Awards from Shanghai Municipal People's
Government in 2023. With his deep knowledge
and understanding on over-the-counter trades and
international financial derivative and commodity
markets, Mr Foo is also appointed as the member
of the Market Development Advisory Committee by
China Financial Futures Exchange effective from
September 2021.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management
(Hons) from the National University of Singapore
and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, was appointed to the Board on 22
August 2011. A non-executive and non-
independent director, she is the Chairman of
the Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration, and Connected
Transactions Control Committees.

Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 as a Managing
Director responsible for developing the
Bank's Greater China strategy. In 2012, she
was appointed CEO of UOB Hong Kong. In
2016, she took on an expanded role as CEO
of Greater China. In October 2023, Christine
assumed the role of Head of Group Strategic
Communications and Brand of UOB. Mrs Ip is
a seasoned banker with more than 30 years
of experience in both consumer and wholesale
banking, with significant experience in Greater
China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior
management positions in product and sales
management, customer segment management
and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and Mainland
China.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip
received the Asia Retail Congress Award for
“Best International Retail Banker” in 2008 and
was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China
region in 2012 by the China Outstanding
Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of
Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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Mr Nie was appointed to the Board on 7
September 2022. As an independent director, he
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of the Nominating and Remuneration,
Connected Transactions Control and Board
Risk Management Committees.

Mr Nie is currently an attorney-at-law of Anli
Partners Law Firm. He also serves as external
supervisor of Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank,
as well as an independent director of Sino-
Australian International Trust.

Mr Nie was formerly the director and deputy
CEO of Mizuho Bank (China) Limited. He had
previously held senior management positions in
Fuji Bank Shanghai Branch, Mizuho Corporate
Bank Shanghai Branch, Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank and Research Center of
Financial Law of Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr Nie used to be a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference Pudong New
Area and was successively elected as the
representative of the 13*, 14% and 15* Shanghai
Municipal People's Congress.

He holds a Doctorate Course of Laws from
Tokyo University (Master degree) and is an
arbitrator of Shanghai Arbitration Commission.
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Prof Chu Yi Yun was appointed to the Board on
3June 2024. As an independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Connected Transactions
Control Committee and the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee, and a member
of the Audit and Board Risk Management
Committees.

Prof Chu Yi Yun currently serves as a National
Second-Tier professor and doctoral supervisor
of accounting at Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics, a researcher at the
Accounting and Finance Research Institute of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics,
a member of the First and Second Senior
Accounting Professional Qualification Evaluation
Committee of the National Government Offices
Administration, a director of the Ninth Council
of the Accounting Society of China, and an
accounting expert recognized by the Ministry
of Finance. He is also an independent director
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China
Limited, Bank of Hebei Company Limited and
Bank of Communications Wealth Management
Company Limited, and an external supervisor
of Bank of China Company Limited.

Prof Chu was formerly a member of the First
Advisory Committee on Enterprise Accounting
Standards of Ministry of Finance and Executive
Secretary-General of the Accounting Education
Branch of the Chinese Accounting Society
(formerly known as Chinese Accounting
Professors Association). Prof Chu also served
as an external supervisor of Ping An Bank
Company Limited and an independent director
of Tellhow Sci-Tech Company Limited, Universall
Scientific Industrial (Shanghai) Company
Limited, Jiaxing Bank Company Limited and
Ping An Bank Company Limited.

Prof Chu Yi Yun holds a Ph.D. Degree in
Management (Accounting) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics.
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"3 45 FR%S

Name Gender Position

'R s BEK/IFRITIERES

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-

independent director

Ry 3]
Peter Foo Moo Tan  Male

UOB China is committed to upholding good corporate
governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a)
b)
Q)

d)

e)

the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

the PRC Regulations on Administration of ~ Foreign-
funded Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC
Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks;
the Code of Corporate Governance of Banking and
Insurance Institutions; and

other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees,
the Supervisor and Senior Management perform their
respective duties according to the laws and regulations
of the country and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

Our Board membership has been refreshed following these
changes:
a) Appointment of Prof Chu Yi Yun to the Board on 3 June

2024; and

b) Retirement of Mr Wu Yu Hua from the Board on 5 June

2024.

The current Board comprises five members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank's Articles of Association. Details of
the Board members are shown in the table below:

WITIFRTES (TKREFENTE)
Executive and non-independent director From 28 October 2022 to 27 October 2025

AR

Current Term of Office

2022 9B 17 HE2025F 9816 H
From 17 September 2022 to 16 September
2025

202210 A28 HE 2025410 B 27 H

(President and Chief Executive Officer)

4715788 Z EMITIEMIIES

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent
director

BB 3 MUEE

Nie Ming Male Independent director

fif—8 5 MBS

Chu YiYun Male Independent director
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2023F 7B 12HE2026%F 7B 1M H
From 12 July 2023 to 11 July 2026

202F987HE2025% 98 6H
From 7 September 2022 to 6 September
2025

204 FE 6 B3HE2027FE 6B 2H
From 3 June 2024 to 2 June 2027

EXESHNTERGENT:

ARTRIU KRB, HERITHAREABRAERNRASRE,
HERITALMY, FERRFRTENEERARE;
WERITHIFE. HSGEXREMAR, BZERILEHS
BREVEI RS, BEEARNIFIR. HEAERR, HEEBE
REERIR, R ABERNEER ST,

HITIRITIE M E R M B R URKITHFHERAMIESF N
ETRAE;

HAITIRITEAWE. MMRITROIESH. DI, BERE
TERITEANSE;

HIVHUERITIIMR A BFWE. BB SRHE. B,
EQESSZE = Y
WERITHL SR SRUHAHERITHMSIRE;
HZFHUERTHEELEIY, FHRARTHEEMERSHY
E1ZIEHT;

RERITHR R AL,

BERBNEARUNEERE;
ENEFNESREEARNBIEE;

HIF R ERREIEA R FRIREI;

AW ESTTKNEROS#RRER;

WERULHEN. FXNEMRRELBENXCERER. RIEN

R EIBHELE;
RERITHNOELZE. XmF. KERRHIZEEXER
EHLPRER

HRZARERTHONGER. RS ITNEAEJRENETT,
HBRWETREENT DMK

HESEBARLE;
HREERIITELNBERNIZF RN B SRR IESF]
HAERHHE R PR~ 4E;
HEHRERTHEXXBEZ ZHIEGIER;

B e, MERMERITE;

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

set long-term strategic goals, approve strategic
business initiatives and investment schemes, formulate
the capital plans of the Bank and assume the ultimate
responsibility for capital or solvency management;
determine the environmental, social and governance
(ESQ) factors that are material to the Bank, consider
sustainability issues, including material ESG factors in
formulating its strategies, and oversee the management
and monitoring of the material ESG factors;

determine plans for increase or reduction of registered
capital, issuance of bonds or other securities and the
PO of the Bank;

determine plans for any significant acquisition,
repurchase shares of the Bank, amalgamation, split,
winding-up or conversion of the Bank;

approve external investments, asset purchase, asset
disposal and write-off, asset mortgage and connected
transactions;

monitor the business and financial performance of the
Bank, and approve the financial statements of the Bank;
review and approve annual business plan, budget and
key performance indicators;

determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

set dividend policy and declare dividends;

plan for the succession of Board members and Senior
Executives;

review and approve Senior Executives' roles in other
companies/organisations;

review and approve the exemption of the job rotation
requirement for Country CEO;

oversee the establishment of a comprehensive risk
governance framework, including the strategy, policy
and process for managing various types of risk;
determine the risk tolerance, risk appetite and risk
profile of the Bank, and approve credit discretionary
limits;

review and monitor the risk management, internal
audit and compliance functions, and ensure that these
functions are adequately resourced;

recommend amendments of Articles of Associations to
shareholders;

ensure that Management establishes appropriate
procedures and processes to avoid situations that may give
rise to improper personal gains or conflicts of interests;
review and approve the Bank's system of controls
relating to connected transactions;

set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;
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e review the Bank's information disclosure policy and hold
responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity
of the information disclosed;

e review and approve the composition and terms of
reference of the Board and Board Committees;

e endorse directors’ fees for recommendation to the
shareholder;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the
shareholder and perform such other functions as
required by relevant laws, regulations and the Bank’s
Articles of Association.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional
Board meetings would be convened whenever necessary.

In 2024, the Board held four regular meetings and two
interim meetings. The quorum for each meeting was met.

The Bank's Articles of Association also provide for the
Board to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

The Board passed nine resolutions by way of circulation in
2024.

The procedures for convening Board meetings, the quorum
required for constituting the meetings, the proceedings at
the meetings, and the procedures for voting and passing
of resolutions were in compliance with the requirements
of applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s
Articles of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings
and circular resolutions were properly maintained by the
Company Secretary.

XTEFRIFREINZEGR
REFTHEEEREH FRENEIERS, B MTERS.
XEXSEHERS. FIHERS. RERFHERSNEES
R ERERS.

MRTERS
0. EREMA: B—REE (XE) | FFRBSLLE. H7iFHR L,

b. BITER SR EERRENT!
o BERITNEEZ, SEFRERIHE. S RERE, BE
RIT A S RIBHIT, HERXNERTE; &
o MERTESREEARUTHANEREEEI,

c. 2024 F, MIREWNENER, WITEASKATLLEHERRS
B/ #HETHEXED, AERBARIN

Q) XEXBEHERR
o ZREMA: E-BHHEER (B2024 F6A3HERBRE
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Fio

Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five
Board Committees, namely, Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

» the Bank's business operations, including formulating
internal policies and business strategies, monitoring
the execution of business plans and approving
relevant credit limits; and

* human resource matters for employees below Senior
Executives positions.

c. In 2024, the EXCO leveraged electronic means to facilitate
the review and approval of matters. Hence, it did not hold
any meeting in the year.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Prof Chu Yi Yun (replacing Mr Wu
Yu Hua as Chairman with effect from 3 June 2024), Mrs
Christine Ip and Mr Nie Ming.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

» establish the framework for managing connected
transactions;

» oversee the management of connected transactions
and associated risks;

+ review non-significant connected transactions; and

* review and recommend significant connected
transactions to the Board for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2024.

d. The CTCC passed two resolutions by way of circulation
in 2024.
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(3) Audit Committee

a. The AC members are Mr Nie Ming (Chairman), Mrs Christine
lp and Prof Chu Yi Yun (replacing Mr Wu Yu Hua with effect
from 3 June 2024).

b. The AC’'s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all
matters relating to:

» financial statements, and internal and external audit
plans and reports;

* the adequacy of internal accounting controls and
material internal controls;

 the scope and results of internal and external audits;

* the quality of, and any significant change in,
accounting policies or practices;

 the adequacy of internal audit resources;

« significant findings of internal and external auditors;

* the establishment of a comprehensive governance
framework, including the policy and procedures for
managing whistle-blowing cases;

* the approval of the external auditor's fees; and

+ the nominations of the external auditor and the head
of the internal audit function.

c. The AC held four meetings in 2024.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a. The NRC members are Prof Chu Yi Yun (replacing Mr Wu Yu
Hua as Chairman with effect from 3 June 2024), Mr Wee
Ee Cheong, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Nie Ming.

b. The NRC's main responsibilities are to:

* recommend nominees for appointment to the Board
and Board Committees;

* recommend a framework for the remuneration of
directors and key senior executives (including the
President and CEO and Deputy President) for the
Board's approval; and

» establish a mechanism for the formal assessment
of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the
contribution of the various Board Committees and
individual directors.

¢. The NRC held one meeting in 2024.

d. The NRC passed one resolution by way of circulation in
2024.

G) EEZERREEZERR
a. ZERRMG HZFRALE (XFE)  BAKE. E—HEER
(B 2024 £ 6 B 3 HEEBREERE) .

b. ERANREEERSNEERENT:

o HERITHNLERHRE. BERIXERAEE, HREXES
SHEE;

o BERNRERAREERMIL, REBUNEFEREESSH]
ERRIRAIEER,;

o EIRR. 8. BWENEHSHXLEES, FEMT
RITNE BRI N LB T E BRI ;

- HHE2TEADVRER. Rig. SHARE;

- HEEERXTREMO. XRASEHNNREEENNL LS
ERERIRS; &

s EfREFSREHRETEFZIRAEANREGFHES,

c. 2024 F, BEESNREREZERSHABASNITR,

(5) Board Risk Management Committee

a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman), Mr
Nie Ming and Prof Chu Yi Yun (replacing Mr Wu Yu Hua
with effect from 3 June 2024).

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies,
policies and risk appetite of the Bank for the Board's
approval;

» oversee the establishment and operation of a robust
and independent risk management system that is
consistent with the strategies and policies approved
by the Board;

* review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Bank’s risk management framework and practices
for identifying, measuring, monitoring and mitigating
various types of risks;

* review bank-wide stress test scenarios, assumptions,
parameters and reports;

* review regular management reports on risk exposures,
risk portfolio composition and the management
and monitoring of such exposures and portfolio
composition; and

* report to the Board regularly and highlight any
adverse risk event or trend for the Board's attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2024.
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Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor, Prof Cham Tao Soon, who
was nominated by the shareholder and appointed in
accordance with regulatory requirements and the Bank's
Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:

* inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the
Bank;

* supervising the Board and Senior Executives to ensure
that the Bank is run in a prudent manner and that the
Board and Senior Executives take corrective actions
where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank,
the shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the
depositors; and

* exercising such other power and authority pursuant
to relevant laws, regulations and the Bank’s Articles
of Association, and as may be authorised by the
shareholder.

In 2024, the Supervisor duly discharged his responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Executives strictly,
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and the Bank's
Articles of Association. In discharging his responsibility, the
Supervisor received and reviewed regular reports on the
Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operations and financial position, and
rights of consumers of the Bank and the performance of
the Directors and Senior Executives. The Supervisor also
met with Directors and Senior Executives, and attended
Board meetings.

IR EFREITIRRER

2024 £, RITRMIUIEZDRNAZARE. REERE (BE
2024 £ 6 B5H) RE—BHEIR (82024683 HE) -
NERIEFEAREETEZSTROEHEZERZER, UK
RELFMEZERSZ. XEXBENERSNESFNNEEEZR
RS MERIEFE-—IBRBEESE S TIRAVIESR KM
ZREMAXBERBERBZRRIRE, URFHERSNERFEEN

MEEZEREMR.

REHA, MUEBFHMRTHEITTEENS, NEFEFNT
BINE, RIEEFNEFR. EFRTRENEZRRTKET
ARG EREERIE TIRRIER, HiP T RITHBEMNZEUSHE
BE. FRA BREMEMAEEXENG AN,

(1) 2024 FHTEFHEEETSSWHIER

Performance of Independent Directors

In 2024, the independent directors on the Board were Mr Nie
Ming, Mr Wu Yu Hua (up to 5 June 2024) and Prof Chu Yi Yun
(with effect from 3 June 2024). Mr Nie Ming is the Chairman
of the AC, as well as a member of the NRC, CTCC and BRMC.
Prof Chu Yi Yun is the Chairman of the NRC and CTCC, as well
as a member of the AC and BRMC.

In the year under review, all independent directors discharged
their duties diligently and responsibly. They contributed to
the decision-making and oversight by the Board and Board
Committees and safeguarded the rights and overall interests
of the Bank, consumers, depositors, the shareholder and other
stakeholders.

(1) Attendance of Independent Directors at Board
Meetings in 2024

WM ERNE NEMEEE=WN HREEES=W TRE
Name of Independent  (FIGRNEZ SRV (BleNER22IN) R
Director R) R) Absent with
No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Apologies
(including Interim Meetings (including
Board Meetings) Interim Board
Held Meetings) Attended
=BA
Nie Ming 6 6 0 /
SR
(BE2024F685H) 1 1 0 /
Wu Yu Hua
(up to 5 June 2024)
fit—8y
(82024 %6 A3 8iE)
ChuYiYun > > 0 /

(from 3 June 2024)

(2) M EEWHITEXRBTUR HZRWBIESR
2024 F, MU EBFYRNHITHFERERNEFTIRHF N,

BEREFABEN

RITHEENEREEASEERHTHBEHRIRITER. |17
MUSEE. NRERE, CEEREENHEENESREHEE
KBRS UEEMHH—PHRNITIE, RITHEREFAN
SREMBHITEE, NMTREHIENEMRABEERE
LB . MEREFERITHRENYLUIREFERIIINR
TIWER, BAIEFENER, BRIETRE

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2024, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter..

Supervisor's and Directors’ Access to
Information

The Supervisor and Directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and are provided with
timely and comprehensive financial, risk management and
operational reports to facilitate informed discussions during
meetings. They also have access to the Company Secretary
whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and
Directors on regulatory changes and best practices in
corporate governance. The Supervisor and Directors may seek
independent professional advice in the course of discharging
their duties at the Bank’s expense.
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Senior Management Structure

BR%S 1£HA =] HEXRER RS 1451 £ =S ) HEXRER
iy FR s FER
Position Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant Position Sex Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant
Commencement Years of Commencement Years of
Experience Experience
R TEKREREHITE 5 2016 F 128 WIEEILAF B EEFTRER W 37 RIE RARITHEE % 2018 5 B HAIZHAFEFFMLT 21
FOO Moo Tan  President and Chief Male Dec 2016 Bachelor of Science, Estate Management, Honours YUAN Quan Head, Transaction Male May 2018 Master of Economics
Peter Executive Officer National University of Singapore Albert Banking Rikkyo University, Japan
RO TIm RELBATITK 2022% 9 A
Chartered Financial Analyst General Manager of Sep 2022
Shanghai Branch
HinH BT 5 202010 B BRAF T E/RAKFNAERNLT 23
YANG Rui Qi AIternoFe Country CEO Male Oct 2020 Master of Applled Finance = MEEREBEE =B 20224 4 B P EABEEEESEERAT IS+ 22
Mark REFIRERALE 2016108 The University of Melbourne, Australia LU Meng Jia Head, Personal Financial Male Apr 2022 Bachelor of Information Administration and
Head, Global Markets Ol ol David Services Information System
mEH ERRREE 2 0NF1A  FNEETASIHEERL 31 Shanghai University
YEONG Kok Leng  Chief Risk Officer Male Jan 2022 Bachelor of Business Administration _ . N o) s
Vincent National University of Singapore MR _ EWSRITEREEE ‘ 3 2008 £ 9 A WAZAFEFL 43
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit  Male Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce
B BREERE 5 2023438 HREFFREEFIENG 33 University of Otago, New Zealand
CHENG Yu Lung Chief Information Officer Male Mar 2023 Master of Science
Rahmi PefEaps BURITEEBEE 2] 2024 %78 BEERSAFIHEEML 28
FAN Nan Hong Head, Commercial Male Jul 2024 Master of Business Administration
ZRET BHEWEE B 2018 F 7 B S8 AFEItET 22 Frank Credit Hong Kong Baptist University
ZHU Xuan Chief Financial Officer ~ Male Jul 2018 Master of Professional Accounting
Brian REBREUFELEE 20234 8B Fudan University B ANBREEE z 2007128 EEARFIFEEMLT 27
Chief Sustainability Apr 2023 HONG Xico Yan Head, Human Resources Female  Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration
Officer Amy Fudan University
FH EEGHVEEE R 2024F4R REETRASLATHL 18 3K REETEETE L 06F1F  REEONIHHIAYIHEERL 3
é;’:tﬁg Q;:ﬁ%:e(]d’ Wholesale Female  Apr2024 I[\JAHC;\S/;er;?; Z]ccllflrc])ctteirlwglfccu(r)nn%mchs ZHANG Sa Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting
S 2020 £18 Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo, USA
oo on 2020 i HRSHBHEE % 007%128 HEAPIEEERE 28
S RSTTK 2022%18 WANG Yuan Head, Legol and Female Dec 2007 Master of'BUS|-ness Administration
General Manager of Jan 2022 Eliza Secretariat Fudan University
Beijing Branch
REAIK EHEEE 3 2017 %88 EEARFEMFEL 21
e R TS 2] 2024 E 58 ERFAEATEEL 22 XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance Male Aug 2017 Doctor of Finance
WANG Hao Head, Commercial Male May 2024 Doctor of Public Finance Fudan University
Banking Nankai University
FER RERMFUBEE 3 2022%1H AR FEERESF R LA EEmLT 23
FANG Xiao En Head, Channels and Male Jan 2022 Master of Business Administration
Andrew Digitalisation Leonard N. Stern School of Business, New York

University, USA
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L FR s FR
Position Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant Position Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant
Commencement Years of Commencement Years of
Experience Experience
NE] RRESREREEESEE & 20MEFE5A EEMZAFEGRHEERFMT 24 B EaTTK z 20205 7R RER=AEAFBHSEHAERB S L 18
FU Yue Head, Strategic Female May 2011 Master of Science in International Marketing CAl Wei Ling General Manager of Female Jul 2020 Master of Business Finance and International Business
Sabrina Communications and Management Cissy Xiamen Branch University of Central Lancashire, UK
Brand University of Leeds, UK
RERFNGEHEE 2023%F12 B B—T BRANTITK z 2020 6 B CEWERFETHFEFEL 18
Head, Customer Dec 2023 SHAQ YiNing  General Manager of Female Jun 2020 Bachelor of Marketing
Advocacy Kunming Branch Yunnan University of Finance and Economics
BBRAR RNDITITE e 2024 %58 IAMERFEFFEF L 17 FRAaEE FAWLATITE z 2024 %7 A ["TRIMBINERFERIEFE T 19
XIE Xiao Dong  General Manager of Male May 2024 Bachelor of International Finance CHEN Yu Qun  General Manager of Female Jul 2024 Bachelor of Japanese
Kevin Shenzhen Branch Jiangxi University of Finance & Economics Wendy Zhongshan Branch Guangdong University of Foreign Studies
B/\E INDITITEK z 2021128 HAZNFRREAFISEEMLT 19 R EEERARBXZITTK X 202048 A B AFNAEEFEM L 17
ZENG Xiao Ting General Manager of Female Dec 2021 Master of Business Administration XIE Ying Branch Manager of Female Aug 2020 Master of Applied Linguistics
Christina Guangzhou Branch The University of Waikato, New Zealand Grace Shanghai Pilot Free Shanghai Jiao Tong University
Trade Zone Sub-Branch
BRLE HMNPITITE % 2021511 A FEEUMNEFRASEREF RIS EEM LT 24
HU Wei General Manager of Male Nov 2021 Moaster of Business Administration FRBRS EEBRECERTITK z 2019%E3 A8 ERBTAFTENRZSREAF L 16
Tony Suzhou Branch Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers, France CHEN Xioo Ling Branch Manager of Female Mar 2019 Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology)
Xujiahui Sub-Branch The University of Shanghai for Science and
B EBASTTITE z 202088  UTARFEZEFRFFIREFFL 23 Technology
GOU Wei General Manager of Female Aug 2020 Bachelor of Economics and Laws
Helen Shenyang Branch Liaoning University L) EERERITIK z 2016 %58 LEFN B S Frmhk TE EEmLt 22
DU Yan Branch Manager of Female May 2016 Master of Business Administration
fa)ll REDITITEK E 2021 1MB  HASBAXFRITEEFM LT 18 Cherry Jingan Sub-Branch United Business Institutes, Belgium
HE Chuan General Manager of Male Nov 2021 Master of Management in Banking
Charlie Chengdu Branch Massey University, New Zealand
[ERRA RESTITK EE] 2020 4 A REMFREAFRITERT T 17
ZHOU Xico Zhou General Manager of Male Apr 2020 Bachelor of Accounting and Finance
Alan Tianjin Branch University of Hertfordshire, UK
g MM AITITEK kog 2018128 MREIBA¥BEFIREFL 30
YE Yan General Manager of Female Dec 2018 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer
Beicy Hangzhou Branch Harbin Engineering University
BE BERPITITK Z 2024 %7 A EEMNAAFEZREREF. SRMS5RTEMLT 30
HUANG Ying General Manager of Female July 2024 Master of Science in International
Christina Chongging Branch Economics Banking and Finance

Cardiff University, UK
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Remuneration

FHEMEUR S5 EIE

RERTHPEHFMEERN BT RERAEHHRS HEVEFIKT
ERRITEBSEHR NG EMRS. REMHFHSHITAR
. NEWERE, SKRUMENHELENSRERAT. R,
T ENEERAI T BATR HI S SRITR S, KRR AR
REEEIRERNES. ZHNBRERTRITEFELR T,

RIBRITHMEBERPOME, RINFMKTEESERA. JTFR
ERIBIIR NN ANGNE ZERBENR, SREZNEFKEN
I T FATIZEP IR R T DA F RS EE R K P REES
ERMEAE, Mo, HITAESANXLEIRER]) R TAVEREK
T 5 HAT BRI SR ANSRUKFARIRIL,

ROTUEHHNSENERE, BERENBLERSE, HAEE, %

AN ETUAGEME M S HITOS AR 5 BRI IR KAIN

i, RIEPERTREEEEZASMAN (BURITR

B EREs) , RTNSAEBEARULNNLEERTMN

ML LR R THEED P EHMIGREILES (f. RBERITERINH

ENEIEAESR, TESREEASRTTEFHMANERELLFI7 50%, H

SR EEAR AR REEEEZR IR 5 TR ZHENRY

BIELLBIN 40%, ZELEZ N TAURTERRNEERE (W0

EA) WAHITIRME. BITEMTEFHFMEIE 7 EFINEH,

EUTERA—MERT, EERRAENLKRFBRHMM / e

EEZAFMEYE Db, ZIN RSB AR TRIEENITA

WEEREBITRE, &eHi& 100%.

o TEEHERXFLRET,

¢ BTHRZHNERFIFELH D ATAMERNEITREARIEKR
RBzo

+ MBWENERER,

o AHITRH. BEREEE.

BITERRREATTFHFIMBERR / SINEER,
AT BEFMRIEHFITERTAERNRRER, KERTHER
BITRERFWNESS (UTEN “BERR" ) , ZREREH

MBREEAN, HPESSTFHBRTESREE. REEAR, &
REHBARW TR
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Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB China aims to provide
competitive remuneration package and ensure the Bank is
able to appropriately attract, retain and motivate high quality
talents who not only fit the Bank’s culture and share the
same values but also meet the competencies the positions
require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines how our
remuneration entitlement links to the Bank’s performance,
long-term benefits and risk management. This remuneration
policy applies to all of the full-time employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee’s
salary is mainly linked to the individual performance, UOB
Group's and function’s performance. The performance target
setting clearly shows the requirements and expectations of
the Bank for risk management and long-term and short-term
performance of the function and the individual. In addition,
the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management's roles is independent with
the performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes cash bonus, deferrals in
deferred cash or deferred shares, or commission, which links
the staff variable pay to the Bank's performance and current
and future risks. In line with the Supervisory Guidelines on
Sound Compensation in Commercial Banks issued by China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission, senior
management and employees whose roles have material
impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure would have a portion of
their variable pay deferred. Under the Bank's latest deferral
framework, the 50 per cent deferral rate will be applied to
the variable pay for key senior managements whereas for
other senior managements and employees whose roles have
material impacts on the Bank’s risk exposure, the 40 per cent
deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay. This deferral
will be in the form of deferred shares or deferred cash (where
applicable). The Bank has developed a mechanism to forfeit
the unvested variable pay and/or claw back the paid variable
pay. In any of the following situations, the management will
determine the percentage of unvested compensation to be
forfeited and/or paid compensation to be claw-back. Such
percentage is at the Bank’s discretion based on the severity
of violations, up to 100%.
e Material violation of risk limits.
* Bank-wide losses or material risks due to negligent risk-
taking or inappropriate individual behavior.
e Material restatement of financial results.
*  Misconduct, malfeasance or fraud.

The Bank currently has not had any variable pay forfeited
and/or claw-back cases.

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and
an effective remuneration management, UOB China has
established a Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRQ), which consists of four Board Directors. The chairman of
NRC is an independent director. During the reporting period,
the committee held one meeting in total.

ER LFENSREEA G

2024 FRTARERTHERIEEXANEFTRSHAIAR
M 756,000 75, RBEXTHBERSITHART 290,000 7T,

BHE2024F12831H, RITHBESREEAGRIN
MREEEXMRMULNET, £ 2024 FHRITNEZARIFHMH
BEAART 110,801,644 75, HPEEHM ST AART
61,253,318 75, FIZHEMSEN AR 49,548,326 Tt.

Compensation for Board Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

In 2024, the Bank paid a total of RMB756,000 directors’
fees to the independent directors of UOB China, and paid
a total of RMB290,000 supervisor's fee to the supervisor.

As of 31 December 2024, there are total 43 senior executives
and material risk takers whose roles have material impacts
on the Bank’s risk exposure. The total compensation for
these executives and material risk takers in 2024 was
RMB110,801,644, including RMB&1,253,318 fixed pay and
RMB49,548,326 variable pay.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

R ER

RERTHEKIEFENBERZEZANBEERHAEESAERTE
FARRMAEE, BFRBI. TEENRTIL SR RINERTHEIE
RAGIE, HRRABEEEFEENT RS,

RTEFZEIEHMEAINNERABERRITIE, FHASM
REERM RS, EEBELASTEHIITERRSAEHET
k& R, FERAVERTAESMAIN, SEITGIRITAZ
IEHIE R,

RITMTHREIEH RN G EELEABERIRR S EEFR T
BerpyeEM. FEMNERE, SEETRRTERXKIRG
N EEE. R NRERER. TEERRRS REH.
ERUECEEITFNSUENG. ZAEERNGIEEBNEZERE
MARITAERER R AITRESERIL

RERE T

RITIRIUL T IR AR IR BN MEBEITED. TEERAERE,
ABEITEEODEF R MRNETERSMAERITERAFIT
BIREITE;, EITHEE, ABHEITBERTITKREERNTE
CIRTF.

MBI AR E BT BT R IR R B A A B AR S AN
HMEERS, MPHEFSNERRRITHEAFENEERRR, 5
EIRARITIEEEDFABEHNR L EZNSEENE L.
MBI EMRIBEE RN, TEAER, THERITAREBM S
Bl EEMSIUTRINT NG, FNSERTNEEE.
1THI SR ERERA N, MMAEBRITENALENEEBT.
2024 F, HITAHBRHIAMIIRR. RIESWSKRERE
BRI, BIFARKESNERRTIA. (RHERNFEIFE
WIEE#EH, FABSIEP. ABHITHFEXIEEER, &
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Internal Control

UOB China has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group's policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework and systems that enable the Bank to set strategic
and practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control framework
and systems through the review of risk management reports
and analysis, operational and budget reports, internal audit
reports tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various
internal committees and from the exchange of insights with
industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation/
correction mechanisms. The internal control framework and
systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance
on the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee ("AC") and Group Audit,
while administratively reports to the President and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ") of UOB China.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services to improve the Bank’s operations.
It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by having
a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an
independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank'’s internal financial controls, operational and
compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of
risk management, control and governance processes. In
2024, Internal Audit promptly coordinated internal resource,
adjusted audit plans according to various business requests,
and promoted a smooth audit progress by applying technical
tools including data analysis and others. During daily routine,
Internal Audit continuously concentrated on regulatory focus
areas and addressed to regulator comments in a timely

BSESEMAXNBEERL. ERMNBSELE, RITHITEEMS
SRR LT EF, FES5VSHBIIGEIE, Had
SR REE, (Rt TIEMABIENR S,

NEEFEITHERTEERREREEEELR (R “BRTRREE
EEZRR" ) WA (BULRITASEITES) , UWRERA
MEITAHEHERN CENSIES)) BITIRR. 8FE, NEHE
THEMERIE “KRSE” BRI ARER T EIER, H#
RIENHEHE TN ROEB X, RIZERMETEER. 2R
FKAENBERARBERITIENRTRFUREIEE, &HitA
BEELTHD ML SR ENZEBFRUKER RS AN
EHHNBEFNERREABRE. ZHEITTTISFLIHEIT
ERSEHERIT.

MBI EMRIEE T ERA SHERN AR EIHTARSHIT, B
FHZIRBER ). FiIFERR. RERTHETKREERITE
AR EEENERARTIHITHLE, MFITELRR. 7K
FEENTE. BXEERNEFS (NER) TRELHITER,
HWERHFITRMEEXR T I+, ABHITBHARTREEER
FXAERETT. SMNERE I AR s E MG PR th BV E R R R e E I
FTREXN S S TR SEREIE R, WG R T LURIITN, FHiR
FERHETERR LIREAER.

manner. For internal and external cooperation, Internal Audit
enhanced online and onsite cooperation with Group Audit,
strengthened collaboration and sharing with business and
support units, and increased communication with industry
peers, so as to promote better effectiveness and efficiency in
Audit activities.

Internal Audit performs its function according to the Internal
Audit Guidelines for Commercial Banks as governed by
the National Financial Regulatory Administration (former
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission) and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls, management concerns and regulatory hotspots.
The audit scope covers all businesses, operations as well as
the infrastructure and applications of systems across UOB
China's headquarters and branches. The strategic audit plan
is annually reviewed and approved by the AC prior to its
implementation.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the internal
audit plan approved by the AC, and carries out assessments
or reviews that may be ad hoc requested by the regulator, the
AC, the CEO or senior management. All internal audit reports
are provided to the AC, the CEO, relevant management
and/or the Board (where required) with significant issues
highlighted. Internal Audit is responsible for closely
monitoring and assessing the follow-up actions taken by the
management on the issues raised by Internal Audit, external
audit and regulators, with reporting to the AC on quarterly
basis.
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2024 &, ETFERERMEEERE SRR IERICERR
INERTE , BATSHR(EX I BIEEZR SIS 7 HERET,
BIREXREEERRNNIREX L RIFE S B
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast-changing environment. We
are committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and robust
business practices to achieve sustainable, long-term growth.
We continually strengthen our risk management practices to
support our strategic objectives.

In 2024, in response to China regulator, National Financial
Regulatory Administration’s (“NFRA") requirements, we updated
and released an internal guideline on country risk management
which governs all the activities relating to identification,
assessment, monitoring and control country risk of the Bank.
This guideline improves our existing country risk management
practice by including new regulatory rules, helps the bank more
comprehensively and dynamically assess country risk profile
and to mitigate potential risk arising from business activities.

In 2024, following the regulations in the Measures on
Operational Risk Management issued by NFRA, we have revised
the Operational Risk Management Framework and Policy by
incorporating the principles of operational risk management and
operational risk appetite transmission mechanism, clarified the
risk governance and management responsibilities, refining the
process on the disclosure of operational loss and reporting of
incidents, and etc, for continuous optimization of operational risk
management in the bank. We also established a methodology
for assessing third-party concentration risk exposures of critical
business services ("CBS") to strengthen our management of
concentration risk exposure to key third-party service providers.

In 2024, the Bank adopted the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital based on
new Capital Management Rules issued by the NFRA, and
implemented a new profit and loss (P&L) workflow to integrate
and automate multiple processes into a single platform, to
enhance the robustness of the daily P&L reporting process for
Global Markets business.

As part of our ongoing efforts to improve the risk culture within
the Bank and raise colleagues’ awareness on how to balance
growth with stability, UOB China (UOBC) Risk Management
held its second annual Risk Forum on 28 November 2024
with the theme ‘Building a Resilient Bank' The focus was
on managing risks and inculcating a resilient risk culture to
support sustainable business growth for China and ASEAN
in the year ahead. The session included an award ceremony
for the UOBC Top Risk Culture Stars. Continued rollout of 'Risk
Outreach’ Programme during the year, with Risk, Governance
& Compliance (GRC) teams travelling to UOBC branches to
showcase best risk practices and share case studies, as well as
new or updated risk policies, with branches colleagues across
the 4 Regions of China.
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Maintaining A Sound Risk Culture

A strong risk culture is vital to the long-term sustainability
of the Bank’s business franchise. Specifically, risk culture
refers to the norms, attitudes and behaviours related to risk
awareness, risk-taking and risk management, and controls
that shape decisions on risks. At UOB, our risk culture is
based on our values. A strong risk culture ensures that our
decisions and actions are considered and focused on our
stakeholders, and that we are not distracted by short-term
gains.

UOB'’s Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term value

for our customers and other stakeholders. Our risk culture is

built on four principles:

* Enforcing robust risk governance;

* Balancing growth with stability;

* Ensuring accountability for all our risk-based decisions
and actions;

« Encouraging awareness, engagement and consistent
behaviour in every employee.

Each of these principles is based on our distinctive set of
values that guides every action we take. In entrenching
our risk culture further across our franchise, we uphold our
commitment to financial safety and soundness; fair outcomes
and appropriate support for our stakeholders; sustainable
and prudent approach to business and performance based
on integrity, ethics and discipline.
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Maintaining a sound risk culture across our franchise
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Our risk culture is embedded in our risk management
strategy across the Bank so as to facilitate ongoing
effective discovery, management and mitigation of risks
arising from our business activities and external factors,
and to use capital efficiently to address these risks.
Risks are managed within levels established by senior
management committees and approved by the Board
and its committees. We have put in place frameworks,
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that help
us to identify, measure, monitor and to manage material
risks faced by the Bank. These enables us to focus on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.
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Risk Governance

Our risk frameworks, policies and appetite provide the
principles and guidance for the Bank’s risk management
activities. They guide our key decisions for capital
management, strategic planning and budgeting, and
performance management to ensure that the risk dimension
is appropriately and adequately considered. Risk reports are
submitted regularly to senior management committees and
the Board to keep them apprised of the Bank's risk profile.

UOB China has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks
by NFRA. We take a prudent and proactive approach
in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape, with
emphasis on sound risk management principles in delivering
sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount
of capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised taking into account all material risks. Stress
testing is conducted to determine capital adequacy under
stressed conditions.

Responsibility for risk management starts with Board

oversight of Bank’s governance structure, which ensure that

the Bank’s business activities are:

« conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

+ consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

* subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

Our Board is assisted primarily by the Executive Committee
(EXCO) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in
the oversight of risks. The Board also reviews the overall risk
appetite and level of risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

Our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has established senior
management committees to assist him in making business
decisions with due consideration for risks and returns. The
main senior management committees involved in this are the
Management Committee (MC), Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO), In-Country Credit Committee (ICCC), Operational
Risk Management Committee (ORMC), Consumer Rights
Protection Committee (CRPC), Risk and Capital Committee
(RCQ), Anti Money Laundering Committee (AMLC), Connected
Transactions Management Committee (CTMC) and
Information & Technology Committee (ITC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.
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KPE8IE4EH) | Risk Governance Structure

Management and the senior management committees are
authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business lines
and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is the responsibility of every employee in
the Bank. We strive to instill awareness of the risks created
by their actions and the accountability for the consequences
of those actions in our employees. We have an established
framework to ensure appropriate oversight, accountability
and management of all risk types encountered in the course
of our business.

Our organisational control structure is based on the Three
Lines model as follows:
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First line - The Risk Owner: The business and support units
own and have primary responsibility for implementing and
executing effective controls to manage the risks arising from
their business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and to
highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes and
unexpected risk events.

Second line - Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight
functions (i.e. Risk Management and Compliance), and the
Chief Risk Officer as the Second Line, support the Bank’s
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing
risk frameworks, policies, appetite and limits within which the
business functions must adhere to and comply with in their
operations. They are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank's risk profile and for
highlighting any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to
the respective senior management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions from
business functions ensures that the necessary checks and
balances are in place.

Third line - Independent Audit: Internal auditors conduct
risk-based audits covering all aspects of the First and Second
Lines to provide independent assurance to the CEQ, the
Audit Committee (AC) and the Board, on the adequacy and
effectiveness of our system of risk management and internall
controls. The internal auditor's overall opinion of the internal
controls and risk management system is provided to the AC
and the Board annually.

RISK APPETITE

UOB China has established a risk appetite framework to
define the amount of risk we are able and willing to take
in pursuit of our business objectives. It ensures that the
Bank's risk profile remains within well-defined and tolerable
boundaries. The framework was formulated based on the
following key criteria:

» alignment to the Bank’s key business strategy;

* relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

* practical, consistent and easy-to-understand metrics for
communication and implementation; and

« analytically-substantiated and measurable metrics.
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The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits
across key areas of credit risk, country risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, operational risk, technology risk and conduct
risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses
which we understand and whose risk we are well-equipped
to manage. This approach helps us to minimise earnings
volatility, and ensures that our high credit ratings, strong
capital and stable funding base remain intact. This way, we
will remain a steadfast partner of our customers through
changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB China's risk appetite framework and risk appetite
are reviewed and approved annually by the Board.
Management monitors and reports the risk profiles and
compliance with the Bank's risk appetite to the Board and
BRMC on a regular basis.

MATERIAL RISKS

UOB China's business strategies, products, customer
profiles and operating environment expose us to a number
of financial and non-financial risks. Identifying and
monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank’s approach to
risk management. It enables us to make proper assessment
and to mitigate these risks proactively across the Bank. The
table below summarises the key risks that could impact the
achievement of the Bank's strategic objectives. Details of
these key risks can be found on the following pages.

BAN

Material Risk

(B

Credit Risk

MmN
Market Risk

BRIENFL
Operational
Risk

SRBEAD
M=
Strategic and
Business Risk

EX
Definition
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The risk of loss arising from failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when
they are due.
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The risk of loss from movements in the market rates
or prices (such as changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and
credit spreads) of the underlying asset. It includes
interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) which is
the potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings
due to changes in the interest rates environment.
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The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Such loss may be in the form of
financial loss or other damage, for example, loss of
reputation and public confidence that will impact
our creditability and/or ability to transact, to
maintain liquidity and/or to obtain new business.
Operational Risk includes banking operations
risk, conduct risk, fraud risk, legal risk, regulatory
compliance risk, reputational risk, technology risk,
and third party & outsourcing risk and fraud risk
but excludes strategic and business risk.
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Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective
negative impact on earnings, capital or reputation
arising from adverse strategic decisions,
improper implementation of decisions or a lack of
responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on
earnings or capital arising from changes in business
parameters such as volumes, margins and costs.
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Through the Bank’'s credit risk management
framework, policies, models and limits.

KTHIE T I NCERER. BER. XN ERIMN
RPEREUATTRLEE, SIE T A ARNREIEESR,
RATHCEF =R XL B BRI X P PR &A1 T IR1T K S A
KRLEE,

Through the Bank’s market risk management
framework, policies, Value-at-Risk (VaR) models
and limits. IRRBB is managed through the Bank'’s
balance sheet risk management framework and
interest rate risk in the banking book management
policies and limits.
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Through the respective risk management frameworks,
policies, and operational risk management
programmes including Key Risk and Control Self-
Assessments, Key Operational Risk Indicators,
Incident Reporting, Management Risk Awareness,
Outsourcing Risk Assessment, Third Party Non-
outsourcing Risk Assessment, Product Programme
and Scenario Analysis.

RIEREXABERHTRBNNER, HHSRE

BREGRNTHE.

Through overall risk governance framework and
oversight by senior management committees.
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The risk that arises from the Bank's inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as
they fall due.
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Financial crime risk is defined as the risk of
regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or damage to
the UOB China’s reputation and franchise value
that may arise when the UOB China fails to comply
with anti-financial crime laws, regulations, rules,
standards, or codes of conduct (established by
industry associations) that are applicable to the
UOB China’s business activities and operations.
Financial crime risk types include money
laundering, terrorism financing, internal fraud,
mules and scams, bribery and corruption, and all
other illegal or unethical dealings.
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This is the risk arising from:

* the use of inappropriate model that is unable
to accurately evaluate market prices, or that is
not a mainstream model in the market (such as
pricing models); or

* inaccurately estimating the probability or
magnitude of future losses (such as risk
measurement models) and the use of those
estimates.
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ESG risk refers to both financial risks (i.e. credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk), and non-financial risks
(e.g., operational risk and reputational damage),
arising from ESG issues, including climate change.
While a key component of ESG risk arises indirectly
from the financial services we provide to our
customers, it can also result directly from our own
operations.
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How risk is managed
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Through the Bank's balance sheet risk management
framework, liquidity risk management policies, ratios
and limits.
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Through the financial crime risk management
relevant framework, policies, procedures and
management tolerance.
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Managed under the respective material risk types
for which there is a quantitative model.
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The different aspects of ESG risk are managed
through the relevant frameworks, policies and
guidelines, including the Environment Risk
Management Framework and Responsible
Financing Policy.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when they are due. It is the single largest risk that we face
in our core business as a commercial bank, arising primarily
from loans and other lending-related commitments to retail,
corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capitall
market operations and investments also expose the Bank to
counterparty and issuer credit risks.

We adopt a holistic approach towards assessing credit risk
and ensure that managing credit risk is part of an integrated
approach to enterprise risk management. Integral to the
management of credit risk is a framework that clearly
defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk. We continually
monitor the operating environment to identify emerging risks
and formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC support the CEO and board committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures and
serve as executive forums for discussions on all credit-related
matters. The RCC approves the Bank’s credit risk management
policies, and also reviews and assesses the Bank's credit
portfolios and credit risk profiles. The ICCC is delegated
with credit discretionary limits by the EXCO to approve credit
facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or counterparties.

The Credit Risk Management Division develops bank-
wide credit policies and guidelines and facilitates business
development within a framework that results in prudent,
consistent and efficient credit risk management. It is
responsible for the reporting, analysis and management
of credit risk to the relevant management committees. The
comprehensive credit risk reports cover the Bank's overall
credit portfolio across various dimensions including country,
industry, product and business segment.
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Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to
manage credit risk in the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are segregated
to maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process. Credit approval authority is delegated to
officers based on their experience, seniority and track record.
All credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines which are reviewed periodically
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank's business
strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review
and monitoring, credit stress-testing, limits setting, pricing
and collections. The credit risk models are validated
independently before they are implemented to ensure they
are fit for purpose. The robustness of these rating models is
monitored on an ongoing basis, and all models are subject to
annual reviews conducted by model owners to ascertain that
the chosen risk factors and assumptions continue to remain
relevant for the respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk
can be determined with a high degree of certainty during
the contractual period, counterparty credit risk exposure
fluctuates with market variables. Counterparty credit risk is
measured as the sum of current mark-to-market value and
an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure
(PFE). The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit
exposure over the remaining life of the foreign exchange (FX)
/ derivative transaction and it is used for limit-setting and
internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing
transactions are typically mitigated through agreements such
as the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA)
Master Agreements, the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors (NAFMII) Master Agreements and the
Derivatives Trading of China Securities and Futures Market(SAC)
Master Agreements. Such agreements help to minimise credit
exposure in the event of a default by allowing us to offset what we
owe to a counterparty against what is due from that counterparty.
We have also established policies and processes to manage
wrong-way risk, i.e. where the counterparty credit exposure is
positively correlated with its default risk.
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In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through
Central Counterparties, where possible, to reduce
counterparty credit exposure further through multilateral
netting and the daily margining process.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure
or from multiple exposures that are closely correlated. We
manage such risks by setting exposure limits on borrowers,
obligor groups, portfolios, industries and countries, generally
expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base.
We manage our credit risk exposures through a robust credit
underwriting, structuring and monitoring process.

Based on portfolio management and regulatory reporting in
2024, the Bank has fully complied with the regulatory Large
Exposure Management requirement.

Country risk has been integrated into our comprehensive risk
management framework. As at 31 December 2024, our country
risk exposures were within country risk limits with no significant
exposure in any single country. There were no country risk events
which had significant adverse impact in a country or region that
we have credit exposure. The country risk of these countries and
regions is categorized as under the “Low Country Risk” grade
with no additional country risk provision required.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is a core component of our credit
portfolio management process. We conduct stress tests to
assess if our capital can withstand credit portfolio losses
resulting from stress scenarios, and their impact on our
profitability and balance sheet quality. Stress tests also help
us to identify the vulnerability of various business units and
enable us to formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Our internal stress test scenarios consider potential and
plausible macroeconomic and geopolitical events in varying
degrees of likelihood and severity. These are developed in
consultation with relevant business units and approved by
senior management committees.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety of
instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. The Bank would generally not grant
credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.
All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on the
credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing
ability of the borrower.
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We take collateral whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored
periodically and the frequency of valuation depends on
the type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral value.
The collaterals are mostly in the form of properties. Cash,
marketable securities, equipment, inventories and receivables
may also be accepted. We have policies and processes
to monitor collateral concentration. Haircuts that reflect
the underlying nature, quality, volatility and liquidity of the
collaterals would be applied to the market value of collaterals
as appropriate.

When extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we often take personal guarantees to
secure the moral commitment from the principal shareholders
and directors. Corporate guarantees are often obtained
when the borrower’s creditworthiness is not sufficient to
justify an extension of credit.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management
We regularly monitor credit exposures, portfolio performance
and emerging risks that may impact our credit risk profile. The
Board and senior management are updated on credit trends
through internal risk reports. An early alert process has also
been put in place whereby vulnerable accounts are escalated
by the business units to senior management for discussion on
account strategy and remedial actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We closely monitor the delinquency of borrowing accounts,
which is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is
considered delinquent when payment has not received by
the payment due date. All delinquent accounts, including
revolving credit facilities with limit excesses, are closely
monitored and managed through a disciplined process by
officers from business units and risk management function.
Where appropriate, such accounts are also subject to more
frequent credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our financial assets and review them periodically
in accordance with regulatory requirements and internal
guidelines. There is an independent credit review process to
ensure the appropriateness of loan grading and provisioning.
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All financial assets are categorised as ‘Pass; ‘Special Mention’
or 'Non-performing’ ‘Non-performing’ or impaired financial
assets are further sub-divided into ‘Substandard; ‘Doubtful’ or
‘Loss’ in accordance with regulatory guidelines. Any financial
assets’ principal, interests or proceeds which is delinquent (or
in excess of the approval limit for a revolving credit facility) for
more than 90 days will automatically be categorised as ‘Non-
performing’ In addition, any financial assets that exhibits
weaknesses which are likely to adversely affect repayment
on existing terms may be categorised as ‘Non-performing’.
The accounting definition of impaired and the regulatory
definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and de-classification of a ‘Non-performing’
financial assets to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention' status must
be supported by a credit assessment of the repayment
capability, cash flows and financial position of the obligor.
We must also be satisfied that the financial asset has
exhibited a sustained trend of improvement.

A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants
concessions to a borrower because of a deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower or the inability of the
borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.

A restructured account shall be placed on the appropriate
grade based on our assessment of the financial condition of
the borrower and the ability of the borrower to repay under
the restructured terms.

Loss provision is made in line with the Bank’s impairment
policy and regulatory guidelines after careful consideration
of the future recovery value including liquidation of collateral
of the non-performing financial asset. A non-performing
financial asset is written off when the prospect of a recovery
is considered poor or when all feasible avenues of recovery
have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management functions are in place with
independent units that respectively manage the restructuring,
workout and recovery of Bank’'s corporate and retail
mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary objectives
are to nurse non-performing accounts back to financial
health whenever possible for transfer back to business unit
for management; and to maximise recovery of such accounts
that the Bank intends to exit.

As at 31 December 2024, total non-performing loans amounted
to RMB 5371 million, representing 1.4 per cent of the Bank's total
loans portfolio. Non-performing loan coverage ratio was 168.6
per cent and provision-to-loan ratio was 2.4 per cent, all meet
the regulatory minimum requirement of 130.0 per cent and 1.8
per cent respectively in 2024*.
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Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss from movements in the
market rates or prices (such as changes in interest rates, FX
rates, equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads)
of the underlying asset.

Market risk is governed by our ALCO, which meets monthly
to review and provide directions on market risk matters.
The Market Risk Management and Product Control (MRPC)
and Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) divisions
support the RCC, ALCO and BRMC with independent
assessment of the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank’'s market risk framework comprises market
risk policies, practices, and governance structure with
appropriate delegation of authority and market risk
limits. We employ valuation methodologies that are in
line with sound market practices and validate valuation
and risk models independently. In addition, the Product/
Service Programme process ensures that different risks,
including market risk issues, are identified and adequately
addressed prior to launch.

One of our main objectives in undertaking trading activities
is to provide customer-centric products and services to
support our customers' business and hedging needs.
We continually review and enhance our management of
derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
Bank's business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted
revenue at the Bank and business unit levels and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits are
set based on expected returns that are commensurate with
the risks taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank and the Bank’'s non-trading FX exposures.
The Bank is mainly exposed to market risk in its trading
portfolios that arises from changes in interest rates, FX
rates and commodity prices from the Bank's client-driven
market making and product structuring activities as well as
trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital.
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The Internal Models Approach is used to measure and
control trading market risks. The Bank estimates a daily
Expected Shortfall (ES) within a 97.5 per cent confidence
interval over a one-day holding period, using the historical
VaR simulation method, as a control for market risk. This
method assumes observed historical market movements
can be used to imply possible future changes in market
rates. ES is the average of the worst losses in the
distribution, assuming that the losses exceed the specified
percentile.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to
event risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of
plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2024 was RMB 15.79
million, well within the Bank’s total ES limit.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within
a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding
period. VaR uses the same loss distribution as ES. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions
are due to model deficiencies or market volatility.
All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with
recommended actions and resolutions. Nil hypothetical
P&L backtesting exception was noted for trading book in
the year under review.
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Interest Rate Risk In The Banking Book

lInterest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as
the risk of potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings
due to changes in the interest rates environment.

We strive to meet customers’ demands and preferences for
products with various interest rate structures and maturities.
Mismatches in repricing and other characteristics of
assets and liabilities give rise to sensitivity to interest rate
movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over
time, these mismatches may result in a change in the bank's
economic net worth and/or a decline in earnings. Qur
primary objective of managing IRRBB is to protect and to
enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a
broad range of possible economic conditions.

The ALCO oversees the effectiveness of the interest
rate risk management structure including approval of
policies, controls and limits. The BSRM Division supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book. IRRBB is mainly managed by shaping the
desired risk exposure and tenor profile of the banking
book taking into consideration the overall balance sheet
position and market outlook. Behavioral models used are
independently validated and governed by approved policy.
The management and mitigation of IRRBB through hedging
are managed through ALCO-approved product mandates
with specified currencies, tenors and limits to ensure that
the risk management and hedging activities operate within
an approved delegation of authority structure. Derivatives
used for hedging banking book positions are designated
as hedging instruments where the qualifying criteria for
hedge accounting are met. Derivatives not designated in
an effective hedge accounting relationship are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss.

Our Bank's banking book interest rate risk exposure is
quantified on a monthly basis using dynamic simulation
techniques. We employed a holistic approach towards
balance sheet risk management, using an in-house
enterprise risk management system to integrate liquidity
risk and IRRBB into a single platform to facilitate the Bank'’s
reporting in a timely manner.
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Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods,
currencies and embedded options and interest rate basis.
Embedded options may be in the form of loan prepayment
and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic Value of
Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in
EVE under different interest rate scenarios. This economic
perspective measures interest rate risks across the full
maturity profile of the balance sheet, including off-balance
sheet items. We estimate the potential effects of interest
rate changes on Net Interest Income (NIl) by simulating
the possible future course of interest rates and expected
changes in business activities over time. Mismatches in the
longer tenor will experience greater change in EVE than
similar positions in the shorter tenor while mismatches in
the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on NII. Interest
rate scenarios used in simulations include the six standard
scenarios prescribed by Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision as well as internal scenarios covering historical
interest rate movement and hypothetical scenarios. These
scenarios cover changes in the shape of the yield curve,
including Steepener and flattener, parallel shift, as well as
short rate up and down scenarios.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management
of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial
market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest

rates, FX rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from our inability to
meet its obligations or fund increases in assets as they
fall due. We maintain sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
that addresses known as well as unanticipated cash
funding needs.

Liguidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework

of policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO.

These policies, controls and limits enable us to monitor and

to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources of

funds are available over a range of market conditions. This

is done by:

* minimising excessive funding concentrations by
diversifying the sources and terms of funding, and

* maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable
debt securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank's liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits,
ensuring that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that
there are adequate liquid assets to meet potential cash
shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is actively managed to
ensure a balance between cost-effectiveness, continued
accessibility to funds and diversification of funding sources.
Important factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive
pricing, proactive management of the Bank’s core deposits
and the maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed
on a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored
under business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the bank's
liquidity exposure. We also employ liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency
situations. Our Liquidity Ratio (LR), High Quality Liquid
Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR) and Liquidity Matching
Ratio (LMR) are above the regulatory requirements.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning
indicators. Crisis management processes and various
strategies including funding and communication plans
have been developed to minimise the impact of any
liquidity crunch.
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* Fraud risk which has pertinent operational or reputational risk elements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems, or from external events. Operational risk includes
banking operations risk, conduct risk, fraud risk*, legal risk,
regulatory compliance risk, reputational risk, technology
risk, and third-party and outsourcing risk but excludes
strategic and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation
and operating environment. Operational risk is managed
through a framework of policies and procedures to help
business and support units properly identify, assess,
monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The ORMC meets
monthly to provide oversight of operational risk matters in
the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the
Three Lines Model. The Operational Risk Management
Division, as part of the Second Line, provides overarching
governance of operational risk through relevant
frameworks, policies, programmes and systems. The
division also monitors operational risk incidents, Key Risk
and Control Self-assessment results, outsourcing and
third-party non-outsourcing matters, Key Operational
Risk Indicator breaches, product and services programme
matters and operational risks identified by the First Line.
Material risks are then reported to the relevant senior
management committees and the Board to ensure they are
promptly escalated and addressed.

Three key components of our Operational Risk
Management Framework are risk identification, key risk
control self-assessments and risk mitigation. These are
achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of a set
of operational risk programmes. Several risk mitigation
policies and programmes are also in place to maintain a
sound operating environment. Total Operational Loss in
the year as of 31 Dec 2024 was CNY177,600.

Our business continuity and crisis management
programmes ensure prompt recovery of critical business
services and functions in the event of unforeseen events
or business disruptions. Scenario exercises are conducted
to test the effectiveness of the business continuity plans
and crisis management protocol. An annual attestation is
provided to the Board on the state of business continuity
readiness of the Bank.
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Our insurance programme covers crime and civil liability,
cyber liability, property damage, terrorism, public liability,
as well as directors’ and officers’ liability. The programme
reduces operational losses through adequate insurance
coverage.

We adopt the Basic Indicator Approach for the calculation
of Operational Risk Capital.

The subject-specific key risks that we focus on include, but
are not limited to the risks discussed below:

Conduct Risk

Conduct risk is the risk of improper employee behaviour
or action that results in unfair stakeholder outcomes,
negative impact on market integrity and other issues
that damage the reputation of the bank. We manage
conduct risk through a multi-faceted approach leveraging
the frameworks, policies and procedures on operational
risk management, internal fraud management, whistle-
blowing, employee discipline, individual accountability,
code of conduct, remuneration, fair dealing and anti-
money laundering. The corporate governance oversight of
conduct risk is provided by the BRMC and is supported by
the ORMC.

Legal Risk

Legal risks are risks to the Bank’s financial position,
operations or reputation arising out of unenforceable/
unfavourable/defective/unintended contracts, lawsuits
or claims involving the Bank, developments in laws and
regulations, non-compliance with applicable laws. Business
and support units work with both internal and external
legal counsel to ensure that legal risks are effectively
managed.
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Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or damage to the Bank's
reputation and franchise value that may arise when the
Bank fails to comply with laws, regulations, rules, standards
or codes of conduct (established by industry associations)
applicable to the Bank’s business activities and operations;
or the risk that a change in laws and regulations can
increase the cost of operation and the cost of capital for
the Bank thereby impacting the Bank’s earnings or returns.
To mitigate such risks, we identify, monitor and manage risk
via the Regulatory Compliance Risk Governance framework,
supported by policies, procedures and guidelines.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank's business practices,
activities and financial condition. We recognise the impact
of reputational risk and manage the risk through the Bank’s
Reputational Risk Management Framework and Policy,
which sets the guiding principles for risk identification,
monitoring, reporting and mitigation of risk exposure, and
communication with our stakeholders.

Technology Risk
Technology risk is defined as any potential adverse

outcome, damage, loss, violation, failure or disruption
arising from the use of or reliance on information
and communication technologies. The governance of
technology risk rests with the ORMC, which facilitates
a holistic oversight of operational risk matters across
the Bank. Our Technology Risk Management Framework
ensures that technology and cyber risks are managed in a
systematic and consistent manner. The scope of technology
risk management covers many aspects, including
technology asset management, technology resiliency
and the service continuity aspects of business continuity
management, cybersecurity management and information
security management.

The Technology Risk Management Division, as part
of the Second Line, has governance and oversight of
technology risk management across the Bank. The team
works with business and support units, including the
technology and information security teams, oversee, review
and to strengthen their current practices in technology
risk management. We adopt a risk-based approach in
assessing and managing technology and cyber risks. The
Board, senior management and the ORMC are briefed
regularly on technology risk appetite and technology risk
matters.
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Third-party and outsourcing risk

Third-party risk, including non-outsourcing risk and
outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational,
reputational, legal and compliance impact arising from
the failure of a service provider to provide the service or
to comply with legal and regulatory requirements, or a
service provider's breaches of security. We manage this risk
through the Third-Party and Outsourcing Risk Management
Framework, policy, procedures and guidelines, supported
by outsourcing and third-party risk management module in
our Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) system.
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Financial Crime Risk

Financial crime risk is defined as the risk of regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or damage to the Bank's
reputation and franchise value that may arise when
the Bank fails to comply with anti-financial crime laws,
regulations, rules, standards, or codes of conduct
(established by industry associations) that are applicable
to the Bank’s business activities and operations. Financial
crime risk types include money laundering, terrorism
financing, internal fraud, mules and scams, bribery and
corruption, and all other illegal or unethical dealings.

Money laundering, terrorism financing and sanctions
risks collectively relates to the risk of being involved in
or abetting money laundering activities and violating
sanctions laws and regulations that will damage the
Bank’s reputation as an established organisation with
strong and robust anti-money laundering/countering the
financing of terrorism and sanctions regime. The coverage
of money laundering risk extends to its predicate offences,
such as tax evasion.

Internal Fraud risk is defined as the risk of any intentional
act or attempt by UOB China employee(s) to misrepresent,
deceive, or conceal for a personal or business gain, or to
avoid a disadvantage. Internal Fraud is not restricted to
monetary or material benefits.

Mules risk refers to the risk of bank accounts being abused by
customers, knowingly or unknowingly, to facilitate transfers or
movements of money illegally acquired (e.g., scam proceeds)
on behalf of someone else, while scams risk refers to external
fraud risk where customers are deceitfully or criminally misled
through dishonest schemes, leading them to make financial
transactions, or give away personal details or data ultimately
resulting in the theft of money in their accounts.

Bribery occurs when an individual (directly or indirectly)
promises, offers, gives, or seeks, accepts, or receives a
payment or favour (monetary or otherwise) to improperly
influence a business outcome or to confer an unfair business
advantage. Bribery and corruption risks may arise in the
course of activities, e.g., interaction with public officials
and state-owned or state-controlled entities, provision or
acceptance of gifts and entertainment, engagement of third
parties, hiring, donations and sponsorships.

UOB China has a zero tolerance approach to financial crimes.
We do not engage in any activity involving sanctioned
individuals, entities, countries or territories, subject to the
extent permissible by sanctions laws or if these activities falll
outside UOB China's management tolerance. We conduct our
business activities in full compliance with all applicable anti-
financial crime laws and regulations, including the sanctions
lows and regulations in the jurisdictions in which our Group
entities operate.
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Environmental Social And Governance Risk

ESG risk includes both financial risks, i.e. credit risk,
market risk and liquidity risk, and non-financial risks, (e.g.,
operational risk and reputation damage), arising from ESG
issues such as climate change. While a key component
of ESG risk arises indirectly from the financial services we
provide to our customers, it can also result directly from
our own operations. ESG governance and control process
are put in place to identify and review ESG factors material
to the Bank, and ensures that sustainability factors are
considered in aspects of our operations (including day-
to-day decision-making processes). The specific risk
associated with each factor is monitored and managed
in accordance with the respective framework, policy or
guidelines.

Specific to our wholesale financing and capital market
activities, the Bank ensure that ESG considerations
are integrated into the credit evaluation and approval
processes. To this end, we have incorporated our
Responsible Financing Policy (approved by the RCC) a part
of the Bank’s Corporate Credit Policy.

Account officers are required to conduct due diligence on all
new and existing customers during the client onboarding
process and annual credit review. Under our Responsible
Financing Policy, customers are assessed for material
ESG risk, including alignment with the Bank's responsible
financing exclusion list, as well as their capacity for,
commitment to and track record in ESG risk management.
Customers in the ESG-sensitive industries per responsible
financing guidelines are subject to enhanced due diligence
with sector-specific guidelines. All customers are classified
based on the level of ESG risk in their business and are
monitored on an ongoing basis for any adverse ESG-
related news. Those with any known material ESG-related
incidents would trigger an immediate review to address the
ESG risks appropriately.
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Strategic And Business Risk

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative
impact on earnings, capital or reputation arising from
adverse strategic decisions, improper implementation of
decisions or a lack of responsiveness to industry, economic
or technological changes. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such
as volumes, margins and costs. The sources of business
risk include uncompetitive products or pricing, internal
inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions
such as market contraction or changes in customers'
expectations and demand. It is the risk of not achieving the
Bank’s short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management
committees are responsible for managing risks associated
with the Bank’s business. The Executive Committee assist
the Board in relation to the management of strategic and
business risks. The CEQ, supported by senior management
committees oversee the day-to-day management of the
Bank and make business decisions within the Bank’s risk
appetite. The Bank's strategy is then translated into annual
financial targets, taking into account the macroeconomic
environment, and cascaded to specific business for
development and implementation.
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In 2024, UOB China marks the 10" year of practicing
consumer rights protection. We have been putting
efforts to enhance our consumer protection framework
and mechanism, strengthen fair dealing conduct and
information disclosure process, improve customer complaint
handling efficiency and experience and promote financial
literacy and consumer education. We focus on identify and
resolve the root cause and reinforce the accountability to
reduce the number of customer complaints.

Putting customers at the core of everything we do, we are
also committed to providing an independent, accountable
and objective process that addresses customer complaints
in a fair, transparent, comprehensive and efficient manner.

In 2024, we received 46 customer complaints, of which
43 were Retail Banking complaints mainly from Shanghai,
Beijing, Chongqging, Shenyang, Tianjin and Xiamen
branches and three were Wholesale Banking complaints
from Shanghai and Beijing branches. The overall number of
complaints decreased by about 30 per cent year-on-year.
About 91 per cent of complaints were closed within 15 days
and took an average of six calendar days.
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As part of our corporate social responsibility commitments,
UOB China actively promotes financial literacy to raise
consumer awareness on cyber scams and consumer rights
protection.

Throughout the year, we organised different anti-scam
activities against most common fraud in the name of
elderly care and scam of illegal representation in consumer
rights protection and illegal loan agency. Not only we
developed anti-scam guide leaflets, but also produced
three microfilms and published more than 50 articles on
our official website, WeChat accounts and external social
media channels. The films and articles garnered more than
800,000 views. Qur branches across 13 cities reached
out to local communities and carried out more than 180
educational activities. In Shanghai, we co-organised a
number of anti-fraud seminars to senior group of the
communities. By sharing of real-life cases, we helped
seniors improve financial literacy and uplift their awareness
on fraud prevention and privacy security protection.

HITBIZRERMRAREMEREHETE RNRIFEZTIE
Our bank actively promotes financial literacy and fraud prevention via
different channels.
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1)  Shareholder status update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited.
Shareholdings: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were
no split or merger activities or other
major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank's directors, supervisor
or senior executives was penalised by
the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

e On 30 December 2024, UOB China signed an agreement
with Fubon Bank (China) to transfer the retail banking
portfolio to Fubon Bank (China). The portfolio includes
customers’ bank accounts, deposits, mortgages and
related wealth management products held by individual
customers. The transfer has no material impact on the
Bank’s financials.
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Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Areq,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'An Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 1POT1, 1P Floor,
United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'An District,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,
Grand Gateway Tower 1,
1 Honggiao Road,
Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788
Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade
Zone Sub-branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 408, No. 8, Gangzheng
Building,

No. 849 and No. 855
Huanhuxiyi Road,

Pudong New District
Shanghai, 201306

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906

E=mS1T
ItRHERAXRERE S S
TF S EER C AR

27 |8 2701, 2707, 2708,
2709 73

B84 : 100020

EB1E : (86) (10) 5879 2626
f£H : (86) (10) 8590 6725

FEBS1T
FRETHIRIXAIER=FR 1S
EfFERAO—S AR 21 #
85789 & 10

B4R : 610021

FBiE : (86) (28) 6879 2888
fEE : (86) (28) 86531878

BT

(32l 53)
EBRTHEEXRFCHTS
RAMRFEERFSHO
i 218 2105, 2106 5
B84 : 650000
EB1E : (86) (871) 6555 0777
£E : (86) (871) 6361 6191

M7

(CSPNIZZ))
TN RAX KA 385 5
K& LC1E3801E
HB4R : 510620
FBi%E : (86) (20) 28813688
£H : (86) (20) 8755 8830

EFAS1T
EFRTILRIX AL uLEE 61 5
A EROIE A B

21 06/07 &

R4 : 110013

FBIE : (86) (24) 3121 2168
f£H : (86) (24) 3116 2078

Branch Network I

M=

Beijing Branch

Unit 2701, 2707, 2708, 2709, 27 Floor
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8, 9, 10, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No 1 Section 3 Hongxing Road,
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Kunming Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 and 2106, 21 Floor,
East Tower, MASTER,

No 1 Chongren Street,
Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777
Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Guangzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Suite 3801, TaiKoo Hui Tower 1
385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 2881 3488

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch

Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Fortune Plaza Tower A,
No 61, Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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I Branch Network

EdM =

RN IT
(AU 53)
AT EHXRERE 5016 5
RE—BKE
A-6001-03 Bz
HB4R : 518001
BBIE : (86) (755) 2294 5688
fEH : (86) (755) 8246 3326

EN%1T

BRI 19 S
RERTRE 2 E

HB4R : 361012

EBiE : (86) (592) 508 1601
f£H : (86) (592) 508 1605

KEDT

RETEARKIES
EA=ZERRZO

AL 17 212207, 2208, 2209
HB4 : 300100

EB1%E : (86) (22) 87017070
f£H : (86) (22) 8738 0500

TN 1T

AT AN HEX EIRFR
3505

BERLTIEE 6F 601 602 F
Hi4m : 310005

EB1E : (86) (571) 2809 0666
£H : (86) (571) 8190 9619

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Shenzhen Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey 100,

No 5016 Shennan Road East,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,
No 19 North Hubin Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208 and 2209,
RongHui Plaza,

Changjiang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 87017070

Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Unit 601&602, 6 Floor,

Bank Tower, Winland Center,
No. 350 Xiangjisi Road,
Hangzhou 310005

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

BRA1T
BERTAPRICOTEIR 2 S
BIREBELI 17 TAN Bk
267 08, 09 £t

HBZR : 400010

FEIE : (86) (23) 6037 2888
8 : (86) (23) 6037 2788

BT

(XF 2k 53)
HM T EXEME 88 S
BA 71181801 &
B4 - 215000
BiE : (86) (512) 6298 5200
f£H : (86) (512) 8686 2006

BT

(F A )
IREFUBHL=16 S
Z ZEFRER A
7B 2012
Hik4 : 528400
EBIE : (86) (760) 8770 7666
fEE : (86) (760) 8989 2900

Chongging Branch

26F Unit 08-09,

Tower T4N, Raffles City
Chongging,

No. 2 Changjiang Binjiang Road,
Yuzhong District, Chongging
400011

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,
Jinghope Square,

No 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Zhongshan Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,
Zhisan International Financial
Centre,

No 16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666
Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900

KERTT (PE ) BIRAF

2024 %12 B 31 H
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
31 December 2024
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I AUDITOR'S REPORT

HitiRE
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LikIERR (2025) BFEET70041910_BO1S
KERIT (FE) BRAF

KERT (PE) FRAFDEESR:
— HIER

AV T KERIT (PED BRARMEZRE, 852024512831 HAZE~
ffREk, 2024FEHFIAR. IAENEEHRMNERERUKLME XM S REM
o

VAR, BEMEIRERIT (hED) BRAANMSREERFEASHIRRE
W HENRMERS, RRRRT KRERIT (hED HRAT20245F12831 Bt
SRR 2024 FERNEERRMIMERE .

= EREHERRE

HARBHEEMSHITHETENMOMERNT T HIT TIE. FIHREN “EHS
THA WS MERITNRE” BoE—PER T RNEXLENTHRE. RRPE
EMSTIMERERETN, FAUEZTRERT (hED BRAR, FETTRIE
ELAEMEMSIE. BIVEE, RORBMWEIHERZRS . B4, ALKREHE
IR T A

= EEEMEEENMSRERNRE

AERIT (RED ARQAEBRAFRBEWSHENRIERSIMSRE,
EEIIMARRER, FHigit, BUTHEFLZRNATIEE, UAEMSREFAEFEHRT
BRIERSBHEKRER.

ERE M SRR, ERRARFITMARERT (FE) ARLORAMBFEEER
1, WESHEZEEXNER WER) , FERAFBELERE, BRIETRIHITE
B, ZIETERATHAILHERE.

REEARBEARERT (FE) ARARNMSIREDE,

RO ERRKERLUITESHT GFHREREN) BARRITILS
1

HitiRE (80

LikIERR (2025) BFEET0041910_BO1S
KERIT (FE) BRAF

M, GEMR ISR REITORE

EMNPBEFRENMSREBAZSTIFEHTEEIEHRSBNERERRES
BRIE, HEEGAFITELNFITRE. SERIERSKFENRIE, BHFEERIE
REEIDENHITHEITER —EXERFENSELI. BIRTEATHERLER
SH, MREGEFHER MO DERTEZ WY SRERERAZREBEM SRE(EL
HEFTRKR, WBEAAERREKRN.

ERBETENNITEIT TENSES, RNSHBEIRWFIET, HERFRILTFEE.
ElEt, FAMBHITATIME:

(1) RAFFIHE BT EERERSENMSREERERAGE, RiTMLESH
THEF AN LR, FRMFTS . BHMETIERE, (FAXKREITE
WHYERt . RTEEARTEHE. G WRER. EBRFEIRET
AEERlZ £, RELIHTEESBNERCERNNLS T RELIAH
THIRSFHHERERIONE.

(2) THREFEITHEXHARES, UEHeSrEIHERF, BEMFIENAER
EHRNANELEERL.

(3) TN ERRERASTEERNE SMAERSTHETT REXKEN SN

(4) MNEERERFESERINEHMEHEL. BN, RIBRBEHETE
1B, BAURSBNARERT (PE) BRABFELERNTEERERE
HENHFEAREFEERTHEMLBLLER. MRBNBHELIANAE
AEXRTHEM, HIDENERBRNEFHREPRBERREREZIEY
SRERPHERIKE; MREEALTES, RMNEYLRELREER. K
MPERETHEFTREETRENER . R, REHFREHFERAT
RESHAERIT (PE) BRLBTERFEEE.

(5) MM FIRRHDETIR (BFEEKE) « GHNAR, HTFNMSRER
BARRRIEXRZ ZHFIEDL

HMSREEMITRNEITEE,. MERHFNMEAEITARNFERRITAE, €
TERB A S IR B A E S KA A BRI FI B

AOERRKERLUITESHT GFHRERAN) BARARHITILS
2

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited A member firm of Emnst & Young Global Limited

82 KERT (PE) BIRAT 2024FERE UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024 83



84

I AUDITOR'S REPORT

HitiRE

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2025) Shen Zi No 70041910_BO01
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited:

(I) Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited's financial position as at 31 December
2024 and United Overseas Bank (China) Limited'’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises ("ASBEs").

(II) Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China
Standards on Auditing (“CSAs"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited in accordance with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

(Ill) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the
financial statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and

for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the
management either intends to liquidate United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's
financial reporting process.

(IV) Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are generally considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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I AUDITOR'S REPORT

B

PR

Balance Sheet I

2R

A

20245128 31H 31 December 2024
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement a material uncertainty exists related to events or BEE 20244128318 2023& 128318
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud conditions that may cast significant doubt on United NotesV  31December2024  31December 2023
or error, design and perform audit procedures Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s ability to continue O ASSETS:

ive to th sk d obtai dit evid . r lude that terial & M FR P RIBITIIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1 4,848,588,512 5,272,223,492
respo‘nswe-c? ose risks, an .o ain au .| evi encle as a gomg cgncern. we con‘c ude that a ma er|o AR brocious metals 5.682,650,763 2.650.155.486
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention EREN T Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 2,084,443 455 1,582,601,736
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in RS Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 6,540,789,926 3,847,736,934
g P
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for the financial statements or, if such disclosures are ERMER: Financial Investment:
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions - R ERAT -Financial assets held for trading 4 4,093,533,156 5,044,798,336
. . — . . . . . - Hfh{mAug & -Other debt investments 8 10,936,383,131 11,413,490,160
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the e o )
. . o PTEERER Derivative financial assets 5 9,108,289,640 5,403,309,645
the override of internal control. date of our auditor's report. However, future events or TEE S RER Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 4,745,146,955 6,597.500,278
conditions may cause United Overseas Bank (China) BT EBR Loans and advances to customers 7 37,480,091,850 37,840,758,528
(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant Limited to cease to continue as a going concern. B A Fixed assets 9 39,893,512 37,836,562
. . . b= i -of-
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that R Right-of-use assets 10 75,974,062 105,610,643
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the  (5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content RRAF Intangible ossets " 46,141,008 54,507,666
pprop ) o ' . ) ] P T ) BBIEFTISHE Deferred tax assets 12 593,630,505 390,653,834
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the financial statements, including the disclosures, AR Other assets 13 2,071,544,714 2,030,699,894
of internal control. and whether the financial statements represent the Ead=Sas Total assets 89,247,101,194 82,280,883,194
underlying transactions and events in a manner that i LIABILITIES:
. . .. . . . ERIASa=KiukE I i ial instituti ,695,961, ,142,041,

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies achieves fair presentation. Rl R Lt REVIMATERFIR Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 5,695,961,090 3,142,041,426

q d th bl £ . . LY Placements from banks and other financial institutions 15 13,172,148,089 10,289,696,362
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates TR SRR & Financial liabilities held for trading 16 1,565,148,966 2,827,366,352
and related disclosures made by the management. We communicate with those charged with governance TSR E Derivative financial liabilities 5 10,304,020,749 5.456,157,045

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and FHEMERIZ ] Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 17 190,007,649 -

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s  timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including TR Customer deposits 18 43,338,201,856 45,374,714,077

) ) ) - L VIR Empl benefit bl 19 129,059,106 177,942,245

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, any significant deficiencies in internal control that we E{EH i mployee benefits payable
. . . . . . . R73Z R 2R Tax payables 20 270,121,466 238,438,982
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether identify during our audit. - Bonds payable 21 2,596,461,695 3,830,066,856
Rt Provisions 22 120,138,721 151,892,068
. . . . ) o HEAGR Lease liabilities 23 70,351,579 99,734,875
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou, Mingjun & Other liabilities 24 1,165,037,949 395,682,602
AfRAET Total liabilities 78,616,658,915 71,983,732,890

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yu, Liangyu FRE & EQUITY:

KU HEA Paid-up capital 25 7,500,000,000 7,500,000,000
. . RAERTR Capital reserve 26 42,868,786 24,630,034
Shanghai China 19 March 2025 Hitm & Other comprehensive income 27 116,868,745 34,564,042
BRI Surplus reserves 28 281,841,616 258,566,764
—RE B General reserves 29 947,725,837 916,490,307
RO ERFE Unappropriated profit 30 1,741,137,295 1,562,899,157
FEEN&EEIT Total equity 10,630,442,279 10,297,150,304
AR RFEENGE ST Total liabilities and equity 89,247,101,194 82,280,883,194

JEMIIT S IR E 9 AN 55 1R 2 HIAE e AF 57

The accompanying notes to financialgtatements form an integral part of these financial statements.

AN SIRRAUTALEE:
The financial statements have been sined by:

TEREEWNITE. EF . {77
President and CEQ, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan

HEWSEE R
CFO: Brian Zhu Xuan
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I Income Statement

AIPEIES

20245 E Year ended 31 December 2024

AT Expressed in RMB Yuan

MEER 2024 & 2023 &£
Notes V 2024 2023
—. BN 1.0perating income
FIEBN Interest income 31 2,370,849,159 2,457,293,784
FEZE Interest expense 31 (1,269,417,276) (1,259,319,588)
FISAUIN Net interest income 31 1,101,431,883 1,197,974,196
FHERAERN Fee and commission income 32 206,454,170 201,233,271
FoERASIH Fee and commission expense 32 (53,968,272) (43,644,444)
FEBERAERBN Net fee and commission income 32 152,485,898 157,588,827
AR Investment income 33 989,183,916 652,614,534
YN N RS ES Losses from changes in fair value 34 (676,032,171) (435,073,481)
L5l Foreign exchange gains 35 226,245,992 299,759,533
A BN Gains on disposal of assets 6,360 97,712
Hitras Other income 36 6,549,425 14,171,389
Hethlk SN Other operating income 3,108,664 -
SN2 9Ny Total operating income 1,802,979,967 1,887,132,710
Z. Bl 2. Operating expenses
T e Fhn Taxes and surcharges (16,501,476) (17,113,337)
WS EREE General and administrative expenses 37 (1,211,830,984) (1,227,421,212)
ERRERK Credit impairment losses 38 (257,343,346) (160,610,053)
Bl ZHEIT Total operating expenses (1,485,675,806) (1,405,144,602)
=, BUFE 3. Operating profit 317,304,161 481,988,108
e EdIMRAN Add: non-operating income 32,057 134,836
B BT H Less: non-operating expenses (425,379) (960,492)
M9, FHeiFiEsE 4. Profit before income taxes 316,910,839 481,162,452
R FriSHi R Less: Income tax expenses 39 (84,162,319) (117,262,682)
A, EFE 5. Net profit 232,748,520 363,899,770
7~ BRSNS NR SIS 6. Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(—) THEEDIHRRMHEMLE (1) Other comprehensive income that will not be
Gl reclassified to profit or loss
DI ESERREARNE  Change in the fair value of the Bank's own credit 27 100,206 52,378
T risks
(Z) BEHIHRENEMES  (2) Other comprehensive income that may be
s reclassified to profit or loss
UARMEITEBEEZTEIT  Change in the fair value of debt investments at 27 81,508,106 7,369,699
NEMEESWREMNHRSESIEA  fair value through other comprehensive income
AR RNAMELE
UARMEITEBEZE)T  Credit impairment losses of debt investments at 27 696,391 3,660,632
NEMEEWERHRSTA  fair value through other comprehensive income
SR ERARA R
t. ZEKELT 7. Total comprehensive income 315,053,223 374,982,479

JEMIIT S IR EH 20 55 1R 2 HI4H L 5 77
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Statement of Changes in Equity I

FrEENmEr&

2024 % FE Year ended 31 December 2024
AE™ Expressed in RMB Yuan

KUy FE A BEAR Httz el BRAT —REREES ROEFE &it
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves profit
income
EEFYIRE Balance at 7,500,000,000 24,630,034 34,564,042 258,566,764 916,490,307 1,562,899,157 10,297,150,304
beginning of year
AERAZTHSEE  Changes for the year - 18,238,752 82,304,703 23,274,852  31,235530 178,238,138 333,201,975
(=) ZalkE (i) Total - - 82,304,703 - - 232,748,520 315,053,223
St comprehensive
income
(Z) FEELAN (i) Owners' - 18,238,752 - - - - 18,238,752
EINCRES¥iN contributions
and reduction
in capital
1. B2t NFr 1. Share-based - 18,238,752 - - - - 18,238,752
BENENEE  payment
2. FREE/RAEZA 2. Capital - - - - - - -
contributions by
owners
(=) FABHE (i) Profit - - - 23,274,852 31,235,530 (54,510,382) -
distribution
1IREBRAT 1. Appropriation to - - - 23,274,852 - (23,274,852) -
surplus reserves
2. IRER—RRXBCHE 2. Appropriation to - - - - 31,235,530 (31,235,530) -
% general reserves
REFERREN Balance at end of
year 7,500,000,000 42,868,786 116,868,745 281,841,616 947,725,837 1,741,137,295 10,630,442,279
2023 £ Z Year ended 31 December 2023
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan
KU FE A BEATR Hitiirduas BRATR —RNOES KROBECFE ait
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Unappropriated Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves profit
income
REFEYREN Balance at 7,500,000,000 21,593,798 23,481,333 222,176,787 881,039,371 1,270,840,300 9,919,131,589
beginning of year
KERTEIEE  Changes for the year - 3,036,236 11,082,709 36,389,977 35,450,936 292,058,857 378,018,715
(—) Zalm (i) Total - - 11,082,709 - - 363,899,770 374,982,479
BE comprehensive
income
(2) FREERAN (i) Owners' - 3,036,236 - - - - 3,036,236
MR ZEZAR contributions
and reduction
in capital
1. BB ZHT N 1. Share-based - 3,036,236 - - - - 3,036,236
BENGENEE payment
2. REE/RAZEZR 2. Capital - - - - - - -
contributions by
owners
(=) #MEante (iii) Profit - - - 36,389,977 35,450,936 (71,840,913) -
distribution
1 IRBBRAR 1. Appropriation to - - - 36,389,977 - (36,389,977) -
surplus reserves
2. 1REN—REXE 2. Appropriation to - - - - 35,450,936 (35,450,936) -
& general reserves
REFRRE Balance at end of
year 7,500,000,000 24,630,034 34,564,042 258,566,764 916,490,307 1,562,899,157 10,297,150,304

TGP S5 1R 2T E 7 2l 55 IR 2 AY 2 It 55 57
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I Statement of Cash Flows

=
im@ﬂlb%%

20244 Year ended 31 December 2024
AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

MR 2024 F 2023 & MER 2024 £ 2023 &£
Notes V 2024 2023 Notes V 2024 2023
—. FEESDFENNERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Z. BRENSENNERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FR R REBITRIUER DR Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 1,093,107,893 - I ERAREINIE Cash received from maturity of investments 8,479,000,000 8,829,292,000
TERENL AR AR Net decrease in due from banks and other 246,027,489 - SR AW R W EII & Cash received from investment income 234,394,887 263,517,769
financial institutions
. LBEERMEMEKEAZESIRE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other 81,517 600,620
GG i '
RIETHRABTE R ET Net decrease in loans and advances to customers 61,420,174 355,956,748 S long term assets
U fEsR AR R Bt &RaMATE  Net increase in customer deposits and due to 677,750,469 2,764,221,842 SRR E RN INT Total cash inflows from investing activities 8,713,476,404 9,093,410,389
RIS IR banks and other financial institutions
KARMZAHNIE Cash paid for investment 8,097,000,000 8,908,000,000
IRNE AL INER Net increase in placements from banks and other 2,143,131,763 1,055,944,358 = P
financial institutions
WEEEARMEMKEA%t Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long 29,649,233 33,627,327
IREREIFI B, FEBERMAENIME  Cash received from interest, service fee and 2,393,925,302 2,360,736,890 Bl term assets
commission N N N . . S
RFRFEDIE R E T Total cash outflows from investing activities 8,126,649,233 8,941,627,327
ARG ENMFEN Net decrease in financial assets at fair value 961,460,214 -
_ N LYRSEE Vo) . . Lo
SRR through profit or loss GAVETa1) [ 2 U v = -1 Net cash flows generated from investing activities 586,827,171 151,783,062
= MR T NI 432 =2
B HE M 5XEEE XIS Cash received from other operating activities 1,783,400,336 2,539,018,354 = BREMEENNESRE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITRERENFE2WRINNE Cash received from debt securities issuance and 2,163,318,750 2,590,083,642
FEFDMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 9,360,223,640 9,075,878,192 negotiable certificates of deposit
EH PR SRIT ER T B N 2R Net increase in due from the Central Bank . 643,360,937 BEMRERNNIT Total cash inflows from financing activities 2,163,318,750 2,590,083,642
(e GNIE b Sy Net increase in due from banks and other - 140,205,634 REGRS X INAE Cash repayments for debts 3,430,000,000  2,360,000,000
financial institutions .
DERA. FIESNEMFERZGH  Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit 73,754,749 76,800,000
FHERS RN Net increase in placements with banks and other 1,068,785,499 312,142,500 b and interest expenses
financial institutions N
FHHMEEREDEXNNE Cash paid to other financing activities 57,066,627 62,141,713
TRNFE. FEBERAEMIME Payments made for interest, service fee and 1,181,980,382 852,512,240
commission ERENIERE /T Total cash outflows from financing activities 3,560,821,376 2,498,941,713
- Ly .
FHAMINARIZGWIME  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 815,161,684 786,519,076 waE (BF) [ FEmmen  Net cash flows (Used)/generated from financing (1,397.502,626) o1 141 626
285 activities RIS R
AR T Cash paid for all types of taxes 418,219,177 365,395,300 i
M, CREHNUERMEEMNYH 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 287,575,724 115,368,638
N5 ENMFENERET#IE  Netincrease in financial assets at fair value - 3,326,979,813 A AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
n&n through profit or loss
. MERMESENWEILMNE 5. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 41 980,518,506 1,560,884,654
FHEMSEEEHEXNNE Cash paid for other operating activities 4,372,458,661 1,446,171,667
mn: EMNERMEENIRT  Add: cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15,801,896,988  14,241,012,334
gEESIE Rt Total cash outflows from operating activities 7,856,605,403 7,873,287,167
N EXRMERMESENYRT 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE 42 16,782,415,494 15,801,896,988
FEENTFENRNERE R Net cash flows generated from operating 40 1,503,618,237 1,202,591,025 YEAR
activities

e NI o TGP S5 1R 2T E 9 25Tl 55 IR 2 A28 Ft 55 57
a5 1R ﬁﬂﬁ/ivﬂwj”fﬁ%ﬂgﬂ@“ﬁﬁ . The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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I. General Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as "The Bank" or "UOB (China)") is a wholly foreign-owned
bank established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China
(PRQ), by United Overseas Bank (hereinafter referred to as

"UOB").

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and
the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation of
the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
Implementation), China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Committee ("former CBIRC', now National Financial Regulatory
Administration or "NFRA") granted approval to UOB on 5 April
2007 to set up a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China),
in Shanghai by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch,
Shenzhen Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Xiamen Branch, Chengdu
Branch, Shenyang Branch and Jing'an sub-branch (collectively
known as "the Former PRC Branches").

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial
transaction from the former CBIRC (Institution Code:
B0O308H231000001) and obtained its business licence
(Uniform Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from
Shanghai Administration for Industry and Commerce. The
registered address is Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual
Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15 (Actual Floor
13), Room 1601 of Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual
Floor 15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual Floor
17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No.116 and 128 Yincheng
Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB7.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the
Bank are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as
approved by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of
business conversion from former PRC branches to UOB
(China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2024, besides the Head Office
incorporated in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 13 branches
and three sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou, Kunming and
Zhongshan.
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Il.Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises-Basic Standard and specific accounting
standards, interpretations and other relevant provisions
issued and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance
(the "MOF") (collectively referred to as "ASBEs").

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements present truly and completely the
financial positions of the Bank at 31 December 2024, and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

lll. Material Accounting Policies and Significant
Estimates

The financial information presented in the 2024 annual
financial statements was prepared based on the following
material accounting policies and significant estimates
under ASBEs.

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is a calendar year, i.e.,
from 1 January to 31 December of each year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank's functional and presentation currency is
Renminbi (RMB). The currency unit is RMB Yuan, unless
otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Bank's cash on hand and deposits
that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(4) Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency
translation

KT FRENINDRZ, BN 2T E RIERAAL H 5o . o

The Bank translates foreign currency transactions into

NERBTESEAN, AR A L ONEE R e onetonal curency.

FERNERAMURET. THEFRGEERE, W TFImEHEHE
KAHEF A GRREREPCRITE, A=A NEREMEMEmNE
TEET, FETSWRF RS URHNEFEXNINNE]
BN ERNETIRRERE AR RUHIRNAIEZ 5, 193N Y

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in
the functional currency using the spot exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions. Monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at

HAf . UG SE AT BBV IR ML B, h R AL
PR ARNCERFE, FREHIERA U ET UARNET
EMSNHIEEHERE, RBAANERE BEEICERITS,
H It AR EFRIEIES H I B B Bt N SRR m s H

the spot exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, with the
exception of those relating to foreign currency borrowings

Eals, spec‘ifi.colly for the ;onstructio_n qnd chuisition of

qualifying assets, which are capitalised in accordance
with the guidance for capitalisation of borrowing costs.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rate on initial transactions, and the amount
denominated in the functional currency is not changed.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is measured. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income depending on the nature of

the non-monetary items.
I THIEMER, ZIERIAERES (HEMBEFHN—, (5) Financial instruments
F—HXPERMA=N—E57) , BB ZARIANERIZESMN
AFEREERP TR

5 &mMITA

TMTH, BETA—IRULHERER, FREAEMBA
TGN E TANER.

KIFHAERTASRN—A BN -—HE/A~ N TR/ A

5o

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised i.e., removed from the
Bank's balance sheet when:

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE
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(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired.

(i) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through" arrangement; and either (i) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised using trade date
accounting. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts
whose terms require delivery within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date
that the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial
asset.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Bank's business
model for managing them: financial assets at amortised
cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. All related affected financial
assets will be reclassified only if the Bank changes its
business model for managing financial assets.
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Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial
recognition, but accounts receivable or notes receivable
arising from the sale of goods or rendering of services
that do not contain significant financing components or
for which the Bank has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component due within one year, are initially measured
at the transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly recognised in
profit or loss, and transaction costs relating to other
financial assets are included in the initial recognition
amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt investments measured at amortised cost

The Bank measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met: the financial
asset is held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The Bank measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met: the financial asset is
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest method. The interest income,
impairment losses and foreign exchange revaluation
are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to
profit or loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial assets other than the above financial
assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss except for the derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for financial guarantee contracts, commitments
to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate and
financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or
when the continuing involvement approach applies,
the Bank's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition,
classified into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost. For financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, relevant transaction costs are
directly recognised in profit or loss, and transaction
costs relating to financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost are included in the initial recognition
amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading (including
derivative instruments attributable to financial
liabilities) and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments attributable to financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value. All changes in fair
value of such financial liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except for the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge. Financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value and gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except for the gains or
losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income. If gains or
losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income will lead to or
expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank
will include all the changes in fair value (including the
amount affected by changes in the Bank's own credit
risk) of such financial liabilities in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Impairment of financial instruments

Based on the expected credit losses ( “ECLs” ), the
Bank recognises an allowance for ECLs for the financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component, the Bank
applies the simplified approach to recognise a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs.
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Except for financial assets, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which apply the simplified
approach as mentioned above, the Bank assesses
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition at each balance sheet date. If the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition (stage 1), the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs by the Bank and the
interest income is calculated according to the carrying
amount and the effective interest rate; if the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition but
are not credit-impaired (stage ), the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs and the
interest income is calculated according to the carrying
amount and the effective interest rate; if such financial
assets are credit-impaired after initial recognition (stage
1), the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs by the Bank and the interest income
is calculated according to the amortised cost and the
effective interest rate.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether
the credit risk on the relevant financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition. The
Bank compares the risk of a default occurring as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default as at the
date of initial recognition, to determine changes in the
risk of a default occurring of the financial instrument
in the expected lifetime. If the credit risk of financial
instruments is low at the balance sheet date, the
Bank assumes that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The Bank measures expected credit losses on a financial
instrument in a way that reflects: (a) an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes; (b) the time
value of money; and (c) reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the balance sheet date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

When there are one or more events that have adverse
effects on the expected future cash flows of a financial
asset, the financial asset is credit impaired.

The Bank directly reduces the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset when the Bank has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts; and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts
that require a payment to be made by the issuer to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial
recognition, at fair value. For financial guarantee
contracts that are not designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after initial
recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: (i)
the amount of provisions for ECLs at the balance sheet
date, and (ii) the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the guidance for revenue recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly in profit or loss, except for

those related to the hedge accounting.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset to the transferee. A financial asset is not
derecognised when the Bank retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of the financial asset.

FIRRBERBHREREESMEFIBANLILFFBRXK
FIHRENEY, 23 FHIE SRR 7 LR B 1T HIR, K1k
HiINZE R = HRIAF ERE M A6 R R A
IEHIRY, IR EMEUS NFRES SRR R EWIAE XERE
=, FAERIAE X o

B XS P TS SRR R M SRR S NALUI N\, IR SR
AFENKENETNVSERETRE 2 FRRIRE, BINRESSY
NFZREIE 2. M SRR E AN, IEFTUREIBIXI M R, AR ER(R

TEHREEZH.
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When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial asset and
recognises the assets and liabilities created in the
transfer when it has not retained control of the asset; or
(i) continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Bank's continuing involvement, in which
case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the financial asset and the guarantee amount.
The guarantee amount is the maximum amount of
consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

(6) Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognised only when the economic
benefits associated with the asset will probably
flow into the Bank and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Subsequent expenditures incurred
for a fixed asset that meets the recognition criteria
shall be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the
carrying amount of the component of the fixed asset
that is replaced shall be derecognised. Otherwise,
such expenditures are recognised in profit or loss or
the cost of related assets as incurred according to the
beneficiaries.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure
for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method. The useful lives, estimated residual
value rates and annual depreciation rates of each
category of the fixed assets are as follows:

Tt A ER FHIAE

Estimated residual value rate Annual depreciation rate

= 20%
- 10%-33%

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method applied at least at each year end, and make
adjustments if necessary.
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7 ERETZ (7) Construction in progress

R TEMARKI R TR HARE, BB R EH ST
BEITRETHUREMBXERS,

The cost of construction in progress is determined
according to the actual expenditure incurred for the
construction, including all necessary construction
expenditures incurred during the construction period
and other relevant expenditures.

ERIEEAETE IERARSHENEE R TR H
fACHERR

An item of construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets, intangible assets or other long-term assets
when the asset is ready for its intended use.

8. TWHEF

KT R = ARG TR R RS ST RAE L AP,
HERE®HN 8 &, )
(8) Intangible assets
9. KERTFPEZR A . . .
The Bank's intangible assets are software which are
amortised using the straight-line method over their eight
years' useful lives.

KEAFF B AR A E LA H.

(9) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised using the
straight-line method.

P HHA
Amortisation period

AANBEEZNR Leasehold improvement 1-10 &
Hith Others 2-5%F

10. ENIREME WL WS/~ (10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase financial assets
REMEAHENENIESNER ( “EHEW” ) RFELE
IN, MEAKBEREENESTERIIR, MRS FNES
7 “RUEEWEMER PHIT. BMRESHENNEMIE
HFHEE (“ENRE” ) FFLUHIA, SIRBITFHENTE “X
NREERZE™ FFIR.

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
("Repos") continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation
is included in "Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements". Securities and bills purchased under
agreements to re-sell ("Reverse repos") are not recognised.
The receivables are recorded as "Reverse repurchase
financial assets', as appropriate.

HEMLRMEEANTLRERNNEXRARGHREEEOENR
HARIT AR R BIF) B 52 HEF B U,

1. REE The difference between purchase and sale price is
recognised as interest expense or interest income in the
profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.

FEEITECAEESNARE. IXZENMEEHNRESRBIRE
ISR ARNERITIBIIA, FULAANERITELEITE,
*ﬁ?& >t N\ HER R A

(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals
acquired by the Bank for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair
value are recorded in the profit or loss.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2. BFERE
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(12) Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets other than the impairment of
financial assets and deferred tax assets is determined
in the following way: The Bank assesses at the balance
sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired; if any indication exists that an asset
may be impaired, the Bank estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs impairment testing;
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least at each year end, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that the asset may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. The Bank estimates the recoverable amount on an
individual basis unless it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the asset group
to which the asset belongs. Identification of an asset
group is based on whether major cash inflows generated
by the asset group are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset
group is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount by the
Bank. The reduction in the carrying amount is treated
as an impairment loss and recognised in profit or loss. A
provision for impairment loss of the asset is recognised
accordingly.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it cannot be
reversed in the subsequent accounting period.

(13) Employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or
compensation given by the Bank in exchange for service
rendered by employees or for termination of employment.
Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits,
post-employment benefits, termination benefits and
other long-term employee benefits.
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Short-term employee benefits

Occurred short-term employee benefits are recognised as
a liability in the accounting period in which an employee
provides services, with a corresponding charge to profit
or loss or cost of an asset.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Bank participate in a pension
scheme and unemployment insurance managed by the
local government, the corresponding expenses shall be
included in the cost of related assets or profit or loss.

The employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity
plan established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The
Bank contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage
of employees' salary, and recognises the cost in the profit
or loss accordingly.

The Bank provides termination benefits to employees and
recognises an employee benefits liability for termination
benefits, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss,
at the earlier of when the Bank can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits resulting from an employment
termination plan or a curtailment proposal and when
the Bank recognise costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Termination benefits

The Bank provides termination benefits to employees and
recognises an employee benefits liability for termination
benefits, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss,
at the earlier of when the Bank can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits resulting from an employment
termination plan or a curtailment proposal and when
the Bank recognise costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(14) Share-based payment

The Bank's share-based compensation programme is
measured as an equity-settled share-based payment. An
equity-settled share-based payment is a transaction in
which the Bank receives services and uses shares or other
equity instruments in exchange for settlement.
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An equity-settled share-based payment in exchange
for services received from employees is measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees. If such equity-settled share-based payment
could vest immediately, related expenses at an amount
equal to the fair value on the grant date are recognised,
with a corresponding increase in capital reserves; if
such equity-settled share-based payment could not
vest until the completion of services for a vesting period,
or until the achievement of a specified performance
condition, the Bank at each balance sheet date during
the vesting period recognises the services received for
the current period as related costs and expenses, with a
corresponding increase in capital reserves, at an amount
equal to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date, based on the best estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. The fair values of
the equity instruments are estimated using the Trinomial
valuation methodology.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based award
are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled share-based award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Bank or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award.

(15) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency shall be
recognised by the Bank as a provision when the
obligation is a present obligation of the Bank and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the
Bank will be required to settle the obligation, together
with a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation, except for contingent considerations and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
not involving entities under common control.
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A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation, taking into account factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money as a whole. Provisions are reviewed and
adjusted appropriately at each balance sheet date to
reflect the current best estimate.

Financial guarantee contracts subsequently measured at
an amount equal to expected credit losses are presented
in provisions.

(16) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

"Interest income" and "interest expense" item in the
income statement of the Bank are the interest income and
expense calculated by using the effective interest method
on financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation
of the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and in the allocation and recognition of the
interest income or interest expense in profit or loss over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of a financial asset or financial liability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or the
amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument but does not consider expected
credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid
or received by the Bank that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, the Bank calculates the interest income
by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
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that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial asset to the
amortised cost of a financial asset that is a purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial asset.

For those financial assets that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired financial
assets, the Bank calculates the interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a
diverse range of services it provides to its customers. For
those services that are provided over a period of time, fee
and commission income is accrued in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service agreement. For other
services, fee and commission income is recognised when
the transactions are completed.

(17) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government
subsidies are monetary assets, they shall be measured
in the light of the amount received or receivable. If a
government subsidy is a non-monetary asset, it shall be
measured at its fair value; and if its fair value cannot
be obtained in a reliable way, it shall be measured at
a nominal amount. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used as compensation for future
costs, expenses or losses are recognised as deferred
expenditures and shall be recorded in future profits and
losses to reverse the related costs where the relevant
costs, expenses or losses are recognised. Government
subsidies associated with income which are used to
compensate the related costs, expenses or losses incurred
by the Bank are directly included in current profit and loss
or used to reverse the related costs. Government subsidies
associated with assets shall set off the book value of
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related assets or be recognised as deferred expenditures.
Government subsidies related to assets are recognised
as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the useful
lives of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the
profit or loss by stages in a reasonable and systematic
manner. Government subsidies measured in nominal
amounts, shall be directly recognised in current profits
and losses. Where relevant assets are sold, transferred,
scraped or damaged before the end of their lives,
balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures shall be
recognised in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(18) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts, and temporary differences
between the tax bases and the carrying amounts of the
items, which have a tax base according to related tax
laws but are not recognised as assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

When the taxable temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax losses and any unused tax credits. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised,
except:

When the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
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taxable and deductible temporary differences;

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, in accordance with the requirements of
tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects,
at the balance sheet date, to recover the assets or settle
the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available in future periods to allow the deferred tax
assets to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Bank has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities, and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(19) Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified assets for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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RAFEFREEEERRMEERERFRYERSITIHER
EHAA. ATRBRMRARDERMTERR NG, BN
BRERNEFNKENME. NTEEXBERTENER
WAEFIHETIH, EBAEHERRRERNESHEERSFR
BN, AITEEERFRRERSFHAIHRNIE. TEEE
HERRRE R EBIGEERSRAENG, KFTEHEEL
SHBRRFRIRERFHME NGB TR,

FEEERARA, ATRERIOEENRIIERIAS
BEAE, EREENRNER-BEERIN ARIRMEE
(&R R B SRR B E (I RN PR R R 8. BURTF
BRI T A EMRE. RIBERFRETTR S HIFR
I, EEENRERRETRNEHITER LA RERNES
ORI, BIRRATT A EMRE R TREIZERN A EH &R
HAITRHITHER AR ERN. RANEEAGITENTZHE
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As lessee

The Bank recognises lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

For a contract that contains a lease component and non-
lease component(s), the Bank allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank
recognises right-of-use assets. Right-of-use assets are
initially measured at cost. The cost of the right-of-use
assets comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability; (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date of the lease less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost incurred; and
(iv) estimates of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on
which they are located or restoring the underlying assets
to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease. The Bank remeasures the lease liabilities
for the revision to the lease payments and adjusts the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly.
The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis subsequently by the Bank. If the Bank is reasonably
certain that the ownership of the underlying assets will
be transferred to the Bank at the end of the lease terms,
the Bank depreciates the assets from the commencement
date to the end of the useful lives of the assets. Otherwise,
the Bank depreciates the assets from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful lives of the
assets and the end of the lease terms.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank
measures lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank
exercising the option to terminate the lease. Variable

BARET LR ERTANGESRE, EXEMETNEXE
FERARIBRSN YEREE AR ELZ R, BERJ]ETITH
R EMAETN. BTFHEREMREANEHEERLET
&, MSEEFRAR. AR I LA AT (A5 RS FR
TRIERREZ U, XTRBRENENERCRTONEE
HitERER .

FMIFAEEERARE, ARAFEL 1218, BFgaB%
EENERINENRRAR,; BRIARES AR E~N
MERROARINENRMMER =B R £TNEERZHRY.
T TAXFNEHEENEMER-ARER T HIAERN
AFEMBERRGR. ERRHAS MIERREL AT AEXH
B AN S B

20. ARMEITE

AN SIRERPUAANEITERIREOE~MNAE, RIEYQ
ANETEREMSAFEERNHNRBBRRIBNE, BEFT
BHAANERR: F—RXBNE, EiHEHEBIISHE
AIE P RO RIDER T EREFENRN, EZEREANE,
BRE—RRBNEIMEXE LA GEENEIETNENRA
B; F=ZERENE, BXEFHAGHNTITURBNE,

BMAEFHGRRE, FTNEVSRERPHIAGFSEULAAN
BEITENAEFMAGHITERTE, UBERSEAANET
BRRZBRERB,

lease payments that are not included in the measurement
of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred, except those in the costs of the related asset as
required. In addition, the Bank remeasures lease liabilities
at the present value of the revised lease payments upon
a change in any of the following: in-substance fixed
payments, the amounts expected to be payable under
residual value guarantees, the index or rate used to
determine lease payments, or the assessment or exercise
of the purchase option, the renewal option or the option
to terminate the lease.

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement
date of the lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less,
and does not contain any purchase option as a short-term
lease; and a lease of the individual underlying asset with
low value, when new, as a lease of low-value assets. The
Bank does not recognise the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for buildings and vehicles related short-term
leases and low-value assets. The Bank recognises lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(20) Fair value measurement

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation at
each balance sheet date.
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21. XEX7

—HER HEEHS AN B —AMERRME, UKk
HEMWA U EER—5E. HEIERIREAFME, WX
X7,

NEAZEREFIMAFEEMXEKG XA E, FHEEET
BIREX TS,

22. 2RSS

KTURESE. REARRBAEZRSHHITEDN, ZE
RSP £ E T SR AT REE P HRIERSEERRR.

23. FEAGH

HENGRIESENRZHE I RBEEXS, HEFEEIE
TRRFAHEFINLEHFRETFLOER; HIEHNZZH
BRI NS, BITZXSARRARSHEFMEH
MHFZXSHEIMAETEITE, BAZXSFFHIA

FIWNHBEAGATHIA, EMREPINLURE. NERAE
TUEFZETRE RSB FMHEAUREN, WISEEIA
ATt AR,

24, ERZITABRANZSIHET

REIN SIRRERERRFEHAM. EIHRIZ, XLEFIE.
EITARIR I 22 BEMR GRS TR EIKRE,
UNZAEF A FRARBAGRIRE, XERIMGITHAHE
MEFR S EEYEE R AT BEIE A R R R RN BY 7 2 A B9 K E
EHITEXFE,
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(21) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships
do not constitute related parties.

(22) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon
together with related undertakings to return such assets
to customers are excluded from the financial statements.

(23) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provisions will be made.

(24) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities
at the balance sheet date. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

ENARTHSTEERNIESR, EERFEHT UTHMSIR
REFFBINNEZTEE EARIMETHIET:

ISR

ERAE T FBEIARN D RBRT A TEESRA WS
R, FEFIETLSEX, RTEREBERIITFNNEXRE
BARRESEREFUSENAN. EMERZEF LSRN
HEBRRNUREXRISEEARRERMOASRSE, TG
REUKBERRERENEITHN, RTHREWEREEIH
HEtRHERE. BHE. SARMNMEFHITOFIER

BRI EZTRERFE

ERA FOBRIARNDRRTEREAFNERATRE
B, FEHHSRAATRERSNANEIESHURENEE
AEMBF SN, SEXEDRENENEBEHRITITGE
B, FRHHSEENSRERLESABEZEER. WEE
RAEFFENERES, FSEHMREEREENQNE
BEIFENF.

Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements which
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Bank's business model for managing
financial assets. When determining the business model,
the Bank's considerations include the methods to
evaluate and report financial asset performance to key
management, the risks affecting the performance of
financial assets and the risk management measures, and
the manner in which the relevant management receives
remuneration. When assessing whether the objective is to
collect contractual cash flows, the Bank needs to analyse
and judge the reason, timing, frequency and value of the
sale before the maturity date of the financial assets.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics, and the judgements on whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
including when assessing the modification of the time
value of money, the judgement on whether there is any
significant difference from the benchmark cash flow
and whether the fair value of the prepayment features
is insignificant for financial assets with prepayment
features, etc.
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(IR HfE 4

UTATFAEFRGRRBEEXREBRBRIZ UG R HENE
BIHMRBRIR, FTRERSSBARKSITHEE~MAGKEN
BEEXNAE,

2T RBE

FIXRBEAERRAREN SR TRREHITITE, LA
TARERRAREFEMEERHENGET, FEEBAEEE
BAEKENEE, SEfREMEER. EHXERRGIT,
FTRIEA L ERBIBRLE S EFBER. BMEFFET. TIX
OER RIS AMERRNENTIAER, FRNMGAITES
TR EEENITR, BIHRNAEESTRHTEFTRESE
FRETREBR KT

B2 2 SN IER AN 2 B

FITEFAGRRENGFERE T ZINNIERDE-HETRE
FEAIRERLRERBENTSR. NERFHFHENLHES, B
SEHTHRENLI, SEEEREDREN, W TRENR,
HPREmE~ ZINIERMER, YEFELKRRAEKEN
ERTYEIE, #HTHENL. YE~HE~ANKENES
FAHREEH, BMARNERELESERESEMITTRE
RNERENIEPHREE, RPRETRE AANEBERE
REZEREFT, SEQFTRGHEMEFEEDNNE
HAMREN TN, BETERFABRTREFLENEE
BRABRE, FitREATRENEN, EERLIEITIZINE
FRAEFANTITARAERE, HEREYOFARBER
M RERVIE,
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the future accounting periods, are
described below.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to assess
the impairment of financial instruments. The Bank is
required to perform significant judgement and estimation
and take into account all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking information. When
making such judgements and estimates, the Bank infers
the expected changes in the debtor's credit risk based
on historical repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and
other factors. The different estimates may impact the
impairment assessment, and the provision for impairment
may also not be representative of the actual impairment
loss in the future.

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets

The Bank assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-current assets other than financial
assets at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indication exists.
Other non-current assets other than financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from it. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the assets. When the calculations of the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from an asset or asset group are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or asset group and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

BIEFFTEHR™

ERAIRER R BRI AT PSSR LU RN SR8 RER,
RZSAPRA B R F ARV AHRAN SIRBILBIEF S A~ XF
EERETARERNFITRMAIT RREVS AWK TS SEYET B A0
T, SEMHENRE, LURENBIABELEFEHRASD
5o

T REILAGE

NFEEERTINERTE, NTRARBERTZIRN
WEHEAANE. WTFAFEERTINEMIR, £TXA
HERABERERANE HERASESEAEBELFER
REMEAREHTHTHRZZ PEAONE. SRE/R LA
ENEMERTANSTAANENRERERNES. £
THRRAT, GERARYURERTZSS. A, HRZH
HZHE, ERERFIE IR SN FHEE XL, fi7KEh=R.
BXEEFEELH G XEAXBRRNEUSNERTERN
NANEFEF M.

BT RAUHIA

TEMIARBREH, STEERTUSFEE SR IAMN
BB XN RIRM#T O SHET, HIRIEDTEVERHE
TR EIMK S5 R0 IE,

BIANE B EIFIFE

FITRAATAAEEERFRERF NI BAE R
B, MEEEMEMFRN, FIRIBEFALZFIFER, LA
R REARHEEEERMRNSERLM, FILEM L, RIE
BEER. HHEFREL. ARRNEEAGERSEHERLS
BFERNSEFNRHITIRE LS HERIEE AR,

25 S BEMAIHEITEE

IR EELER BRI ETEE.,

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments
with reference to a quoted market price in an active
market or, if there is no active market, using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques include the use
of recent arm's length transactions, observable prices
for similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis
using risk-adjusted interest rates, and commonly used
market pricing models. Whenever possible these models
use observable market inputs and data including, for
example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates
and option volatilities. The results of using valuation
techniques are calibrated against the industry practice
and observable current market transactions in the same
or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it
retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
instruments for the transferred transactions entered into,
and make relevant accounting treatments accordingly.

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate. According to the economic
environment, the Bank takes the observable interest rate
as the reference basis for determining the incremental
borrowing rate, then adjusts the observable interest rate
based on its own circumstances, underlying assets, lease
terms and amounts of lease liabilities to determine the
applicable incremental borrowing rate.

(25) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

There is no change in accounting policies in the
accounting year of the Bank.
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.,

K IAFETERINEREIIRNT:

EEH
Value-added tax (VAT)

WA RIS
Urban maintenance and
construction tax

BB

Educational surcharge

BALPRISHE
Corporate income tax

ARINGAD AFRISH

Withholding Individual Income
tax

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

IV. Taxation

The Bank is mainly subject to the following taxes and the
respective tax rates of the Bank for the current year are as
follows:

RIAEUINIZ 13% B8 6% BRI IR, FHZINRR HEA A TFRIN 0 AR SE W ETUTSUE ERL.
VAT payable is the difference between VAT output and deductible VAT input for the current period. VAT
output has been calculated by applying a rate of 13 per cent or six per cent to the taxable value.

REFRBMBREETBT 7% 1156

It is levied at seven per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

REFRBMBOTREERRBI 3% 15

It is levied at three per cent on the turnover taxes paid.

FNAATHPRISEREY 25% 1150

Itis levied at 25 per cent on the taxable profit.

AITZMRERNFE, BRITREUERINED APEH.
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on
salaries paid to its employees.

h. MSk&REEHAME

1. M RAFHRPRIBITRI

V. Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Cash and deposits with the Central Bank

2024 2023

EENE Cash on hand

FRARBITEEEES - AR
RMB

FRARBITEEEES - 5D

foreign currency
FRARBITINCRI EEE
FRAPRBITHE MR
RZitFIS Interest receivable
B R RIRIT R B &

ait Total

Statutory deposits reserve with the Central Bank -

Statutory deposits reserve with the Central Bank -

Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank

Other deposits with the Central Bank

2,291,350 1,650,244

2,017,601,979 2,586,936,192

372,957,498 535,965,845

203,887,410 564,652,742

2,251,188,629 1,5682,146,963

1,097,632 1,345,445

Less: allowance for impairment losses (435,986) (473,939)

4,848,588,512 5,272,223,492

RIEPEARRBITHEXME, NTUITIR—ELLEHNER
HEEETHEARRIT. F2024F 128318, ATARM
RONREFEREEEHFLEOI DRI 6% K 4% (2023 F£12 B
31 H: 7% K 4%) o

M 2015 F10 A2, REFEARBITHEXNE, &1T1ZA
SINCREES, SRR EATRECENTHN—ELLH
SFINCRRES S, 2022 F9 B 28 Hig, INCARESSE
HISITFLLBIE 0% JAEEE 20%.

F 2024 F12 B31 H&2023F 12 A 31 H, &ITHEERF
RIITIRIANINE—, HERFK 12 PARTEEHRKITE
HEES. & (BURTERAEFNEDEDZE) (PERTT
FRELEERZRE. PEARRITS (2023) $15) EX
REDREHNEER,

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the
People's Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with
relevant regulations issued by it. As at 31 December 2024,
statutory deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were
calculated at six per cent and four per cent (31 December
2023: seven per cent and four per cent) of qualified RMB
deposits and foreign currency deposits from customers
respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations
since October 2015. The foreign exchange risk reserve
is calculated at a certain percentage of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding
month. The foreign exchange risk reserve ratio increased
from zero per cent to 20 per cent since 28 September
2022.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Bank
included all deposits with the Central Bank in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL). According to
the Rules on the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of
Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and People's Bank
of China), all related exposures were classified as Pass.
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2. FIRENL TR

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

2024 2023

FRIERRITEN R EMERT  Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions
o)

EFRURIMRITREIL Due from overseas banks

RzitFIE Interest receivable

/Nt Sub-total

B ERENREES Less: allowance for impairment losses
it Total

1,720,019,972 1,223,406,136

3. IFHEE

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

2024 2023

368,838,518 364,125,676
310,142 104,231
2,089,168,632 1,5687,636,043
(4,725,177) (5,034,307)

2,084,443,455 1,682,601,736

F 2024 E£12 B 31 B, F1THFRENZEIRGIAEFERELZR
WA ARM 1,025542,657 7t (2023 F 12831 H: ARM
1,027,815,950 7T) o

FHREVREEENSTEEREREEEEZRXTEA (1R
Tl R ER X ERE) 1@ (F (2023) 125)
REAHRNEER XREES, URIZER 12 ATHRE
BIRRIHRERREES.

F 2024 F12 A31H& 2023 F12 A 31 H, &1TR2%BE
BENVRRBEANN R —, IZRERFK 12 P ARTERERRKITE
REES. & (BURTERAFNLDEDE) (PERTT
RIEEEEEZERR. PEARRITS (2023) $15) X
ERPDELENIEEE,
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As at 31 December 2024, the Bank's due from banks and
other financial institutions with restricted ownership was
RMB1,025,542,657 (31 December 2023: RMB1,027,815,950).

Impairment provisions for due from banks and other
financial institutions represented the country risk provision
made by the Bank prior to the issuance of the Rules for
Country Risk Management of Banking Institutions (Jin Gui
[2023] No. 12) issued by the NFRA, and the provision for
impairment measured according to 12-month expected
credit loss.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Bank included all due from banks and other financial
institutions in Stage |, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12
months (12-month ECL). According to the Rules on the
Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial
Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of China), all
related exposures were classified as Pass.

R EHIERBTEWLREMSE  Placements with domestic banks and other financial

) institutions
RN & IR IMRITRIL Placements with overseas banks
RZitFI8 Interest receivable

INF Sub-total

B IRRENREEE

ait Totall

Less: allowance for impairment losses

5,378,501,846 3,172,780,500

1,157,830,800 663,996,810

13,321,495 19,154,767

6,549,654,141 3,855,932,077

(8,864,215) (8,195,143)

6,540,789,926 3,847,736,934

FREREEENRTEIEREREEERSBX TR (R
T ERAAAERI R EENE) 0B (M (2023) 125)
RHRITRNEFEERNRNRRELES, URIZR 12 NAHE
BHRKITHRBREES,

F 202412 A 31B% 2023412 A 31 B, 172K
HRSPNNE—, REKRXK 12 NBATHERREITE[E
. B (BURTERMAEF XD EXDZE) (PERITRE
HEEEERR. PEARRITS (2023) $15) ERAR
DEEHHEER.

4. RPIERE

Impairment provisions for placements represented the
country risk provision made by the Bank prior to the
issuance of the Rules for Country Risk Management of
Banking Institutions (Jin Gui [2023] No. 12) issued by
the NFRA, and the provision for impairment measured
according to 12-month expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Bank
included all placements with banks and other financial
institutions in Stage |, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12
months (12-month ECL). According to the Rules on the
Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial
Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of China), all
related exposures were classified as Pass.

(4) Financial assets held for trading

2024 2023

UasnhEtEEEZRITA

LA SRR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

B ERITR Commercial bank bonds 1,818,025,130 1,970,846,350
BRI R TR Policy bank bonds 1,258,911,600 1,280,977,590
PREBITERENER Central Bank bills and government bonds 268,602,160 919,707,080
BN Government agency bonds 484,582,420 502,206,070
kR Corporate bonds 202,479,720 302,589,400
MZiHFI S Interest receivable 60,932,126 68,471,846
&it Total 4,093,533,156 5,044,798,336

5. 7TEERMITA

TEERMIRE—MER~m, ENEIURTHEMRKMMNIS—
MBI SRS RERRHEMTENNE. BEXE &
it FREERR. AREG. REHN. BHHNIOCE
RFEE, AMTEANTESHTIAGETREA. 58, B
IANERES

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another "underlying" financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
"underlying" financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
swaps, options and futures.
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TEERMITANS XETREHKRK "Bt Zeps
BiNE, AREFRRERAREENED. ZERNERRT
ST RBHARATHOITE SR TRMNEHOMIFR AN E.

KITEAEMREENMEIEENERTRNTESRTI R,
FITFHEFAGRRAFMFENTTESRTRNT:

The notional amount of a derivative represents the
amount of underlying asset upon which the value of the
derivative is based. It indicates the unsettled volume
of business transaction at the balance sheet date. The
amount of underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of
derivative at the end of accounting period other than fair
value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging

instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank's

derivative instruments are as follows:

2024

2023

6. ENREERIZE™ (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

2024 2023
BRZWNFHNE: Clossified by counter-party:
GNI Financial institutions 4,744,050,000 6,593,098,000
MitF 2 Interest receivable 1,385,069 5,512,755
BOREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (288,114) (1,110,477)
&1t Total 4,745,146,955 6,597,500,278
EEIRmI K Clossified by type of pledged assets:
3% Bonds 4,744,050,000 6,593,098,000
MNitF & Interest receivable 1,385,069 5,512,755
B OREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (288,114) (1,110,477)
ait Total 4,745,146,955 6,597,500,278

A FM1E Fair Value

RAM{E Fair Value

BXEH &= T BXET r= fifiR
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities Notional Assets Liabilities
Amount
SNCTTETA: Foreign exchange
contracts:
ImHAELY Forward 12,199,103,976 136,982,795 129,074,489 8,127,915,989 124,853,777 63,973,079
RS Swaps 253,889,929,831 2,233,923,660  2,258,528,650 186,921,533,538  1,566,046,976  1,572,744,639
S Options 23,568,895,454 61,085,032 113,930,500  16,751,919,830 111,909,492 99,487,298
ey Sub-total 289,657,929,261 2,431,991,487  2,501,533,639 211,801,369,357  1,802,810,245  1,736,205,016
FIEGTETA: Interest rate contracts:
IHHAELY Swaps 187,169,793,059 1,674,215,526  1,697,559,349  231,425964,451  1,050,283,398  1,057,313,452
BN ELY Options 1,250,000,000 965,840 966,202 - - -
Mt Sub-total 188,419,793,059 1,675,181,366  1,698,525,551 231,425964,451  1,050,283,398  1,057,313,452
BRENSEBNTA:  Commodity contracts:
HHAELY Swaps 3,788,546,420 70,267,189 69,464,093 2,490,756,996 33,203,262 32,841,333
BINGELY Options - - - 19,123,290 191,955 191,962
Nt Sub-total 3,788,546,420 70,267,189 69,464,093 2,509,880,286 33,395,217 33,033,295
EMBEWTIA:  Equity contracts:

IR ELY Options 292,015,699 - 149,262 428,395,070 489 232,788
/Nt Sub-total 292,015,699 - 149,262 428,395,070 489 232,788
memiETa: [ e
RS Forwards 37,515,731,738 4,783,662,471  5803,703,642  26,854,113,075  2,221,919,956  2,389,300,873
HHREY Swaps 20,624,294,810 117,380,088 218,038,637  13,196,123,558 274,814,967 229,516,417
a4 Futures 1,998,012,662 27,310,501 10,315,182 1,939,002,276 18,585,336 9,248,654
It Sub-total 60,138,039,210 4,928,353,060 6,032,057,461  41,989,238909  2515320,259  2,628,065,944
ERTETA: Credit derivatives:
HHAELY Swaps 57,554,643 2,496,538 2,290,743 56,708,346 1,500,037 1,306,550
Nyay Sub-total 57,554,643 2,496,538 2,290,743 56,708,346 1,500,037 1,306,550
ait Total 542,353,878,292 9,108,289,640 10,304,020,749  488,211,556,419  5,403,309,645  5,456,157,045

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

F 2024 F 12831 H&2023F 12 B 31 H, FATREHP=E
NEEEREZHNNER—, ERFK 12 MEATREEHHR%
HEREES. & (FLRITERESRNEDEDE) (PE
RITREEEEERZAS. FEARRTS (2023) £15)
ERAFNELHBANEES,

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Bank included all reverse repurchase financial assets in
Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on
expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month
ECL). According to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
and People's Bank of China), all related exposures were
classified as Pass.
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7. RIBEIRRAER

VAR W N N s

(7) Loans and advances to customers

(7.1) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and

corporate
2024 2023
z\}iﬁ%ﬁizﬁii‘l‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬂi& Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
BN
DA Retail loans and advances:
1*E%E Mortgages 2,706,454 3,304,531,853
Hith Others - 326,007
/it Sub-total 2,706,454 3,304,857,860
Al BTN Corporate loans and advances:
LI Loans 18,868,122,426 20,348,804,529
R Rz Trade finance 14,500,430,618 14,434,902,227
it Sub-total 33,368,553,044 34,783,706,756
RzitFIE Interest receivable 200,850,900 219,065,746
UARNETEEETEITAEM Loans and advances to customers at fair value through
FEWEI AT other comprehensive income 2,260,857,928 498,016,028

UaniEit8 RTINS
Han B R T TRAN SR

B ERREES
BB BRIKE HME

IR EZTHIUEMUHN DA BRRNBREDEEURANE
THERETEIT N LI,

Loans and advances to customers at fair value through
profit or loss

Retail loans and advances:
Total amount of loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2,551,937,806

38,384,906,132

38,805,646,390

(904,814,282)

(964,887,862)

37,480,091,850

37,840,758,528

The measurement of the retail loans and advances under
transfer agreements has been reclassified to fair value
through profit or loss.

72 #&iT kDR (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
industry
2024
TKERER L5
Amount Percentage
HEMEE W Wholesale and retail 8,896,983,238 23%
Bl Real estates 7,902,662,307 21%
&l Manufacturing 7,574,831,686 20%
RiBE R CiEMHRBL Transportation, storage and post 2,157,484,769 6%
SRl Finance 1,993,675,358 5%
=B BRGNS R REARIRS L Telecommunicotion, software and information manage- 1,787,512,013 4%
ment services
R Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 1,349,494,085 3%
EBEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,095,236,270 3%
THEMESARS W Leasing and commercial services 1,002,649,825 3%
PE HRRERERER Health, social security and social welfare 763,973,727 2%
B Construction 737,100,959 2%
fﬁ\ A S ROKEFMME  Electricity, heat, gos and water supply 277,171,735 1%
N
RIEAR M ARRS W Scientific research and technical services 90,635,000 -+
EBRRS EEMEMARS L Residents services, repair and other services - -
Ha Education - -
OGN Retail loan 2,554,644,260 7%
ait Total 38,184,055,232 100%
MNitF B Interest receivable 200,850,900
KRB RBE Total amount of loans and advances 38,384,906,132
B REUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (904,814,282)

EREFMBERKENE

Net value of loans and advances to customers

37,480,091,850

* EREBAE N 1%

* Less than one per cent of the above
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2023 7.4 BEALIRR (7.4) Overdue Loan
WERE e 1 2024
Amount Percentage BM1XE AMXE1E  BMIEE3E 03 =
. ‘ i E @ z i £ jau
HAEMBE Wholesale and retail 7,895,703,361 20% 90 & (&1%) (&35 Lk ait
, Overdue 1day Over91daysto1 Overdue1 Overdue 3 years
it Real estates 8,118,216,166 21% to 90 days  year (inclusive) year to 3 years above Total
Hlis Manufacturing 7,428,544,904 19% (inclusive)
RIBIEH. BAEFIEPBLL Transportation, storage and post 2,692,435,975 7% {RIELsEr Guaranteed loans 29,028,175 59,960,000 - - 88,988,175
&Rl Finance 1,527,581,312 4% . )
) " ' ° MHBIRYIETRR Loans with collaterals 317,039,467 33,453,025 132,389,291 49,056,064 531,937,847
ERERHNERREARRS L Telecommunication, software and information man- 2,062,331,048 5%
agement services Hep: OFf which:
RMBOE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 1,364,692,500 4%
-
EERETY Accommodation and catering 1.362,592,762 4% HEELS R Secured by mortgages 264,964,467 1,867,793 132,389,291 49,056,064 448,277,615
FAEMESRS Leasing and commercial services 1,290,069,214 3% JEIBLE Secured by pledges 52,075,000 31,585,232 - - 83,660,232
BERRERMERER L Health, social security and social welfare 713,797,689 2% .
p— c ) 343.216.136 19% &it Total 346,067,642 93,413,025 132,389,291 49,056,064 620,926,022
ol onstruction 1216, o
BB RS KK E PRI R Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 438,731,708 1%
BFARMEARRS W Scientific research and technical services 40,556,009 * 2023
B RARSS BB EMARSS Residents services, repair and other services 3,000,000 - BH1RE BHNXE15 BHR1EE3E BHA3 &
?&gﬂ Educotion 254’000 _* 90 9& (é\ 1 E) (g 3 ﬂE) LXJ: ﬁﬁ'
e ‘ Overdue 1day Over91daysto1 Overdue1 Overdue 3 years
NN Retail loan 3,304,857,860 9% to 90 days  year (inclusive) year to 3 years above Total
&it Total 38,586,580,644 100% (inclusive)
MITFIE Interest receivable 219,065,746 {RIEE R Guaranteed loans - - - - -
3 G e Total t of | 38,805,646,390 . ,
AR otal amount offoans and advances KRS Loans with collaterals 58,708,180 131,778,492 50,954,925 67,741,599 309,183,196
B REUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (964,887,862)
R EFMNMBERKENE Net value of loans and advances to customers 37,840,758,528 B Of which:
. HEELS R Secured by mortgages 338,244 122,081,001 10,378,000 57,832,804 190,630,049
* PREIm A INF 1% * Less than one per cent of the above
Vigiitov 4 Secured by pledges 58,369,936 9,697,491 40,576,925 9,908,795 118,553,147
. P
73 BRARDE (7.3) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral ait Total 58,708,180 131,778,492 50,954,925 67,741,599 309,183,196
or gUOrOntee SAHO S B 45 2N \ SEH H N
BHARFEIEAEHF EEE 1 RFU MR Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related
2024 2023 interests are overdue for one day or above.
SRR Unsecured loans 12,787,318,718 8,623,923,156
RIESTRR Guaranteed loans 6,625,604,005 7,434,791,211
HHBRYIETR Loans with collaterals 18,771,132,509 22,527,866,277
A OFf which:
LT Secured by mortgages 15,368,403,316 18,605,959,030
Vigiirt4 Secured by pledges 3,402,729,193 3,921,907,247
ait Total 38,184,055,232 38,586,580,644
MNitF B Interest receivable 200,850,900 219,065,746

R DT
. SRR RS
RBERMBERIKENME

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: allowance for impairment losses

38,384,906,132

38,805,646,390

(904,814,282)

(964,887,862)

Net value of loans and advances to customers

37,480,091,850

37,840,758,528

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE
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7.5 RIS
DIRER M AE T B A MR R RUR EEEIRIBAITRE 12
TATHERRAREN FETEERRA D IHRARE
VRN T

(7.5) Loan impairment provision

The allowances for loans and advances measured at
amortised cost are measured according to the next
12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit
loss respectively. The movement of impairment provisions is

U ntHEE BTt NEt4r SRR R ETRAN IR
EERRAITRFK 12 N AFHREBRRRE N FEETHER
BRI IHRRR E SRR T

The allowance for loans and advances at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
according to the next 12-month expected credit loss and
lifetime expected credit loss respectively. The balance of
impairment provisions is as follows:

F—ME BMER B=ME

Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
HRXK12 1A BAFEE BANFEHE ait

S GIREEE TS p-GIREEE RS FRERIS AR K
12-month (REREERRAE) (BEREERRIE) Total

expected Lifetime expected Lifetime expected

credit loss credit losses credit losses

(notyet credit-  (credit-impaired)

impaired)

2024 %12 B 31H At 31 December 2024 742,642 27,284 - 769,926
2023%F 128 31H At 31 December 2023 280,322 5,960 - 286,282

8. Hth Ak &

(8) Other debt investments

2024 2023

Bonds issued by policy banks and commercial

BUERMRITREWETHRS  banks

kR Corporate bonds

RRRITRIR R E G Central Bank bills and government bonds
B 53 Government agency bonds

75 B 3R Municipal bonds

Hith Others

EINZc:] Negotiable certificates of deposit

Hth & = 25 Total amount of other debt investments
FZitFIR Accrued interest

At Total

2,826,632,660 3,605,000,128

2,242,646,374 1,460,098,216
955,867,600 1,539,679,570
720,057,730 520,942,360
124,165,110 353,226,100
30,911,430 180,258,990

3,945,079,350 3,653,348,550

10,845,360,254 11,312,5653,914

91,022,877 100,936,246

10,936,383,131 11,413,490,160

as follows:
2024
E—ME BMER B=MER
Stage | Stage ll Stage lll
FEK12 1A BAFEH BAOFEE ait
FRER{E FRIRR FRER(E R IRR FRER{E FRIRR
12-month (RREERRE) (BREERRAE) Total
expected Lifetime expected Lifetime
credit loss credit losses  expected credit
(not yet credit- losses
impaired) (credit-impaired)
2024 1H1H At 1 January 2024 781,780,218 28,675,846 154,431,798 964,887,862
-ENEZNE Transfer to Stage Il (27,679,716) 27,679,716 - -
-ENE=MNE Transfer to Stage Il (1,667,038) (1,236,890) 2,903,928 -
- HEIE—ME Transfer to Stage | - - - -
RETR 56 Charge/(reverse) during the year (283,756,251) 204,080,229 363,149,709 283,473,687
REIZH Write-off - - (364,779,153) (364,779,153)
B LRI EEZE Recovery of loans and advances - - 21,176,007 21,176,007
previously written off
CET R R H M Exchange rate difference and
others - - 55,879 55,879
2024 %12 B31H At 31 December 2024 468,677,213 259,198,901 176,938,168 904,814,282
2023
E—MEL BZMER B=MEE
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
KEK121MA BATFLEH BANFEHE ait
RS Rk FREA{E Rk FRER{E AR
12-month CRREERRE) (BREGRRE) Total
expected Lifetime expected Lifetime
credit loss credit losses  expected credit
(not yet credit- losses
impaired) (credit-impaired)
2023 F 1B 1 BRE At 1January 2023 798,009,868 57,552,654 174,222,371 1,029,784,893
- ENEZME Transfer to Stage Il (5,069,443) 5,069,443 - -
- BANE=MNE& Transfer to Stage Il (15,141,621) - 15,141,621 -
- BEIE—MER Transfer to Stage | 40,500,470 (40,499,305) (1,165) -
EEITIRSE[D Charge/(reverse) during the year (36,519,056) 6,553,054 74,010,452 44,044,450
EZE Write-off - - (115,191,207) (115,191,207)
W B A RTE EAZH Recovery of loans and advances
previously written off - - 6,090,028 6,090,028
LT HAM Exchange rate difference and
others - - 159,698 159,698
2023%F 128 31H At 31 December 2023 781,780,218 28,675,846 154,431,798 964,887,862

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

F 2024 F12 A31H& 202312 B 31 H, &{TR2HH
EARIREANNER—, REKK 12 PARATRERRKITE
BEES. & (FLRITEMEF-REDENE)  (PERT
REBEERERS. PEARETS (2023) £15) EX
ERNELMAEES,

FEEHMGESWEPHINNFEZI N ART 144,043,155

7t (2023 F: AR™ 47361107 78) , ELIFIARNME

far s R NSRENMNEEI AN ART 37229225 7T
(2023 F: AK™ 32,023,622 71) ©

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
Bank included all other debt investments in Stage |, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL). According to
the Rules on the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of
Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of
China), all related exposures were classified as Pass.

The amount of gains recognised in other comprehensive
income in 2024 was RMB144,043,155 (2023: RMB47,361,107),
and the amount transferred from other comprehensive
income to the current profit was RMB37,229,225(2023:
RMB32,023,622).
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10. fEREF

(10) Right-of-use assets

9. EEHM™ (9) Fixed assets
2024
BHEIRE DRIGE Hit
Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
R Cost:
FHREN Opening balance 2,649,906 123,557,278 126,207,184
HE Additions - 15,789,582 15,789,582
TEIREEN (MER. 13.3) Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
V13.3) - 207,565 207,565
W ESIRE Disposal or retirements - (3,280,748) (3,280,748)
FERREN Closing balance 2,649,906 136,273,677 138,923,583
KitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
FEHREN Opening balance 1,460,036 86,910,586 88,370,622
112 Depreciation provided during the year 349,951 13,533,736 13,883,687
i Disposal or retirements - (3,224,238) (3,224,238)
FERREN Closing balance 1,809,987 97,220,084 99,030,071
MKEMME: Carrying amount:
FR At end of year 839,919 39,053,593 39,893,512
=] At beginning of year 1,189,870 36,646,692 37,836,562
2023
BIIRE DRIKE Hit
Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
R Cost:
FHREN Opening balance 2,527,221 118,354,884 120,882,105
ok Additions 511,310 16,790,157 17,301,467
LHEBIIRE Disposal or retirements (388,625) (11,587,763) (11,976,388)
FRREN Closing balance 2,649,906 123,557,278 126,207,184
Kit418: Accumulated depreciation:
FHREN Opening balance 1,592,450 86,062,087 87,654,537
it Depreciation provided during the year 256,211 12,068,878 12,325,089
2] Disposal or retirements (388,625) (11,220,379) (11,609,004)
FRREN Closing balance 1,460,036 86,910,586 88,370,622
MKEMME: Carrying amount:
FXR At end of year 1,189,870 36,646,692 37,836,562
F9) At beginning of year 934,771 32,292,797 33,227,568

128  A%HR1T (PE)BRATE 2024FERE

2024
BEERERY BERIA Ait
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
5% Cost:
FHIREN Opening balance 175,461,678 4,346,448 179,808,126
RN Additions 24,926,678 468,467 25,395,145
EFLD Disposals (28,574,703) (572,338) (29,147,041)
FERFEN Closing balance 171,813,653 4,242,577 176,056,230
Kit#rIR: Accumulated depreciation:
FYIREN Opening balance 72,824,618 1,372,865 74,197,483
AEITR Depreciation provided
during the year 53,525,524 1,506,202 55,031,726
FEFD Disposals (28,574,703) (572,338) (29,147,041)
FERRE Closing balance 97,775,439 2,306,729 100,082,168
TKEMNE: Carrying amount:
FXR At end of year 74,038,214 1,935,848 75,974,062
== At beginning of year 102,637,060 2,973,583 105,610,643
2023
ERRERY EWmIR Aait
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
PR Cost:
ENEE Opening balance 55,263,323 3,999,488 59,262,811
AEIE N Additions 128,824,584 3,163,580 131,988,164
RERFL Disposals (8,626,229) (2,816,620) (11,442,849)
FRRE Closing balance 175,461,678 4,346,448 179,808,126
KitirIA: Accumulated depreciation:
FERE Opening balance 27,932,114 2,621,525 30,553,639
RER BSE:;CLEE?IZgOVIdEd 53,518,733 1,567,960 55,086,693
RERL Disposals (8,626,229) (2,816,620) (11,442,849)
FRREN Closing balance 72,824,618 1,372,865 74,197,483
TKE A Carrying amount:
FR At end of year 102,637,060 2,973,583 105,610,643
k2= At beginning of year 27,331,209 1,377,963 28,709,172
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1. BRZAEF

(11) Intangible assets

KTEARF A GERPREEMWINREEFMEH A= E M INRTE

HEFRISH A G LIRS B0 8T IR0

(12) Deferred tax assets

tax assets and liabilities is as below:

The net amount after the offsetting of the Bank's deferred

2024
BIEFRSHRF~ Deferred tax assets FYIRE FEANE  FETANFAEENG FRRE
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance

SRR R

Allowance for impairment losses

to profit or loss

to equity

2024 2023
RHIgE: Software:
B Cost:
FYIREN Opening balance 269,355,721 263,694,863
W& Additions 3,751,492 5,165,267
ERTIEEAN Transfer from construction in progress (Notes
(MPER. 13.3) V13.3) 7,132,348 4,680,297
LE Disposal - (4,184,7086)
FRREN Closing balance 280,239,561 269,355,721
R Accumulated amortisation:
FENRE Opening balance 214,848,055 198,306,312
it Amortisation provided during the year 19,250,498 20,726,449
SE Disposals - (4,184,706)
FRREN Closing balance 234,098,553 214,848,055
TKEMME: Carrying amount:
FXR At end of year 46,141,008 54,507,666
F]) At beginning of year 54,507,666 65,388,551

130 AR%HRTT (PE)BRQAE 2024FERE

on loan and placement 232,921,348 70,410,978 - 303,332,326
HittSRE = A ES Allowance for impairment losses
on other financial assets 9,215,348 1,221,150 - 10,436,498
Fit At Provisions 37,973,017 (7,938,337) - 30,034,680
Unrealised profit or loss of
UAAMETEREZHIT AR financial assets at fair value
e WEHIERAFHIAREI  through other comprehensive
bk income (9,646,627) - (27,169,369) (36,815,996)
Changes in the fair value of the
Il B S EANKREE) Bank's own credit risks 54,702 - (33,402) 21,300
Changes in fair value of
TEEMTARANEL SR derivatives 29,565,609 252,883,449 - 282,449,058
HAANEITEERETShT  Changes in fair value of other
NHHR@ENEMTANARMN  financial instruments at fair value
(EES=) through profit or loss 81,827,495 (84,185,056) - (2,357,561)
Accrued employee salary and
TR T THERREE bonus 8,387,939 2,692,877 - 11,080,816
TR 2% A Accrued liabilities 6,990,145 (3,654,986) - 3,335,159
Hity Others (6,635,142) (1,250,633) - (7,885,775)
&1t Total 390,653,834 230,179,442 (27,202,771) 593,630,505
2023
BIEFRISTHR = Deferred tax assets FYRE FETNRE — FEHNABENE FERRT
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
SRR RN IR Allowance for impairment losses on
loan and placement 209,551,203 23,370,145 - 232,921,348
HithEmes = REES Allowance for impairment losses on
other financial assets 15,422,355 (6,207,007) - 9,215,348
Fiitta Provisions 13,191,619 24,781,398 - 37,973,017
UARNMETERETEITAE  Unredlised profit or loss of financial
iR EWERAIERAFHIRSEH  assets at fair value through other
fii comprehensive income (7,190,061) - (2,456,566) (9,646,627)
Changes in the fair value of the
B S ERRREE) Bank's own credit risks 72,161 - (17,459) 54,702
TTESMTEARNETEIRZE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (15,574,762) 45,140,371 - 29,565,609
HUAANETEEETET Changes in fair value of other
ANEHRENSMTANARMN  financial instruments at fair value
BXE) through profit or loss 17,961,276 63,866,219 - 81,827,495
Accrued employee salary and
FURIR T THANKESE bonus 6,524,462 1,863,477 - 8,387,939
Fte 2R A Accrued liabilities 1,905,703 5,084,442 - 6,990,145
Hith Others (4,691,201) (1,943,941) - (6,635,142)
&ait Total 237,172,755 155,955,104 (2,474,025) 390,653,834
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13. Hfthzar= (13) Other assets 133 XTI (13.3) Construction in progress
R 2024 2023
FfE
Notes 2024 2023 ENERG Opening balance 3,353,402 390,063
£4 Precious metal lendi
RERIFS ng 13.1 1,683,981,953 1,722,880,360 0 Additions 9,501,467 8,950,284
< A Long-term deferred expenses
IR 9 P 13.2 23,253,750 35,492,057 BABERS MEER. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Notes V.9) (207,565) -
2 T2 Construction in process .
R P 13.3 4,049,874 3,353,402 BALERAESE (HER. 11) Transfer to intangible assets (Notes V.11) (7,132,348) (4,680,297)
Hh Ry W Eh Other receivables
FABRL R 13.4 1,248,651,864 252,733,378 BNKESMER (WER. 13.2) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Notes
FINEHTR L ERZIRFZ Input VAT to be verified and VAT retained 11.607.273 16.240 697 Vi13.2) (1,465,082) (1,306,648)
a3t FERRE Closing balance 4,049,874 3,353,402
=7 Total 2,971,544,714 2,030,699,894
131 REEIRE (13.1) Precious metal lending
RERBIRHAEIH D UL REBHITRE, F 2024 F12 The principal of the precious metal lending is settled in 13.4 HAR IR (13.4) Other receivables
B31HX2023F12 831 H, A TREFAGRBLEERE physical precious metals. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 2024 5023
MIEXTEHIZER A RN EFHTTIZE, December 2023, it was measured at fair value based on
precious metal prices at the balance sheet date. U R B A IR Other receivable and prepayments 1,284,948,577 282,976,047
REES Allowance for impairment losses (36,296,713) (30,242,669)
P
13.2 KERFPEER A (13.2) Long-term deferred expenses ERET Closing balance 1,248,651,864 252,733,378
2024
ONE T Hith &it
Leasehold improvement Others Total N , . . . . . . .
P M RE NN E RN WSFEE BRI, MR E Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the
FRT Opening balance 33,463,211 2,028,846 35,492,057 IS AT FI R0 T process of clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is as
follows:
&hn Additions 606,692 - 606,692
o TS : Aging 2024 2023
Transfer from construction in progress
EEI*%E?)\ ( ’]ﬁ‘;IE\ 133) (Notes \VAl 33) 1,465,082 - 1,465,082 1 gw\p\] Within 1 year 1,260,746,820 254’275’723
nE Disposals (17.726) - (17.726) TEE2E 1-2 years 1,397,923 1,210,354
R Amortisation (13,108,579) (1,183,776) (14,292,355) 2EF3E 2-3years 940,356 1,723,427
E*%g)ﬁ Closing balance 22,408,680 845,070 23,253,750 3ELE More than 3 years 21,863,478 25,766,543
2023 it Sub-total 1,284,948,577 282,976,047
HABESEREEH it & B OREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (36,296,713) (30,242,669)
Leasehold improvement Others Total N
a1t Total 1,248,651,864 252,733,378
FAREN Opening balance 43,555,450 3,904,729 47,460,179
&hn Additions 2,210,309 - 2,210,309
Transfer from construction in progress
TERIEERAN (MER. 13.3) (Notes V.13.3) 1,306,648 - 1,306,648
WHE Disposal (398,044) - (398,044)
g Amortisation (13,210,252) (1,875,883) (15,086,135)
FRREN Closing balance 33,463,211 2,028,846 35,492,057

132 R%ERT (PE)BRQAE 2024FERE
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%S5 MTE

20245 E Year ended 31 December 2024

AT Expressed in RMB Yuan

HABWRRIZIRAR R 12 MR TG B R BN F5 TS
BRRDAIHER R EEER TR T

The impairment provisions are measured according to the next
12-month expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit

loss. The movement of allowance for impairment losses is as

15 IFNAE

(15) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

2024

2023

BRI AT AR RS

BERRTEL

FIMREITRENL

Nt

Placements from banks and other financial
institutions at amortised cost:

Placements from domestic banks and other
financial institutions

Placements from overseas banks and other
financial institutions

Sub-total

1,438,558,920

662,696,348

1,267,067,500

1,224,174,550

2,101,255,268

2,491,242,050

UanahEitEBEZSIT A SR
BURANAE!

FIMRITEIL
Nt
Rzit#lE
Hit

Placements from banks and other financial
institutions at fair value through profit or loss:

Placements from overseas banks and other
financial institutions

Sub-total
Interest payable

Total

11,050,997,656

7,783,532,139

11,050,997,656

7,783,532,139

19,895,165

14,922,173

13,172,148,089

10,289,696,362

follows:
2024
FE—ME& EMER HE=MER
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
BANFEE BANFEER Ait
RE 12 NATHEMEAIRK THRERRk GRREERARE FUHERRk (BREERRE)
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected creditlosses  Lifetime expected credit losses Total
(not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
FAIREN Opening Balance 8,972,946 - 21,269,723 30,242,669
AEIHES  Provision/(reverse) during
(g the year 5,990,624 - (769,617) 5,221,007
UzEILLETE  Recovery of loans and ad-
B vances previously written
off - - 769,617 769,617
SCETEHRK  Exchange rate difference
Hith and others - - 63,420 63,420
FEFRLE  Closing Balance 14,963,570 - 21,333,143 36,296,713

F2024F12 831 H, 2FEF=MERAMERRETER
BT (BURTEREFXNEDENE) (PERITRIE
BEERAR. PEARRITS (2023) $15) EXRHEAL
DIERIRFLER AL

As at 31 December 2024, the current year's Stage Ill expected
credit losses arose primarily from debt classified as Sub
Standard, according to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission and
People's Bank of China).

2023
E—MER FMER E=ME
Stage | Stage ll Stage lll
BAEEH BAGFEHA At
FK 12 NATHREEIRR THMERIRk CGRREGARE) FHIEAK (BREEHRME)
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected creditlosses  Lifetime expected credit losses Total
(not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
FXREN Opening Balance 4,405,644 - - 4,405,644
RETR Provision during the year 4,567,302 - 21,269,723 25,837,025
FHRAKH  Closing Balance 8,972,946 - 21,269,723 30,242,669
14. Bk R E g B A 77 G (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions
2024 2023
RARITENL R H AR 9TF R Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 5,445,486,729 2,921,313,429
RIMRITENLEFR Due to overseas banks 245,889,777 217,212,698
RZHFI 2 Interest payable 4,584,584 3,515,299
ait Total 5,695,961,090 3,142,041,426

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

16. RZ TR G

(16) Financial liabilities held for trading

FE

Note 2024 2023
URAANMETEEETEHT NS Financial liabilities at fair value through
mAyER AR profit or loss:
52 Hi [BIFRI5 Repurchase agreements 207,044,101 1,532,469,050
s Sub-total 207,044,101 1,532,469,050
BEAUAANEITEBEEZRIIT N Financial liabilities designated at fair value
LRI RS (FEER161) 0 through profit or loss (Notes V.16.1): 161 1,358,104,865 1,294,897,302

Nt

Hit

Sub-total

Total

1,358,104,865

1,294,897,302

1,565,148,966

2,827,366,352

BHZE2024 %12 B 31 HIEFEKR 2023 £ 12 B 31 HIEFE,
KTEREAUAANETEEETHIT AN HBRENERA G
HRAANEHRREHBSERNREEUSHHNEAL .

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and the year ended 31
December 2023, there were no significant changes in the fair
value of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss that were arising from the Bank's own credit risk
change.
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161 EEEAURANEITEEET T A SR ENER A 5 (16.1) Financial liabilities designated as at fair value 19. RZFER T H A (19) Employee benefits payable

136

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

through profit or loss 2024
2024 2023 ENRE ZASEEIEIN AF R FRRT
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
BXEH AR ME . . )
Notional amount Fair vc;lue T, B BN, Salary, bonus, allowance and subsidy 150,810,903 589,339,430 637,650,854 102,499,479
T =IRICE Social i 2,768,354 30,859,327 30,941,856 2,685,825
iR Structured deposits 1,347,852,372 1,358,104,865 HERILH 1o nsurance
HRARS Housing fund - 36,140,050 36,140,050 .
TREAHBMTHELZ Labour union expenditure and staff - 1,854,196 1,854,196 -
education fee
2024 2023 _
HohxgERF Other short-term benefits - 17,838,428 17,838,428 -
V A
Notionqlfril(fjﬁ F;ﬁgfﬁ /Nt Sub-total 153,579,257 676,031,431 724,425,384 105,185,304
&EREFITR Defined contribution plan 24,362,988 89,914,311 90,403,497 23,873,802
LR Structured deposits 1,288,675,613 1,294,897,302
Hh: BEAFER0NE Including: Pension fund 5,061,942 49,789,006 49,575,224 5,275,724
IV F SR Annuity 19,301,046 40,125,305 40,828,273 18,598,078
17. ZLHEIMEERZE = (17) Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements &it Total 177,942,245 765,945,742 814,828,881 129,059,106
2024 2023
2023
BRI K Classified by type of collaterals:
FENRE G0 AR FERRT
Ef& Government bonds 190,000,000 - Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
RIS Interest payable 7,649 i TH. ®&. EBWEMME  Solary, bonus, allowance and subsidy 143,870,769 625,665,161 618,725,027 150,810,903
ait Total 190007 649 HRRIEE Social insurance 2,431,173 30,676,145 30,338,964 2,768,354
[=] y B -
EEARE Housing fund 11,338 33,070,133 33,081,471 -
TREHMIMTHEL S Labour union expenditure and staff - 3,813,434 3,813,434 -
education fee
18. Uk TE=R (18) Customer deposits HAh 5T AR Other short-term benefits - 16,395,703 16,395,703 -
2024 2023 Nt Sub-total 146,313,280 709,620,576 702,354,599 153,579,257
JEEBTERR: Current deposits: EEREITR Defined contribution plan 20,946,350 76,898,415 73,481,777 24,362,988
AER Corporate customers 18.330.072.177 20 410,081 449 Hep: BAFERMH Including: Pension fund 4,547,686 45,938,763 45,424,507 5,061,942
. . Al FH5H2E Annuity 16,398,664 30,959,652 28,057,270 19,301,046
NS Individual customers 959,054,148 949,911,830
ait Total 167,259,630 786,518,991 775,836,376 177,942,245
Nt Sub-total 19,298,126,325 21,359,993,279
EHATF: Time deposits:
UNSIESS] Corporate customers 22,132,788,333 21,982,941,474 20. N3ZH 2R (20) Tax payables
PMAER Individual customers 2,903,837,167 2,866,916,982 2024 Eers
tﬂﬁ
it Sub-total 25,036,625,500 24,849,858,456 RiEw Value odded tax 33,670,901 26,814,985
N = N . . . . N 3,961,096 s s
Hep: 8@ AULAANEITEBEZSIT  Including: Deposits recognised at fair value Pt Tox surcharges 3,272,155
E R ;O (HEER. 16 i 16. - )
ANSHRERTER (EER. 161) through profit or loss (Notes V.16.1) (1,358,104,865) (1,294,897,302) SR Corporate income tax 186,855,760 167,804,476
ot Sub-total (1,358,104,865) (1,294,897,302) RADRBHIT Withholding tax 45,264,507 40,088,752
RZIHFIR Interest payable 361,554,896 459,759,644 i Others 369,202 458,614
s
&it Total 43,338,201,856 45,374,714,077 &t Total 270,121,466 238,438,982
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21. R {355 (21) Bonds payable 22. Fuittadk (22) Provisions

2024 2023
2024 2023

R Financial bond 1,009,598,166 1,008,881,147 N : : :

ERRERYSIBRBEES: Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments
ZRHASR Tier-two capital bond . 1,004,884,918 and financial guarantee contracts:
Gz Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,586,863,529 1,816,300,791 FARM Opening balance 151,892,068 52,766,476
&3t Total 2.596.461.695 3.830.066.856 RE (RiZL) /3 (Decrease)/increase during the year (31,753,347) 99,125,592

FRREN Closing balance 120,138,721 151,892,068

F 2024 F12 B 31 H, NMARSREGIRIOT: As at 31 December 2024, the amount of bonds payable is ERAENRISIBFRIZEBAREK 12 BT ERAMANRENEL The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments

listed below: FMARERIRAHEREES, REESHNEWT: and financial guarantee contracts are measured according
to the next 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime
®17AH R ®iTeH KERT  BEHENS  AEEE/ SHHE FxREE expected credit loss. The movement of allowance for
Issue date Tenor Issue amount Issue amount Accrued Repayment Closing balance impairment losses are as follows:
during the year interest
2024
2019/11/15 10 4 (10 years) 1,000,000,000 - 42,360,656 (1,048,000,000) -
E—MER BMER B=ME
2022/08/24 3 £ (Three years) 1,000,000,000 - 28,827,595 (28,800,000) 1,009,598,166 Stage | Stage Il Stage Ill
XEK 12108 BANMFSHERTHRE ARk BANFSEITHEAE AR &it
FRHR(S ARk (REEERRE) (BREERRIE)
12-month Lifetime expected  Lifetime expected credit losses Total
et . ) ) ) expected credit loss (credit-impaired)
2019 1M B 15 HEITHWE—HZRZLRGET 10 FHHE The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 credit loss (not yet credit-impaired)
EMEES, @EAMARTI100 T, ZEEIERN48%, & was a 10-year bond with RMB100 par value and interest - Ovening bal 121.386.402 14052397 16453260 151892.008
FERNE—R, ATEREBRXEZHTENERESE 5 FXZ was paid annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent per e pening baiance T T o T
HER—AMESSsHEBEEIRARS, ESHEEHE, & annum. The bond was redeemable at par at the option AERE Reverse during the year (15,266,357) (9,855,737) (6,657,401)  (31,779,495)
TBTF 2024 £ 11 B 19 BITE T ZA RN GRHFHIERNEEFER, of the Bank, in part or in whole, at the end of the 5th . ~ )
- i — . . CERT )R E A Exchange rate difference
2FEEIfRZF 10 1275, year subject to the relevant conditions. Upon regulatory and others . . 26,148 26,148
approval, this bank exercised the redemption option of the _
2022 £ 8 A 24 BAITWNE—HERMERT 3 FHREEF = bond on 19 November 2024, and redeemed the bond in FARRE Closing balance 106,120,045 4,196,660 9,822,016 120,138,721
s, MERANART 100 T, E@FIFRRN 2.88%, SFEME full for an amount of RMB one billion.
—R. BEGRSIHEATELARSIBIIENEARITAER
R R e A HA 535 The financial bond issued on 24 August 2022 is a 3-year 2023
bond with RMB100 par value and interest is paid annually E—MER EMNER E=MER
KITF 2024 FETL2EEFETETZRIT 1T HBARTRLE at a fixed rate of 2.88 per cent per annum. The bond Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
B, EEHYNART 100 T, BEXT. holder does not have the right to redeem the bond before AR121A BT ERSRK BT ESMTIBEREIR &it
T N . 9 FRERfE FIRK (REREERRE) (BREERRAIE)
maturity. 12-month Lifetime expected  Lifetime expected credit losses Total
KITRMNEEFZEHIMEREAE, FE, HBEEFZRIMAELY expected credit loss (credit-impaired)
15500 11 negotiable certificates of deposit were issued in 2024. credit loss (not yet credit-impaired)
The par value was RMB100 and the interest rate was zero. ENRT Opening balance 42,890,068 8,237 9,868,171 52,766,476
The Bank did not default on any principal, interest or NETHR Accrue during the year 78,496,334 14,044,160 6,585,098 99,125,592
redemption amounts with respect to its bonds payable. EREH Closing balance 121,386,402 14,052,397 16,453,269 151,892,068

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE
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23. FAE &R (23) Lease liabilities 27 Hithz G a (27) Other comprehensive income
2024 2023 A RERPEMESNERIIRE: Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
balance sheet:
BEENERY Properties and buildings 68,302,820 96,665,619 v o =
R
EHTA Motor vehicles 2,048,759 3,069,256 1112024 Increase/(decrease) 3112-2024
N UARNEITEBEZEIT  Change in the fair value of debt
ait Total 70,351,579 99,734,875 NEHESEREHMESTE  investments at fair value through other 28,939,881 81,508,106 110,447,987
BERARNMELH comprehensive income
UARNEITEBEZET  Credit impairment losses of debt
. ANEMEZERENHESTIA  investments at fair value through other 5,788,267 696,391 6,484,658
24. Bt {5 (24) Other liabilities BB ERRAES comprehensive income
Al = 8 /N 4 A : : !
2024 2023 E%E%Eﬁﬁmﬁ_m\ﬁfu & gcvincggr:(;ir; rtiP;Esfonr value of the Bank's (164,106) 100,206 (63,900)
FEENEERI Settlement and clearing 946,372,481 207,266,961
‘it Total 34,564,042 82,304,703 116,868,745
Rt IT RGPRS 2 IT system service fee 127,689,873 110,296,653
Tz 2R A Accrued expense 35,778,828 34,144,858
R
RN Renovation payable 493,092 696,072 1-1-2023 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2023
Hith Others 54,703,675 43,278,058 UARMNEITEBETRIT Change in the fair value of debt
NEEZEERENERS TE  instruments at fair value through other 21,570,182 7,369,699 28,939,881
a1t Total 1,165,037,949 395,682,602 SENANELZE) comprehensive income
UARNEITEEESTEIT  Credit impairment losses of debt
s . . NEMZEWENHRSITE  investments at fair value through other 2,127,635 3,660,632 5,788,267
25. SR A (25) Paid-up capital SRS BIRES comprehensive income
N N ) . I BESERRKRARNE Change in the fair value of the Bank's
R S = ~ = L
JEMR R SEUR R A Paid-up capital 2024 2023 3 own credit risks (216,484) 52,378 (164,106)
ZEART ZEART PR
RMB equivalent % RMB equivalent % &1t Total 23,481,333 11,082,709 34,564,042
KIERITERAT  United Overseas Bank Limited 7,500,000,000 100 7,500,000,000 100

FEARPAECEHMEERETRIANSTNARTYEALES: Other comprehensive income in the income statement:
ERTIWEARBBLKERARITNESA (FHEEBEW L The above paid-up capital has been verified by Ernst
WOFTEY, HTF 2022518 24 BHAT RKEH (2022) & Young Hua Ming LLP Shanghai Branch with Ernst & B A E S A

I0F % 60658622_B01 SIRARS, Young Hua Ming (2022) Yan Zi No. 60658622_BO01 capital e ) ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ?)f\?ﬁﬁ A -
S ; Al ess: transfer to boMziEss =
verification report issued on 24 January 2022. 2024 Before tax profitorloss Less: income Tax After tax
THEE DKM EM  Other comprehensive income that
X _ ZalE will not be reclassified to profit or
26. BN (26) Capital reserves loss
5 PN = i . ®lEgERNKRA Change in the fair value of the
BELDRRFTHRINATLRS, KHENRDZHHRT, DA In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share- At B Bank's own credit risks 133,608 . (33,402) 100,206
WA BN 2T ARELRBRE based compensation program which is equity settled with s A ) )
: ; 5 KHMmMEMEL  Other comprehensive income that
a corresponding charge to the capital reserve. Pimereh may be reclassified to profit of loss
2024 2023 URaANMETEER Change in the fair value of debt
salunid = ; :
ZEPARME S investments at fair value through 145,906,699 (37,229,224) (27,169,369) 81,508,106
) #HNHESTARER other comprehensive income
FXREN Opening balance 24,630,034 21,593,798 AYMETE
BERE Change in current year 18,238,752 3,036,236 URANETEER Credit impairment losses of debt
Tt NEthR S investments at fair value through
ERRE Closing balance 42,868,786 24,630,034 HOESTHRAR  other comprehensive income 928,521 - (232,130) 696,391
RIS
a1t Total 146,968,828 (37,229,224) (27,434,901) 82,304,703
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R ANEAER S

29. — RS

(29) General reserves

2024 2023
FIRE Opening balance 916,490,307 881,039,371
AEIEIN Increase 31,235,530 35,450,936
FERRE Closing balance 947,725,837 916,490,307

@Y AR
AT Less: transfer to L FR1SH REEHM
2023 Before tax profit orloss Less: income Tax After tax
TEEEDISHIRMAEM  Other comprehensive income that
Zala will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

Il BESEARKEA Change in the fair value of the

AMELT) Bank's own credit risks 69,837 - (17,459) 52,378
BESISHREMEMEL  Other comprehensive income that
alEs may be reclassified to profit or loss

UAanMEITEEH Change in the fair value of debt

Tt NEM LR &I investments at fair value through

HEHNRSTAREAA other comprehensive income 41,849,887 (32,023,622) (2,456,566) 7,369,699

AMELE)

URpMETEEH Credit impairment losses of debt

Tt NEM L& investments at fair value through

HEHNRSTAREE other comprehensive income 4,880,844 . (1,220.212) 3,660,632

AR EE
ait Total 46,800,568 (32,023,622) (3,694,237) 11,082,709

28 BRATR

(28) Surplus reserves

2024 2023
FHREN Opening balance 258,566,764 222,176,787
RGN Increase 23,274,852 36,389,977
FERREN Closing balance 281,841,616 258,566,764

RIEABRNE. SMTEEMME, HE2025F3 819 BHEES
AR ATIREFEN 10% REVEEBRARE, EEBRA
RRETEAARITEM R A 50% U LR, BTRBIRE

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the
Bank's Articles of Association, accompanied with
resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 19 March
2025, the Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its
net profit to the statutory surplus reserves. Where the
accumulated amount of the surplus reserves reaches 50
per cent or more of the Bank's registered capital, further
appropriation is not required.

FITREME Q01220 SX (EME W EESIHREED
B BIAE, MBEFERIZERN ERAMET K E R R
1.5% BYLEBITHE—RRXESR, FRFMBDEKLE, £1TR
#2025 3 B 19 BNESFZAN, RE—MNESEITAR
M 31,235,530 75, —MARMBEERENEARE XL HE = IRRER
1.5%,

30. RO ECFE

According to the regulation CaiJin [2012] No. 20
"Financial Institution Provision Measurement Guideline',
the Bank is required to set aside general reserves of
at least 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets at year end
from net profit. The Bank appropriated general reserve
amounting to RMB31,235,530 according to the resolution
passed by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2025 and
the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent of its total risk
assets.

(30) Unappropriated profit

2024 2023

FHRDECFIE
R Net profit for the year
B REUEEBRR AR

REN—AR R

FERFDEFE Balance at end of the current year

Balance at beginning of the current year

Less: appropriation to statutory surplus reserves

Less: appropriation to general reserves

1,562,899,157 1,270,840,300

232,748,520 363,899,770
(23,274,852) (36,389,977)

(31,235,530) (35,450,936)

1,741,137,295 1,562,899,157

RIE (FEAREMEQRZR) MATHARER, £17HE
£ () BEFFABSEE; Q) MHNARIEESH; 3)REVEAE
BRARE 4)RE—RXLES O)RINEERRARERE,
AUFEDERRDESLRER. —RNEERETEATAR
EEHITER S ERIEMBFIRT, HEATESRRE. HEF
ARREHFTEFSZRTE, HEEEEER. USKRAE
A XHNREARMEE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the
Articles of Association of the Bank, the profit of the
Bank can only be distributed to shareholders after
(1) fulfilling all tax responsibilities; (2) compensating
any accumulated losses; (3) making appropriation to
statutory surplus reserves; (4) making appropriation
to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation to
discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided
by the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with
relevant regulations. The profit appropriation is decided
by the Board of Directors of the Bank, with reference to
the operating performance, financial positions, and other
relevant factors.
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31 FEAUAN

(31) Net interest income

33. I HE W

(33) Investment income

2024 2023
FIEWIN: Interest income:
FHR R R Due frqm and placement with banks and other financial
institutions 388,266,506 339,947,786
FRHRET Deposits with the Central Bank 38,309,082 43,552,161
BIREIRARR Loans and advances to customers 1,592,133,049 1,735,906,385
ENRERS Reverse repurchase financial assets - bonds 123,091,701 99,799,038
EREFE Bond and negotiable certificates of deposit 229,048,821 238,088,414
Ny Sub-total 2,370,849,159 2,457,293,784
MEZH: Interest expense:
[ b e H At & Fh A Due to and placement from banks and other financial
R institutions 287,709,758 231,186,963
TR URTERR Customer deposits 872,562,346 900,852,690
EmEMEIFE Bond and negotiable certificates of deposit 106,830,838 123,668,169
TAEE S i Lease liabilities 2,314,334 3,611,766
/Nt Sub-total 1,269,417,276 1,259,319,588
TSR Net interest income 1,101,431,883 1,197,974,196

32. FEBERAFEN

(32) Net fees and commission income

2024 2023
TESRITAELISEKE  Netrealised gain on derivatives 826,012,486 617,469,091
REREIERREEWE  Net realised gain on bond and negotiable certificates of deposit 210,371,778 149,654,034
Hith Others (47,200,348) (114,508,591)
a1t Total 989,183,916 652,614,534
34, RAMBETEIHREK (34) Losses from changes in fair values
2024 2023
TESMIA Derivative financial instruments (1,013,553,978) (179,754,906)
RS ERE Financial assets held for trading 17,734,754 12,480,935
R MEERT G Financial liabilities held for trading (2,205,854) 701,610
BEIRERHEM Gold borrowing and lending and others 321,992,907 (268,501,120)
it Total (676,032,171) (435,073,481)
35 L as (35) Foreign exchange gain

LR BFRINT R 5 R R B ER R m U S INC T =
R TR,

36. Hfthllas

Foreign exchange gain includes gain/(loss) of foreign
business related to the changes of exchange rate and gain
/(loss) arising from derivative financial instruments.

(36) Other income

2024 2023
BURF4Eh Government grants 6,549,425 14,171,389
ait Total 6,549,425 14,171,389

37 SR EEF

(37) General and administrative expenses

2024 2023
FHRERAEWAN: Fees and commission income:
ERE5REFSH Settlement and clearing fees 23,671,928 23,460,467
IR SF4R2% Agency brokerage fees 17,302,377 21,791,828
ERAEFLEER Credit commitment fees 48,840,889 51,128,359
5% /XN Credit related income 52,979,607 62,923,763
HEREMSIT S HE Commissions of trusteeship and others 60,460,676 37,810,919
Hth Others 3,198,693 4,117,935
Nt Sub-total 206,454,170 201,233,271
FoBRASEH: Fees and commission expense:
FLEEYTH Fee expenses 53,968,272 43,644,444
/Nt Sub-total 53,968,272 43,644,444
FEBERAEFEN Net fees and commission income 152,485,898 157,588,827

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2024 2023
RI#ER Staff costs 784,479,152 801,905,091
Heph: RS9I ER Of which: share-based payment 18,533,410 15,386,100
IRz Depreciation 68,915,413 67,411,782
FTREF= R Amortisation of intangible assets 19,250,498 20,726,449
KEAFF MR PR TR Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 14,292,355 15,086,135
W52 A Other operating expenses 324,893,566 322,291,755
ait Total 1,211,830,984 1,227,421,212

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

145



146

I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 MTE

20245 E Year ended 31 December 2024

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

38. ERIRERI%K

(38) Credit impairment losses

40. W RERITER

(40) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows

2024 2023
FRHPIRERITRIUR E1R % Impairment losses for deposits with the Central Bank (37,953) (197,735)
FRENLRERK Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial (309,130) (3,275,367)
institutions
FREN R ERR R Impairment losses for placements with banks 669,072 (9,264,252)
RRURERK Impairment losses for loans 283,957,331 43,414,074
{5 AAE R SBREERK Impairment losses for credit commitment and financial (31,779,495) 99,125,592
guarantee
HRAIR R R ER K Impairment losses for other debt investments 444,877 5,511,220
ENRESRAFREREK Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial (822,363) (540,504)
assets
Hh&E MR {ERK Impairment losses for other assets 5,221,007 25,837,025
ait Total 257,343,346 160,610,053
39. FRiSHiZE (39) Income tax expenses
2024 2023
RS Current tax 314,573,891 274,437,998
BIEFRISH Deferred tax (230,411,572) (157,175,316)
&1t Total 84,162,319 117,262,682

PRSI A SRS TR ATIRNT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before
income tax is as follows:

2024 2023
B E A IR gifisai(ig?tion of net profit to cash flows from operating
R Net profit 232,748,520 363,899,770
n: ERRERK Add:credit impairment loss 257,343,346 160,610,053
BEEZE~HIH Fixed assets depreciation 13,883,687 12,325,089
{ERNEEFTIH Right-of-use assets depreciation 55,031,726 55,086,693
TR AR Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 19,250,498 20,726,449
KERRFREZR FA P B Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 14,292,355 15,086,135
WEBBEE | HAKAZES (K (Gains)/losses on disposal of fixed assets and other
IR LS long-term assets (7,281) 165,708
5. ALFREREEAGHE Interest expenses of bond, negotiable certificates
F i of deposit and lease liabilities 109,145,172 127,279,935
NAMETRIIRE Losses from changes in fair value 676,032,171 435,073,481

=
Lot
BHEPRS A RRAILE N
ZEMENWI BRI

ZEMENATEREM

KEEDTENRERE R

HA AR F BB RI& Z

Interest income and investment income from other
debt investments

Foreign exchange gains

Increase in deferred tax assets/liabilities
Increase in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

(261,072,443)
(226,245,992)

(230,411,572)

(2,655,492,803)

3,499,120,853

(270,112,036)
(299,759,533)
(157,175,316)

(2,334,962,216)

3,074,346,813

1,503,618,237

1,202,591,025

A MENINEFNYHER

(41) Net change in cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
FAIRE RS Profit before income tax 316,910,839 481,162,453
FAERE 25% I EBIPTSH Tax at 25 per cent tax rate 79,227,710 120,290,613

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous

S AR HBIE 4 HAFR SRR periods (1,115,772) (197,208)
FREFF SN Tax-free interest income of government bonds (10,608,073) (18,474,058)
ROl EE B Expenses not deductible for tax 16,658,454 15,643,335
FriS®iet /A Income tax expenses 84,162,319 117,262,682

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2024 2023
MBI ERRE Closing balance of cash 2,291,350 1,650,244
B IENENRE Less: opening balance of cash 1,650,244 1,008,691

m: MEFNYERRR
e MEENYBERT
W R FE N EINER

Add: closing balance of cash equivalents
Less: opening balance of cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

16,780,124,144

15,800,246,744

15,800,246,744

14,240,003,643

980,518,506

1,560,884,654
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42. MERMEENY

(42) Cash and cash equivalents

2024

2023

bk

MEFENY):

FRHEARRTE =B LIREY
- FHENL R
-IFHEE

- ENBREERIE
FEEkELFERE (MEBERE=1AR
L))
IR RIBFTEAMFRIRN
it

&it

Cash

Cash equivalents:

With original maturity less than three months
-Due from banks and other financial institutions

-Placements with banks and other financial
institutions

-Reverse repurchase financial assets
Bond and negotiable certificates of deposit
investments (tenor within three months from
purchase date)
Other deposits with the Central Bank

Sub-total

Total

2,291,350

1,650,244

1,868,173,818

4,169,652,647

4,744,050,000

3,747,059,050

2,251,188,629

1,120,819,651

2,538,882,810

6,593,098,000

3,965,299,320

1,5682,146,963

44 FAE (44)Leases

1 EREFEA

(MAs lessee

2024 2023
AEAGFEZERA Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,314,334 3,611,766
TN HERIR R AV R A B L AL R RY Expenses relating to short-term leases accounted for 2,489,058 4,399,318
ZHATA SR 2R A applying practical expedients
TN Y ERIR SRR A BN ESR Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 34,665 -
FAEEA (GRHATAERRIN accounted for applying practical expedients (other

than short-term leases)

S5REExNAETH/H Cash outflow related to lease 57,066,627 62,141,713

16,780,124,144

15,800,246,744

16,782,415,494

15,801,896,988

43 IR ft

THRAD ST AT R B A RFINE R A T R A1 AR R EAUA

(43) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise

The Bank has lease contracts for various items of houses
WIA, FERERYMBERRRER 2-5F, I ANME and buildings and vehicles used in its operations. Leases of
FHBE N 2-4 F. PHHERSREESHEEN. &IEEE houses and buildings generally have lease terms of two to
DENES five years, while those of vehicles generally have lease terms
of two to four years. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options.

KNTAEMNERE - SELEIEPEANE BRI

(1) LEHEEFEIRGEUTAREFEWN, 2024 7F, KiTERE
FHEFE N B IL AR B TS 2 R S T IR IE R L AL

BhitRle BRI RIS RBIRMIIRRERITHRG. T 2024
F12 B 31 BAITEIINRG MR Z RGN RIBR G H A
313,413 17, MREREAHREENT1EISF; T2024F 128
31 BETINBIAR SR BN O 17,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

the Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation
Rights Plan. All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As
at 31 December 2024, the number of outstanding grants of
Restricted Shares was 313,413, the remaining contractual
period of one to three years. As at 31 December 2024,
the number of outstanding grants of Share Appreciation
Rights was zero.

1E paiy
FHBEALI Extension options and termination options. There is no
(2) EAEESEFLIFIIE, 1T A LEE S REE S FFF change on lease terms arose from the change on the
1epgFEE, assessment of option to extend the lease, option to

ERNGER, SRME=. 177 MKER. 10; HEARHNF
BER, SHUHER. 31; XEREEMRNERHENE
A, 2RKEE=. 17, BEAEG, ZRHEE=. 177 FKHE=.
22,

terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation in
2024.

Leases that have been promised but not yet commenced.
The Bank has no lease that has been promised but not
yet commenced this year.

For right-of-use assets, refer to Notes 111.17 and Notes V.10;
for interest expense of lease liabilities, refer to Notes V.31;
for practical expedients of short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, refer to Notes I11.17; and for lease liabilities,
refer to Notes 1117 and Notes I11.22.
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75 DEbR S

KTREABAREN. ERERNAEIRESEHRE THEER
Tl EHE. BERITUSHE. KSR SO IBREMMILS
NARDEMBH 4 MREDE. B MREDBARMRENLSDE,
RERENSRNFES. NMTEERBSERFRATRED S0
SESMURERHEERR. Wilks,
KTIREDEHNER W ST

HRIRITALSS 7758

mMERPIRHEIERR. BRME. FHRRS. BEEE I
CERERSFERIRS.

EERITIN 555785

BPAZFPRHEEDIARR. ERRS. RITFRS. PAE
WA BRSS FIICRREEARSS

IS5 5758

BEFRITENZHITES R W SHEXNRWIFERS. BB
2 BB ITAERR, URINCR R FIRITEFRNR 5.

Btk 35 KK 5 BT B 77 58

ST EEEIEIAR EARN S BRREABOROER. AE. K
AR
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VI. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating
segments, namely wholesale banking, retail banking,
global markets, and others and unallocated based
on internal organisational structure, management
requirement and internal reporting system. Every
reporting segment, which is individual business segment,
provides different products and services. Management
periodically reviews the financial information of
the segments to determine resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:
Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products
and services such as corporate loans, trade financing,
deposit-taking activities, fund management, foreign
exchange services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and
services such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities,
bank cards, wealth management and remittance
services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-
bank placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase
transactions and bond investments in the inter-bank
market, and dealing foreign exchanges, precious metals
and interest rate related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

ATIHNENDBOUSRAELEERR, SMTEERIEHNH
FABFROEAFS. AR, WA, BAREERR, XEER
B4R IR IN T

ABAEFTBREARTARTENBNEMERE". BIE™. T
MAEFNEMKRZES. 28N GEEERTEDBHNENER
s, BESIER. IFARE. SN ARF.

DEBEERRBEE MO MEENRN (BEXNHIZZBANRSD
BBV ZUN) 5 HFE IR ENERER (B8FEABT
BOEAESRERITIAAME) | RIEZ DRI PEEIEE
BEAUREFRERK. D8 ZEWNREZENRRSEM
IR BRI

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review
the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and financial
performance of the segments, and such information is
prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which
are attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities
mainly include deposits, borrowings and other payables
which are attributable to the segments.

Segment financial performance refers to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation
of resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions
between segments are priced at similar terms as external
transactions.
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1. D8 S. HEFE Kb R

=

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2024
HERTIS SEERTIVS  FRESRWLS Hitnlh 5% Ait

KROEHE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
— Bl 1. Operating income 1,116,243,055 145,079,905 470,698,641 70,958,366  1,802,979,967
FIRZBN Net interest income 878,340,156 66,812,211 75,491,823 80,787,693  1,101,431,883
Hep: SPIMFIEEIRN Of which: external interest income 659,067,139 23,923,547 515,810,094 (97,368,897) 1,101,431,883
S EBIEIF SR internal interest income 219,273,017 42,888,664  (440,318,271) 178,156,590 -
FEERAE RN Net fee and commission income 132,427,805 61,966,001 (44,474,924) 2,567,016 152,485,898
HAth 2N Other net income 105,475,094 16,301,693 439,681,742 (12,396,343) 549,062,186
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses (959,641,454) (149,887,920)  (181,712,751)  (194,433,681) (1,485,675,806)
Hh: EHBERSK Of which: credit impairment losses (388,949,230) 6,365,145 - 125,240,739 (257,343,346)

=, AEWINE 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) 7 5 (8) (393,326) (393,322)
. AT 4. Profit before tax 156,601,608  (4,808,010) 288,985,882  (123,868,641) 316,910,839
A, IBSHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 15,280,093 9,352,607 2,431,426 75,394,140 102,458,266
7 BAZH 6. Capital expenditure 836,939 556,725 813,126 27,442,443 29,649,233
t. BAFEREM 7. Total assets 39,731,935,790 2,609,452,392 47,690,712,806  (784,999,794)  89,247,101,194
I\ REE 8. Total liabilities 46,435,138,446 3,982,340,624 25,090,994,220  3,108,185,625 78,616,658,915
2023
HEBITILS SERTIVS  HFRESRWS Hithlh 5% &it

KEWE
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 1,173,022,471 127,405,938 427,370,686 159,333,615  1,887,132,710
EIISVET N Net interest income 918,029,439 67,471,696 117,476,306 94,996,755  1,197,974,196
Hep: 3R Of which: external interest income 610,351,322 102,040,659 508,504,114 (22,921,899)  1,197,974,196
SEBIEIFI S UIN internal interest income 307,678,117  (34,568,963)  (391,027,808) 117,918,654 -
FEBERAEERN Net fee and commission income 136,366,547 48,300,220 (31,565,761) 4,487,821 157,588,827
E At Other net income 118,626,485 11,634,022 341,460,141 59,849,039 531,569,687
Z. BlZ 2. Operating expenses (744,835,794) (144,875,058)  (178,197,207)  (337,236,543)  (1,405,144,602)
Hep: ERREIRK Of which: credit impairment losses (145,572,644) 12,028,720 - (27,066,129) (160,610,053)

=, AElMNkE 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) 104,859 (255,531) 7 (674,991) (825,656)
. BEEAE 4. Profit before tax 428,291,536 (17,724,651) 249,173,486  (178,577,919) 481,162,452
f. WIBSHEEZER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 17,175,939 9,657,499 2,484,908 73,906,020 103,224,366
AN %2 6. Capital expenditure 1,314,377 3,051,082 669,451 28,221,698 33,256,608
t. BFERE; 7. Total assets 38,117,106,652 3,297,401,260 42,044,451,676 (1,178,076,394)  82,280,883,194
I\ AREE 8. Total liabilities 45,956,747,790 3,900,309,637 18,954,731,646  3,171,943,817  71,983,732,890

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2. A58
(1) HIEEE
HHNE N BIRIRE P PRTEt N Bt D EC A R E R St

X, ATIZAREMXTIRINE XEEHITINE I IRNRE S0
B

(2) Other information
(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income which divided by different
geography locations is shown as follows:

FFHNELUIN External operation income 2024 2023
BN Domestic 1,107,153,602 1,533,951,491
ok Overseas 695,826,365 353,181,219
&it Total 1,802,979,967 1,887,132,710

FHEEAGRA, SMTORETERINIIEREE .
Q) XEZFER
KIRBRTFERTREWERZFBFEBMANART 19612

7T QO3 EFEE: ARM141127T) , SFRITERF BN
12% (2023 FE: 8%) o

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held
outside Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers' information

Among loans and advances to customers, interest income
amounting to RMB196 million comes from top 10 largest
corporate loan customers (2023: RMB141 million), which
contributed 12 per cent of the total loan interest income for
the year (2023: eight per cent).
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€. RERHE AL

1. & #E

VIl. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(1) Commitments

F 2024 F12 B 318, %7 (BRITERAES~ N SEDED
(FERITRREEEEZERS. FEARRETS 2023) %
18) BR, AKM 37,354,373 TS AAERVSBERE AR
DEEAREE, ARM 39140,033 wAAKREL. KT

As at 31 December 2024, according to the Rules on the
Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial
Banks (Order [2023] No. 1 of China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission and People's Bank of

AR R Capital commitments 2024 2023 b2 SME B AE RV S1BREITRERE, China), among all the credit commitments and financial
BHEERSY Approved but not contracted 157,362 138,375 guarantees, RMB37,354,373 was classified as Sub Standard,
RMB39,140,033 was classified as Special Mention and the
BEAEFIENT Contracted but not provided for 2,181,522 5,447,160 rest was classified as Pass
&it Total 2,338,884 5,585,535
3. 2l E (3) Entrusted business
2024 2023
YRS 2) Credit commitments
iR & A Entrusted deposits 15,524,371,339 12,411,469,897
2024 2023
EHER Entrusted loans 15,524,371,339 12,411,469,897
MEEERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
SRITARGICE Banker's acceptance 1,739,605,076 1,722,902,962
2024 2023
FRERFRIN Letter of guarantee 3,226,274,523 2,724,260,856
BV A Entrusted asset 2,915,161,484 2,044,411,222
ERERIE Standby letter of credit 2,630,997,166 5,234,371,274
FFHBNER{S FBIE Letter of credit, at sight 2,089,572,518 1,463,595,058
STEHR(= RS i 5 + i : i
TR Letter of credit, usance 396,490,864 20,178,935 ERATREGEREETATNRI, NATRAEREIEENSE Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
N Sub-total 10,082,940,147 11,165,309,085 =ARBERTZ Ao L*STJME%E’JTZ‘JSHLEE RS EIT NI, depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
] o parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
AR g, " commitments with originel éﬁiﬂﬂk%%aztx"ﬁ,ﬂ”\%@F%%iﬁfiﬁ’]#ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘t, depositors.
U ZANAEHTRANEZSEIE, BREWGEARAITHI
REIBETE 1 FALLE More than one year 1,494,675,572 1,955,555,360 By, $E$Eé’9imf¢ﬂ]J—BT&L’EH&Z@I"]EF‘SE@‘H&@E’JJL Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
it Sub-total 1.494.675.572 1 955,555 360 product according to the agreed investing plan with the
: B clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
&it Total 11,577,615,719 13,120,864,445

FETAGEINE TR INAEEN Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

7,119,629,043 7,083,377,434

KITEHMAER AR ELERNRIATIT AR, MESEERER
BEEERFRER, —BEREPFRZESTHEASITHNERIERRST
BITAEN SN, RITHEEITIERRAT.

AR TIRHATERR N E IR ML E SR b FRAY &
o BURIE—MMBEERHISAR LSRR, AR LTER
17, BERYENRRAESETHA—EARRIKNTEINE
l}ILll:Elo
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The Bank regularly assesses contingent losses and
recognises estimated liabilities where necessary. Financial
guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee, require
the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers' responsibility
as guarantor in case that the customers fail to repay the
contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that
the Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the
maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments
does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.

4. Rz

\J%

Fz

TR M RIESTRATFNAGRERY), TEMAFEEY
Ok SRR st i E R SRR HAVIERY). T 2024 £12 B
318, EREAERVNEREFNEESIHINART 43
Z7t (2023 %12 A 31 BAARMT 164 127T) »

5. BRI

F 2024 R, ATBRHEER. 22 ERABERMSBRIREN
HEREIN, HAEEMEE R

which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Pledged Assets

The Bank uses financial assets such as securities and
bills as collaterals for liabilities, mainly for repurchase
agreements or providing collateral in accordance with
local regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2024, the
total carrying amount of the pledged assets was RMB430
million (31 December 2023: RMB1.64 billion).

(5) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, there was no other contingent
liabilities except for items that have been disclosed in Notes
V.22.
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I\, BREER

FIRARBEBIERTEEWSHEEKNEHNEREED
%, FEXNTELANERNAHELRNER, FATHEEEEN
BiRR T HERELRNERZIN, TBFRFFEBRELEN
RATRRENERANGERA KL RFEFHRNERMNEIRE
RFEHHE, ATRRIRABEARLEM,

H2024 181 8E, dTREEREHEEEELSR (B
RITEFAEENZE) (ARETMEBEES/S 2023554 5)
FE_HEBELRTERNEXAETERETER, HEEEN
EAOR, SEETH&ED1T.

EXTREEEERERBFURTHRO—RELTREAEHT
5%, —RABAXTEEREBRT 6%, AEFTERFFET 8%,
EERAIEE] 2.5%0

FIVSBARNAEAMEHATEE: RO —RELX, BEIK
RAE. BERR. BRAM., —RARESE. KOEME. it
Hter s, RNITREM—RELR; —RELX, BE-REX
TEREGBN I ASIABEIRK EE,
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VIIl. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management
method to mitigate the inherent risk in the business
operation and complied with the requirements of regulatory
authorities on capital management. The Bank also targets
to maintain sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations
and optimising shareholders' value. The Bank may adjust
its capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.

Since 1 January 2024, the Capital Adequacy Ratio ("CAR")
computation is in accordance with the requirements
applicable to tier-two commercial banks of the Rules on
Capital Management of Commercial Banks issued by the
National Financial Regulatory Administration (NFRA Decree
No. 4 of 2023), and is on legal entity basis covering head
quarter and branches.

NFRA requires that a commercial bank's core tier-one
capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy ratio
and capital adequacy ratio should not be lower than five
per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent respectively, and
capital conservation ratio should reach 2.5 per cent.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the
capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes paid-
up capital, capital reserve, surplus reserves, general
reserves, unappropriated profit and other comprehensive
income. The Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two
capital include surplus provisions, qualified tier-two capital
instruments and their premium.

2024 &, ATRE (BURTHREEERNE) MEMBXAE
HENRATERUT, HEREREMRE:

In 2024, the capital adequacy ratio calculated by the Bank
in accordance with the Rules on Capital Management of
Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations are as
follows, and there was no retrospective adjustment in the
comparative period:

2024 2023
Z— R A Core tier-one capital 10,630,442,279 10,297,150,304
LU Paid-up capital 7,500,000,000 7,500,000,000
BARLFAETFNES S Qualified capital reserve 42,868,786 24,630,034
Bithér & al it A\ 5657 Qualified other comprehensive income 116,868,745 34,564,042
BRI Surplus reserves 281,841,616 258,566,764
— AR B General reserves 947,725,837 916,490,307
KR Unappropriated profit 1,741,137,295 1,562,899,157
2O — R B AR E Core tier-one capital deductions 46,055,809 54,288,858
B #E~ Other intangible assets 46,141,008 54,507,666
BEEHNRENFHERFEAAGE Unrealized fair value change of the Bank's liabilities
T HREIR LT due to its own credit risk (85,199) (218,808)

D —RABE SR

Net core tier-one capital

10,584,386,470

10,242,861,446

— R R A IR Net tier-one capital 10,584,386,470 10,242,861,446
ZRRAE Tier-two capital 442,522,341 1,659,889,734
ZREARTARE G AT A ZET Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their
premium - 999,245,574
BEHIK RS Surplus provisions 442,522,341 660,644,160
BEREH Net capital 11,026,908,811 11,902,751,180
RS INALZ = Risk-weighted assets 66,452,481,033 62,920,551,689
B (5EXEIRE Of which: credit risk-weighted assets 57,394,918,595 53,512,176,999
LG XU AR 2= market risk-weighted assets 5,717,886,250 6,169,299,190
FRIENX S AR = operational risk-weighted assets 3,339,676,188 3,239,075,500
RID—RAELRTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 15.9% 16.3%
—RARTEE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 15.9% 16.3%
REFTEEX Capital adequacy ratio 16.6% 18.9%

KINAR TR R NAAXGER IZFE S ITENRSIBEEM
SIERNEMHEITIHEN. *FE, FTETTREBINEDN
BEEKR,

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed
by the regulator.
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M BB RN EHAEE LRI PLTESE R S SR F R py X e
Bl Alt, ZRXFHEIE. BEEEUNMKRBFEAERER
Risk of financial instruments ESEESEHMBISZHEE,

SITA

N ERXEER

TR TAXK

IX. Financial Risk Management

FMIEARENTERSMERMTARNXKG, TREEEEAN
b, REpERE TN (RN, FIRXR. Bk
b, ERFMERNK) . SERMTEMEXBINE, URAITHREK
XL R PSP RENB XS E IR SRR A0 T PR,

FINERTASHENIEXCZERN. RenttXPekmz
RFe AATXIUEBI RS E BRI o

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most
significant types of risk related to financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, commodity risk and credit
spread risk). The risks with financial instruments and the
Bank's strategy to minimise the negative impacts of the
underlying financial risks are described below.

KR TBNERANEAEAREHOSFTHKENE &7
AS—FFAGRAEIRNEAERARNKLEO B UEE
SEFREREEEENET. NMTERREWSZIERMEIR
ERANK, FRMEEEPIRE,

1. ERMRE The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank's risk management
11 ERARKERE strategy is outlined below.

ERANEEHRSAIZZNFRINNGE, FERERTNMER () Creditrisk

AR B F AR B IOAR NN BITEEIHAN 55 51
BEAREN. SMTNERNKREERE T ARETMBER, K
SMIBEMEAXREEREFARERIE. STUE RN
A

ERKMNEFRE. S—ERENTFEHTHERNZEE
&EY, STFHRERMIEUE FSEIT I EAEMINEFFE
FHETEANENEZIE—EF T UM, SHRKRH
EPIEERBRT RITISNE—RET L SR BRI BURIE
Eo

KRR EMEEHE. RNERHEN R EHERERM
ERMFIBREEMGE T ERANKR. STERNEAYN
FERRETRE, WRRREBHTONHRNECHER
MRESE,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower's or
counterparty's inability to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. The Bank's credit risk
exposure mainly arises from loans and advances to
customers. Credit risk of off-balance sheet items mainly
arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued as
well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same
business activities, geographical location, or industry
sector with similar economic characteristics such that
their repayment ability would be affected by the same
economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration reflects
the sensitivity of the Bank's performance to such
customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies
and procedures which effectively mitigate and control
credit risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation,
credit approval, credit monitoring as well as reporting.
The Bank reviews the borrowers' business operations
periodically, analyses the quality of credit portfolio and
ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures
for managing credit contingencies which cover application,
follow-up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

The maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's financial
assets is equal to the carrying amount. The Bank's maximum
credit exposure at each balance sheet date is the total
amount charged to customers less impairment. The Bank is
also exposed to credit risk as a result of providing financial
guarantees, as disclosed in Notes VII.
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FEERERE, NEEAABERY M EMES B RIEHN R As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk

AIERAREHOIFENT: exposure of the Bank without taking into consideration

of collateral and other risk mitigation are set out below:

2024 2023

FHARRBITIRIN Deposits with the Central Bank 4,846,297,162 5,270,573,248
RERE Precious metals 5,682,650,768 2,659,155,486
FRENLFRIN Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,084,443,455 1,582,601,736
A Placements with banks and other financial institutions 6,540,789,926 3,847,736,934
RBMEREF Financial assets held for trading 4,093,533,156 5,044,798,336
T EREr Derivative financial assets 9,108,289,640 5,403,309,645
INRESRA Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,745,146,955 6,597,500,278
KRR Loans and advances to customers 37,480,091,850 37,840,758,528
HMESUEHE Other debt investments 10,936,383,131 11,413,490,160
HihERAr Other financial assets 2,929,040,872 1,972,503,183
&it Total 88,446,666,915 81,632,427,534

;‘%ﬂlﬁfnﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁlﬂ (MFE+.

RAEAREHO

Credit commitments(Notes VI1.2) 11,577,615,719

13,120,864,445

Maximum credit risk exposure 100,024,282,634

94,753,291,979

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

12 RRERE

N SN FERFEITUEHK, AHEAERLZFHE,
HERNMBESENIES. I, FRITUAMXEEFTA
EISBEERENS R, ELAERTUAMXEERXKIFR
I

KFIEBENERAEFREIREFESRRS . FITRABETRNE
MEVTIEREFS, FSEMNER. 7.2

1.3 ERAEF XD ZE

KTRASTRIENSBINEERITRRAS, REBSISH
FEWZARETELNEN, UREEESHEITHLRE.
FHERRFL. AMTEIGSDTEHRS AR LITHEER
RBe ATEEZEGHESANTDOE. ~am. WESIRR B
am\ AR, BREERD. RINGEWLURIRRYBIM

ERHTANESF. FTHRLRENLREERERIE, WEHES
AETEEHE, AFREEFESRETNIRD LB,
EENPEEER IR ILAYIR IS 5T B I ERRE F AR £ & R AT
ER B RS ARITIRIER SR, SHHRIED LHKRE
HMEIEN,

KITIRIE 2023 £ 2 BA®H (BUIRTERBE~REL S 2
mE) (FERTRIEEEEEZRS. PEARRITS
2023) $15) , WATERA NS LEREREES]#H
T, HEERRZIES T ERTERAF NI EH
HITRENE, 2H. DSRNEITEFRE.

(1.2) Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the
same industry sector, geographical location or having
similar economic characteristics would tend to pose
higher credit risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the
level of credit risk may be varied from each industry or
geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank's loans and advances
can be found at Notes V. 7.2.

(1.3) Risk classification of financial assets

The Bank adopts the Global Standardised Credit Rating
System (GSCRS) developed by the parent company,
which has been appropriately modified to suit the Bank's
actual situation and to be more operational considering
its own business needs. The Bank assesses credit risk
by comprehensively analysing various indicators of the
debtor. The Bank also considers the debtor's market
share, products, financial position, solvency, asset
liquidity, ability to continue operations, equity structure,
and the type of collateral and its realisation value.
The Bank has established an internal process for post
loan risk management, performs the annual review
on debtors, and reviews risk classification results of
existing financial assets quarterly. The independent
team within the credit risk management department
conducts independent credit review of customers
who meet certain criteria, ensuring the timeliness and
reasonableness of the risk classification results.

In accordance with the Rules on the Risk Classification
of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023]
No. 1 of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission and People's Bank of China) issued in
February 2023, the Bank revised the internal guidelines
and strictly evaluates the risk classification of the Bank's
financial assets, to reflect the quality of the Bank's
assets comprehensively and dynamically.
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1.4 EFIRKE

ERNFE, BERTFE-ERIMXEF. BUAEMF. LR35
. AEEBNMER. BFEMIME. BMRES, SHx
EXRFMXGS NRBRNHERBENRITHERS, HfEE
TEZEXSENE L EFEERRKA, HERMTERHMBR
ES ) o

FIREEREMEEEES/ T 2023 F 11 B TARH (R
T ERAEEXNREERDE) (EM (2023) 125) ,
2024 ERRH T AITREMES|, HERMEHITER XLE
EHIHE TR, £TAERATEINEHOEEZERERE
ANPERIERMMX, HRERMNELTHLRESINLES,

1.5 B1RY

FTRIERZRZWNFHERRNITEREMFEIBRY TS
B, MTIWHERERYIEILTAXER, SENBRYITG
SRR T BRHRIE R,

BRYTERLUT MR .

« WFBHUGER, BERVEIEBNNEREFR. RITERIEM
3

* WFPARER, BERVAEREE.
EERERSEXETENE RN T HNEHRERX

WERKEMER, HEHITRAEENTEEHEENTIEER
BERUEIHNZ K.
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(1.4) Country Risk

Country risk is the risk of the inability or refusal of a
debtor in a particular country or region to pay the Bank's
debts, or the loss of the Bank's commercial presence in
that country or region, or the risk of the Bank suffering
other losses as a result of economic or political events in
that country or region, social unrest, the nationalisation
and expropriation of assets, the refusal of a government
to pay its foreign debts, or the depreciation of its
currency.

According to the Rules for Country Risk Management of
Banking Institutions (Jin Gui [2023] No. 12) issued by the
NFRA in November 2023, the Bank has established internal
guidelines in 2024 and the country risk provisions provided
were in compliance with the regulation. Since the Bank's
country risk exposures at the end of the reporting period
were mainly concentrated in countries and regions with
low country risk, no additional provision for country risk was
required.

(1.5) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required
would depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/
counterparties as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has
established a guideline on taking collateral including
the frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

 For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals
taken include cash deposits, bank guarantee and
properties;

* For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly
residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to
monitor the market value of the collaterals and follow up
with the borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the loan
agreement. The change in market value of the collateral
would also be taken into consideration when reviewing
the adequacy of loan loss provisions.

1.6 FHAE BIRREE

RIEEANRESAXEEZEMUNEEEREGERARE, &
THRRBVERRE ™ UK SZIBR. RERRRABESTRIN
B3 12 1A RBENFEAN TR E AR EES,
BEEWE=. 5

1SR - B E BT I b

HRETRE—ER, ERXKRRRENNEEEM:

« A2 S EBEEMENREFEHED 30 B;

« ERABDBRINEIRS BRREERRFRITRLET
PERY, BLMENTAHEL T IREE;

« ERABRIRIINREBFAEM P R ER D EBITR KT
%

BXREIGHREZ T
KFIHMEESREGRRETEEEUTRAER:

« A2 EBEEMAENIREEEHED 90 H;
* BHMTREZBERAERR EEARYE;

« RRAEMRERRAEL.

(1.6) Expected credit loss management

Depending on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition and whether
the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the Bank
recognises loss allowance for financial assets, financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments based
on the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime
expected credit losses accordingly, as disclosed in Notes
1.5.

The criteria of significant increase in credlit risk:

Credit risk is deemed to be significantly increased when
any of the following occurs:

* The principal or interest is overdue for more than 30
days;

* When the borrower's internal credit risk rating is
downgraded with its probability of default change
exceeds the pre-specified threshold;

* Internal watchlist accounts or special mention
accounts.

The criteria of credit-impaired financial assets:

The Bank evaluates the following factors for credit-
impaired financial assets:

* The principal or interest is overdue for more than 90
days;

* There are weaknesses exhibited which jeopardise
repayments significantly on existing terms;

* The exposure is considered to be in default.
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NFELREGERRENERIE, ERRERKNZERE
EEEENIKENESRRIIFR (AR EEAR
FIME ) FIMBOT I BB ERBVIEZ B RIZE T,

NFEARNREZEMPEMITE, FMTOTEREHERKITE
RE L BZERAADINA TR ERER D EM, HXIXES
HHTELERE, RREXZITENNER, XBSHEE
BABR, FORKEMBINEHMO. FTERBELRITK
B (RS F TR BRAARMEIFIER. ERAHF)
NWEEDMKRAHEEES, BINEME. BOMKERES
B A,

EXEXITF:

o BAMEZBERSAERE 12 PAREENHRTFLEE,
TAEBITHEN XS RE. ATRELMELUAEEE
HAteE Z B, BEAMILER, BXMNELM, FEERERIR
EERAER Z D, URMYFIENEFTIFE T HSAE
A=,

s BORKRERRERTWEONORE L ERKRIZEFHEIM
H, RIBRXZXWFREE. BRNAXMRER, UKIER
mBARE, SORKELERRE. SHMKRAFIRE
BY ML R BI B 77 EL

o BHREHOZEE, TRR 12 DA RERNRIREFLSIF,
FEELRER, RTNREMHIEH.

FEEREEITBLRLSN, NTFEIRABRESHIRERNAE, &
BHREBRNEN, ATREIEEREMYTHERRKLT
HERHTRE, AMTRBHELERVZAEEREM, WX
—REARCHEERENTEABEXTD NIRHRESHR
EERRERZHEA,
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(1.6.1) Expected credit loss measurement

For credit-impaired financial instruments, the credit
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the balance sheet date
and the present value of the expected recoverable cash
flow discounted at the effective interest rate (or other
applicable discount rate which is available).

For financial instruments with significant increase
in credit risk, the Bank's ECL model is based on
the Basel Internal Ratings-Based Approach, with
appropriate adjustments on key parameters to meet
the requirements of relevant accounting standards. Key
parameters include Probability of Default (PD), Loss
Given Default (LGD), and Exposure At Default (EAD).
The Bank considers quantitative analysis of historical
data (such as counterparty rating, type of guarantee
and collaterals, repayment method, etc.) and forward-
looking information to build PD, LGD, and EAD models.

The definitions are as follows:

* PD is the likelihood that the borrower will default on
its obligation within the next 12 months or throughout
the remaining tenor. PD is derived based on the credit
cycle index Z value, cyclical ratio and correlation,
and the forward-looking adjustment is incorporated
into the credit cycle index Z to reflect the PD of the
borrower in the current macroeconomic environment;

LGD is the estimation of the extent of the loss if there
is a default. LGD varies depending on the type of
counterparty, the method and priority of recourse,
and the type of collateral. LGD is expressed as a
percentage of EAD;

* EAD is the total amount of exposures in the event of
default within the next 12 months or throughout the
remaining tenor.

In addition to the above model results, the Bank will
adjust the ECL results through management overlay
for identified model or data deficiencies, along with
the impact of regulatory policies. The Bank applies
management overlay prudently, and the use of
management overlay for certain risk factor should be
fully discussed by internal experts and subject to the
approval by senior management and the Board of
Directors.

R AR ETTE. MERIIDIVE. RIMEFZERIERN
NENEIRE. THERRRTERELEXBS. AifE
MREANREXRESH, EERSMREENLEXRESHEINTRRS
HERERENEERMHEM,

1.6 2 FIEMRER

5 K2 Z 18 METITE R RS BRI B At
B8 ATEIHITHEEIED M, RBIHFMEITIL. ik
SEEEANERITEEBRRBXBESTIER, SEERNE
F2fE (GDP), BEitt=MigiethE. ATEIMFDHEX
R AT B LIRS LI R R R B,

K TEHRIERZ FE KX LEZFIETNOTUNE, S8R
MEGEDM N ERAMTERBEREURENBERNENE,
MMt EMARF TR ERSR. 2024 £12 8318, F17
USKEFMEFENENER, WEMEFIEtrt TR SR
Mo He, RK5FEAEFSE (GDP) HELIE KKER
EERTHTUNER 4.3%-4.9%, EENES THIUNER
2.5%-4.3%. [ERY, AATIRIBEFFRRDM, KEEURED
BERINEDFNIREN 60% F 40%.

AT AT BE S I EFFE AN RN A FIE = HT T INESRM
De F 2024 FE 128310, HEEBSENELFHTF
10% BY, FEA(E AL T AT 5%,

The criterion of portfolio segmentation and stage
determination, Macro Economic Variables (MEVs),
scenario weightage, ECL model and its key parameters,
forward-looking model and its key parameters,
management overlay model and its key parameters
should be subject to the approval by senior
management and the Board of Directors.

(1.6.2) Forward-looking information

The assessment of the significant increase in credit risk
and the measurement of ECL involve forward-looking
information. The Bank has performed historical data
analysis and identified key MEVs that impact credit risk
and ECL of various industries and businesses, including
Gross Domestic Product (GDP), property price indices,
etc. The Bank uses regression analysis to determine the
MEVs impact on PD and LGD.

When calculating the weighted average ECL, the Bank
regularly obtains UOB Group economists' forecasts on
MEVs, combined with macro-statistical analysis and
expert judgment to determine the scenario weightage.
As at 31 December 2024, the Bank selected slowdown
of the global economy as the stress scenario and made
forward-looking forecasts of MEVs. Of which, the year-
on-year GDP growth rates over the next five years were
among 4.3 per cent to 4.9 per cent under the Business-
As-Usual (BAU) scenario and among 2.5 per cent to 4.3
per cent under the stress scenario. At the same time,
based on the analysis of economic conditions, the
weightages of the BAU and stress scenarios were set at
60 per cent and 40 per cent respectively.

The Bank conducted sensitivity analysis of the scenario
weightage in forward-looking measurement. As of 31
December 2024, when the BAU scenario weightage
increased or decreased by 10 per cent, the ECL would
not change by more than five per cent.
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17 &R TRAERAREDH

BE2024 £12 B 31 B, ATERTEXKRHMEISWNT (F
BENITFIE)

(1.7) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2024, the three-staging distribution
of financial instruments of the Bank is as follows
(excluding accrued interest):

2024
W R E
Principal Amount Credit impairment losses
E—ME B B=MER E—ME B B=MER
Stage | Stage ll Stage Il Stage | Stage ll Stage lll
*F 1218 BAFSHE BAES xXR 12108 BAESH BAFSHE
TERE ARk FEAEAIRK (K FHAEARE (B &t FHAE AL FTHAERHRK RREERRE) FHAE ARk (BREERRIE)
12-month  REEHRIE) REERRE) T:Itol 12-month expected credit Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses &it
expected credit Lifetime Lifetime loss (not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
loss expected credit expected credit
losses losses
(not yet credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
Financial assets
DR AN I BRI R measured at amortised cost
Cash and deposits with the Central
W& M IFRAREBITIRIN Bank 4,847,926,866 - - 4,847,926,866 435,986 - - 435,986
Due from banks and other financial
FEREIL IR institutions 2,088,858,490 - - 2,088,858,490 4,725177 - - 4,725177
Placements with banks and other
IFHES financial institutions 6,536,332,646 - - 6,536,332,646 8,864,215 - - 8,864,215
ENREBRA T Reverse repurchase financial assets 4,744,050,000 - - 4,744,050,000 288,114 - - 288,114
BRI Loans and advances to customers 29,369,388,148 3,464,789,394 537,081,956 33,371,259,498 468,677,213 259,198,901 176,938,168 904,814,282
HithSR A~ Other financial assets 1,237,156,432 - 44,199,200 1,281,355,632 14,963,570 - 21,333,143 36,296,713
it Sub Total 48,823,712,582 3,464,789,394 581,281,156 52,869,783,132 497,954,275 259,198,901 198,271,311 955,424,487
UARHETEBEETEITAN  Financial assets at fair value through
Hithm W R A~ other comprehensive income
R Loans and advances to customers 2,259,736,020 1,121,908 - 2,260,857,928 742,642 27,284 - 769,926
H Az Other debt investments 10,845,360,254 - - 10,845,360,254 7,876,285 - - 7,876,285
Credit commitments and financial
EEAE R SIBR guarantee 75,202,860,213 296,472,790 37,354,373 75,536,687,376 106,120,045 4,196,660 9,822,016 120,138,721
&it Total 88,307,956,487 297,594,698 37,354,373 88,642,905,558 114,738,972 4,223,944 9,822,016 128,784,932
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17 EMTAGHREN® (8)

(continued)

(1.7) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments

2023
IKERE ERBRKES
Principal Amount Credit impairment losses
FE—ME B BZMER FE—ME BMER BEZMEE
Stage | Stage ll Stage lll Stage | Stage ll Stage Il
XX 1218 BANEEH BANEEH RX 1218 BANFEE BANEEH
FEME AL THAEARK (K FHAEARK (B &5t FRERS FAIRK TREREAIRK (RREEHRE) M AIRE (BREERARE) ait
12-month  REERARE) REEHRE T:t(:l' 12-month expected credit  Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses T:ical
expected credit Lifetime Lifetime loss (not yet credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
loss expected credit expected credit
losses losses
(not yet credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
Financial assets
DR AN T BRI measured at amortised cost
& R TF AP IR TR Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 5,271,351,986 - - 5,271,351,986 473,939 - - 473,939
Due from banks and other financial
FHELLFRIN institutions 1,587,531,812 - - 1,587,531,812 5,034,307 - - 5,034,307
Placements with banks and other financial
FERE institutions 3,836,777,310 - - 3,836,777,310 8,195,143 - - 8,195,143
ENBRESRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 6,593,098,000 - - 6,593,098,000 1,110,477 - - 1,110,477
KRBT Loans and advances to customers 36,962,914,945 841,374,815 284,274,856 38,088,564,616 781,780,218 28,675,846 154,431,798 964,887,862
Hith2RF = Other financial assets 235,824,842 - 44,040,650 279,865,492 8,972,946 - 21,269,723 30,242,669
it Sub Total 54,487,498,895 841,374,815 328,315,506 55,657,189,216 805,567,030 28,675,846 175,701,521 1,009,944,397
UARNETHEBEHETEITN  Financial assets at fair value through other
Him S EmNERE~ comprehensive income
R Loans and advances to customers 497,778,294 237,734 - 498,016,028 280,322 5,960 - 286,282
HAth Ak &= Other debt investments 11,312,553,914 - - 11,312,553,914 7,431,408 - - 7,431,408
SEERMSER Credit commitments and financial guarantee 70,831,460,401 476,311,175 67,407,998 71,375,179,574 121,386,402 14,052,397 16,453,269 151,892,068
&it Total 82,641,792,609 476,548,909 67,407,998 83,185,749,516 129,098,132 14,058,357 16,453,269 159,609,758

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2024

169



170

I Notes to Financial Statements

%S5 MTE

20245 E Year ended 31 December 2024

AR Expressed in RMB Yuan

1.8 RIMGTHRMBRER D KIS

EWETRMBR (RFERITFE) % (BIRITERES~NE
DEME) (FERTRRNEEEEZRE. PEARRTS

(2023) %15) ERAZHEIITOTF :

(1.8) Loans and advances by 5-tier grading classification

According to the Rules on the Risk Classification of
Financial Assets of Commercial Banks (Order [2023] No. 1
of China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
and People's Bank of China), the 5-tier classification of
loans and advances to customers (excluding accrued
interest) are listed as follows:

2024 2023
T EREN =144 TRERE =151
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
EE Pass 37,236,806,844 98% 38,080,859,314 99%
xE Special Mention 410,166,432 1% 221,446,474 *
R4 Sub standard 488,025,892 1% 149,515,751 -
GIEs Doubtful 48,217,403 + 84,273,384 B
S Loss 838,661 * 50,485,721 -
ait Total 38,184,055,232 100% 38,586,580,644 100%
* EREmM S/ NF 1% * Less than one per cent of the above
1.9 s hEFERERE (1.9) Investments in bonds and certificates of deposit
FEEAGRE, GERENERARE (FEMITHE) RIE As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of bond
SNSRI IITIN T investments (excluding accrued interest) analysed by
external credit ratings is as follows:
2024 2023
AAA 9,708,412,174 7,813,640,056
A+ 1,224,469,760 4,821,891,798
ait Total 10,932,881,934 12,635,531,854

AF-ffRE, ABARILFERANEHAREREIINENE

R DIIT

&it

Total

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of the
negotiable certificates of deposit investment analysed
by external credit ratings is as follows:

2024 2023
3,945,079,350 3,653,348,550
3,945,079,350 3,653,348,550

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

2. e XU

FIREZENRNELURERITEECZENTRE, HEER
BURRAM BT RBY R, IRFF B LN EIHABIER. A,
AT EENE ST TN RITHEN RN ITHENAEFR.

FIREMENEEERRETBINOERER THITHN, 88
ZHRBFINENLEEERSEHBNE~ A GRLEEER
Romantt R ERRMF MRS A HERSHENS TR, &
FIARAE. NPLPREL, XLEBER. ITHIMIE R KL RE R RATT
EARNHZFRE TAFRENE T U REIEFE R, XL
MEEEL SR AATIRERERREASEPERER/),
DYSESZ TNl b=

KTERNERNPCEIR S ERIRT LT, FENREZOEF
;o EERETREEREEE, RETERRMASTFHEER
3B Rl R MBI R E TR

FTBI DD BERNRR, LURERINERE, B
P AIRBURA S RFEN S, BIRFMENEER
TR OERAREIF T PRS0,

(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and
to repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a
manner to address both anticipated and unanticipated
cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including the balance
sheet risk management framework and liquidity
risk appetites approved by the Board / Board Risk
Management Committee, as well as policies, controls
and limits approved by the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO). These policies, controls and limits are established
to ensure that the Bank has sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These
include minimising excessive funding concentrations by
diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of debt securities with high quality
and good liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly
complying with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid
assets to prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits
to maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued
availability of funds and diversification of funding
sources. Important factors in ensuring liquidity are
competitive pricing, proactive management of the
Bank's core deposits and the maintenance of customer
confidence.
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ATEISFNRITRERRESENSEERDEXIE, TERA
MNERET “EBLSER" M “EHER" KT, &1T%
BN R B RIREHI BT R R O NER, ERA
o R EATE R M EM A LUE R A s BB BRI, &
THERIREMER 20T IEA— RN EIETIE R Al Ae
RERSRENERN. TZN2ITLFR, RTEHIEIEN LR
TEREIERME. BEEEN SRR R
SRE9 S E R,

AR EEE

ZI’STTEL_L’5JJffM%*DETEFWEﬁFE’JﬁEJ\Emﬁﬁi%,
Y‘Iﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁ LHEBENERS B, FMITAGREEEREURRE
TEENZ2M. MMM EEANEY, BREXRTEE
H?%\ RS REFAEE AL SSEHEARE R BRI, FLA BRIR. 548,
MAELEARAGREEERE.

FTESRABAHGRE EEE_-\)\GE; BREERRABRARG

BRENAAREBEETE TAGRREEEF, MMTBEIXAEY
Wigts (BEFEFRRFZOAGHE. ERREE. RN
Lbfl. AR+ ERA. KBRS R EE. MohE T
FoZR, mopEOX. EEMMRIMELEE. 2EE. %E?i’)\ﬁ
BRAZFNED Eﬂ%) REBAGHREM. SH%. 5&
PR SIENE, HWEP IS IERMEE T AR TEIE,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected
cash flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under
both "business-as-usual" and "stress scenarios". Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the Bank's
liquidity exposure. The Bank has also employed liquidity
early warning indicators and trigger points to signal
possible contingency situations. Contingency funding
plans have been set up to identify potential liquidity
crises by using a series of warning indicators. Crisis
management processes and various strategies including
funding and communication have been developed to
minimise the negative impact of any liquidity crunch.

Liability Quality Management

The Bank has established a Liability Quality
Management Framework compatible with the size and
complexity of its liabilities for effective management and
monitoring. The purpose of the framework is to ensure
that the Bank achieves profitability, sufficient liquidity
and safe operating of business. Based on our business
strategy, risk appetite and business characteristics, the
Bank manages its liabilities with consideration of multiple
factors including the source, structure and cost of the
liabilities.

The Board undertakes the ultimate responsibility of
liability quality management and the senior management
carry out the liability management activities. The Bank
manages the stability and diversity of its liabilities as well
as compatibility with assets by monitoring and managing
a series of ratios, including but not limited to Core
Liability Ratio, Deposit Deviation, Inter-bank Funding
Ratio, Top 10 Depositors Ratio, High Quality Liquid Asset
Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR), Liquidity Matching Ratio
(LMR), Liquidity Gap, Liquidity Ratio for major currencies,
Net Interest Margin (NIM), and Economic Value of Equity
(EVE) of the Banking Book. Several ratios are imposed
with internal limits for management purpose.

FTHRAGHMENER Y, FEIFENAIBEN. AT
%U%UF%Dun#z?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ?ﬂﬁiﬂl\ﬂ’]ﬁ’lh:.i%t{uo il =312

SEIESRBELVSREMERTE, MIREEMRERESE, &
ETIE)J*% SFrRAEEES, & =ﬁJ\3%HXE’J3‘;n7JI“L

AT R SR P HNEDIER TR HIAR R
TiF, MERYTHERERFTHEEN, AEEUSENEH
TRIAFMA B Z~IEES .

The Bank ensures that its liabilities are legitimate and
authentic. The Bank has a fair and comprehensive FTP
mechanism, internal controls and procedures to ensure
proper pricing of its liabilities. Furthermore, business units
will proactively improve funding capability and capacity
so as to meet the Bank's business and management
needs.

The Bank will execute assessment on market funding
capacity under stressed scenarios of the liquidity
contingent plan to make sure it still has the capacity to
fund or dispose assets at a fair level when encountering
unfavourable market situation.
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F 2024 F£12 A 31 B, TSI RSO GRAKITI
NERIMEREPMEREHREAR AT T

31 December 2024:

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Bank's financial
assets and liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments as at

2024
1E31A 3TMAETE

J8iHA / BPEHEIR 11MBR One to Three months to 1E5%F 5FME FCHAMR &it
Overdue / On demand Within one month three months one year One to five years Five years above undated Total

ERIZE Financial assets:
& R AF A R ERI TR Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 2,254,374,951 - - - - - 2,594,213,561 4,848,588,512
nEE Precious metals - - - - - - 5,682,650,768 5,682,650,768
FRENE R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,535,687,602 549,488,353 - - - - - 2,085,175,955
FERE Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 3,639,023,268 524,684,096 903,304,859 1,597,465,660 - - 6,664,477,883
R EERAF Financial assets held for trading - 7,259,041 131,560,064 248,932,435 3,736,246,867 215,219,455 - 4,339,217,862
TTESRAF Derivative financial assets - 5,684,208,581 840,555,714 984,083,051 1,577,719,496 21,722,798 - 9,108,289,640
ENRE SR Reverse repurchase financial assets - 4,696,930,027 50,237,374 - - - - 4,747,167,401

HiERA

Bl R Bt S RN R

FANE

fTEERA R

RULTFR

R SRR

SEHEM SRR

Rz {35

HithS R 5

ERAGREIT

]

ENIE SRR

RIMNEGEEI

Loans and advances to customers 446,745,171
Other debt investments -

Other financial assets 47,426,583

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Placements from banks and other financial institutions -

Derivative financial liabilities -

Customer deposits

Financial liabilities held for trading -

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements -

Bonds payable -

Other financial liabilities 2,444,056

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity (22,823,801,846)

2,802,151,513 7,853,392,538 14,229,359,541 11,524,161,215 3,235,690,590 - 40,091,500,568

3,750,060,936 445,092,803 1,707,537,913 3,939,977,536 1,626,758,516 - 11,469,427,704

2,861,887,583 19,726,706 - - - - 2,929,040,872

4,284,234,307 23,991,009,302 9,865,249,295 18,073,217,799 22,375,570,774 5,099,391,359 8,276,864,329 91,965,537,165
5,547,935,066 - - 150,263,642 - - - 5,698,198,708
1,444,669,179 9,162,840,545 2,587,432,162 - - - 13,194,941,886

6,915,371,674 734,066,866 1,053,283,592 1,578,656,776 22,641,841 - 10,304,020,749

21,557,657,031 11,136,502,710 3,089,716,973 5,716,512,273 2,065,188,751 - - 43,565,577,738
1,285,593,682 163,597,893 116,020,908 - - - 1,565,212,483

190,015,299 - - - - - 190,015,299

- 597,898,721 2,017,235,868 - - - 2,615,134,589

486,580 1,162,107,313 - - - - 1,165,037,949

27,108,036,153 20,972,639,124 14,910,228,311 11,640,748,445 3,643,845,527 22,641,841 - 78,298,139,401
3,018,370,178 (5,044,979,016) 6,432,469,354 18,731,725,247 5,076,749,518 8,276,864,329 13,667,397,764

Commitments 2,331,355,338

462,801,988

1,503,130,135

4,945,291,578

2,287,846,060

47,190,620

11,577,615,719
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F2023F 128 31

NERIMEREPMEREHREAR AT T

B, &THERE e/ G GRRITI The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the

Bank's financial assets and liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments as at 31 December 2023:

2023
1E31A8 3TAETE
8RR / BPEHRIE 11MAR One to Three months to 1E5%F 5% E TCHAMR ait
Overdue / On demand Within one month three months one year One to five years Five years above undated Totall
ERAEF: Financial assets:

ME RAFHHREBITRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1,585,000,255 - - - _ _ 3,687,223,237 5,272,223,492
R"ER Precious metals - - - - - - 2,659,155,486 2,659,155,486
FREL R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,532,760,294 50,012,026 - - - R R 1,582,772,320
FHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions _ 1,996,048,753 1,070,905,892 522,661,665 319,492,883 i i 3,910,009,193
RA BRI Financial assets held for trading - 2,831,900 50,828,937 1,232,542,638 3,895,258,849 122,470,273 - 5,303,932,597
TSR Derivative financial assets - 2,855,539,063 704,866,370 919,473,011 903,868,576 19,562,625 - 5,403,309,645
ENRE A Reverse repurchase financial assets _ 6,600,683,524 i, i _ _ ; 6,600,683,524
RIRETRAIERR Loans and advances to customers 135,136,527 3,597,773,433 7,710,215,352 11,334,788,270 14,616,987,049 4,107,562,745 - 41,502,463,376
HithfeAi A Other debt investments - 3,615,316,175 505,409,363 594,888,402 5,942,966,836 1,403,368,627 - 12,061,949,403
HitrB5 Other financial assets 50,291,228 1,902,295,608 19,916,347 - - - - 1,972,503,183
BRI ST Total financial assets 3,303,188,304 20,621,400,482 10,062,142,261 14,604,353,986 25,678,574,193 5,652,964,270 6,346,378,723 86,269,002,219

EREfAER Financial liabilities:
E R EMERANATFERFIN ~ Due to banks and other financial institutions 2,989,079,924 - - 148,455,994 6,682,108 - - 3,144,218,026
IRANRE Placements from banks and other financial institutions - 2,329,966,211 7,965,998,457 - - - - 10,295,964,668
FTESRAE Derivative financial liabilities - 2,992,316,509 663,083,963 881,078,874 896,942,823 22,734,876 - 5,456,157,045
e Customer deposits 21,600,228,539 12,802,898,615 4,956,314,738 4,709,524,058 1,569,564,683 - - 45,638,530,633
RS R Financial liabilities held for trading - 2,129,373,530 375,877,056 324,118,616 - - - 2,829,369,202
RZfH 555 Bonds payable - - 975,867,468 1,917,234,401 1,027,581,636 - - 3,920,683,505
HfheRafa s Other financial liabilities - 1,809,183 393,873,419 - - - - 395,682,602
SRnEST Total financial liabilities 24,589,308,463 20,256,364,048 15,331,015,101 7,980,411,943 3,500,771,250 22,734,876 - 71,680,605,681
TRENE S ER Net liquidity (21,286,120,159) 365,036,434 (5,268,872,840) 6,623,942,043 22,177,802,943 5,630,229,394 6,346,378,723 14,588,396,538
RIMNFGEET Commitments 1,584,728,475 893,996,062 2,668,776,378 5,503,943,169 2,312,529,658 156,890,703 - 13,120,864,445
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3. miHXE (3) Market risk 31 XX (3.1) Currency risk

178

FMTERNHZREEEREFE, CERFEmMREES mi
3k~ TRV Z M SRR S 1l S5t R 7 KB,
KT N EERN B Ar S R NG B T H i X~ ER
WERRK, FENFERATZERTAERNTERHERLIIFIE,

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from open
positions in interest rate, foreign exchange rate products
and precious metal products. Market risk arises from
both trading and non-trading business. The objective of

FERATRTAESMAGHNE M EEURINCRZ S AR
At XL O LA E T2 B T 7K Ehm 5 R aI XU,

F 2024 £12 A 31 H, FMTOBXEFRAGIRHHTIR

The Bank's currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions
are subject to exchange rate fluctuations.

market risk management is to avoid excessive losses in T
AITHX BRI AN STHmZNMHEO, ARMEIEXTHT earnings and shareholder's fund due to market risk, and As at 31 December 2024, the Bank's assets and liabilities
REEBEEIREA- N RERRNMAE, FERRKBITHZIXKG to minimise the negative impact from inherent volatility by currency are as follows:
WILCIRA B A RERSNEEINNEERER R, risks of financial instruments. 2024
P - YRS . . ; e ; ! =T AR Hith ait
A TIEBEEMEN Y BB AETHING, HXENNE The RISk‘ Management DI‘VISIOh mo.mtors the Bonk S U57|§ RMB Others Total
FEBIERRENT. BFUBRELRE. RRNE. EIMiRE, market risk exposure and is responsible for setting up (RMB (RMB (RMB
EFERRIE AN, BRI S himREEmEs  market risk policies with approval by the Asset & Liability equivalent) equivalent)  equivalent)
EFLHA, Committee. Market Risk exposures are reported to the e Assets:
Asset & Liability Committee and Board Risk Management . o
L . . s o . - & MR REBI TN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 568,779,860 4,270,148,083 9,660,569 4,848,588,512
FATIRIBREKENE BRAERAME=ARID N 2K E Committee on a regular basis.
FRTIKE, TEKETEOERTS BNHE R RS M RER Precious metals - 582,650,768 - 5682,650,768
BEAMERETIFENTEERZNEMTAMNBRLT, & The Bank monitors and manages market risk in EHEL R Due from banks and other financial institutions 285,062,040  1,669,073927 130,306,588  2,084,443,455
SKETNTHIZNRERTFRZNTE, 8155, (X, RKE accordance with established framework and policies. The ' o
g, BRNE. ERMES, BIKEOERSKEIMIE  monitoring and measurement methods mainly include itz Placements with banks and other financial 4065671733 2057507718 417610475  6,540,789,926
LB T, BT ERHNTERESFRIERFEX S, sensitivity analysis, Expected Shortfall (ES), Value-at-Risk
(VG R) Gnd stress testing' Prior to |Gunch Of new product or R ERAF Financial assets held for trodlng - 4,093,533,156 - 4,093,533,156
new business, market risk will be properly identified and TTESRAR Derivative financial assets 188,571,793  8,919,717,847 - 9,108,289,640
addressed. _ o
ENRE SRIEF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 4,745,146,955 - 4,745,146,955
The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities V3 G E Loans and advances to customers 3,549,444,375  33,628,992,293 301,655,182  37,480,091,850
into the trOdi.ng, book Pr banking book occgrding to HEAUEE Other debt investments - 10,936,383,131 - 10,936,383,131
the characteristics of different accounts. Trading book . o
mainly includes freely tradable financial instruments and HithE Rz Other financial assets 37,041,925 2,889,946,122 2,052,825 2,929,040,872
commodity positions held for trading purpose or to avoid SRAFEAT Total financial assets 8,694,572,626  78,893,100,000 861,285,639  88,448,958,265
risks in other items of the trading account. The market risk N
fafe: Liabilities:

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, stock
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads. Banking

B R E At SR DTF TR

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Placements from banks and other financial

17,251,402 5,678,709,688 - 5,695,961,090

] . S . #é rlacem 453,759,515  12,599,679,466 118,709,108  13,172,148,089

book includes financial instruments other than trading HNFR institutions

book. Th,e main rls,ks in banking book are interest rate RZMERAR Financial liabilities held for trading 6,077,994 1,559,070,972 - 1,565,148,966

and credit spread risks.
ITHE BRI R Derivative financial liabilities 215,669,343  10,088,351,406 - 10,304,020,749
RUTER Customer deposits 9,294,539,187  33,303,098,886 740,563,783  43,338,201,856

. Financial assets sold under repurchase

& B Sz - -
S B ERZ R agreements 190,007,649 190,007,649
Rrfd s Bonds payable - 2,596,461,695 - 2,596,461,695
HithR AR Other financial liabilities 35,592,366 1,013,223,099 116,222,484 1,165,037,949
SR RAT Total financial liabilities 10,022,889,807  67,028,602,861 975,495,375  78,026,988,043
B SLT Net position (1,328,317,181)  11,864,497,139  (114,209,736)  10,421,970,222
FTESMTAS VSR mgtt:;’;(’e'n‘i?"“”ts of derivative financial 182,503,000,980  356,006,504,257  3,844,283,055 542,353,878,292
EEAE Commitments 1,949,947,913 8,099,673,396  1,527,994,410  11,577,615,719
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F 2023 F 12 B 31 H, FTHBEXREF=RAOGREHMHTIR As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's assets and liabilities UTREEMTEARTHERT, INhXEAUTCEATRELRE Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a

T by currency are as follows: HEEBT X BiaiFEA R change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of
2023 the Bank is as follows:
E7T AR™ Hith &it 2024 2023
usb RMB Others Total
~ (RMB ~ (RMB ~ (RMB B FIFE R xR EIFE R M
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent) Impact on profit Impact on profit
_— Asset before income taxes before income taxes
=\ ssets:
T LETL ch in Foreign Exch R
S RAEMDREITRRN ~ Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1091811991  4,170,304,224 10,107,277 5272,223,492 LEEH ange In Foreign Exchange Rate
A3 T NS (& 19 19 i
PN Precious metals ) 2,659.155,486 ) 2,659.155,486 AL BB 1% 1% change against RMB 14,425,269 49,616,261
R Due from banks and other financial institutions 273994811 1183120119 125477806  1,582,601736 HAALHFHE 1% +1% change against RMB (14,425,269) (49,616,261)
FHES mstcifurgiztssw'th banks and other financil 1797,577,180 1649975357 400,184,397  3,847,736,934 M ESRESTETR=NAREESHSIITENRLEN, E The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the
HETHSHMEZRALN, I ARTCERNEIERTELER basis that assets and liabilities have static currency
Zx 2 ShIR =T i i i - - RS v . . .
SRR Financial assets held for trading 5/044,798,336 5.044,798,336 AR, risk structure. It shows the impact of a change in other
p g
PTHESRYAR Derivative financial assets 242,040,568 5,161,269,077 - 5,403,309,645 currency rates against RMB on the Bank's profit before
_ BRI HEFTUTRIE: tax, given other variables remain constant.
ENREZRA™ Reverse repurchase financial assets - 6,597,500,278 - 6,597,500,278 o 9
RIRGTRFIER Loans and advances to customers 3,576,821,925  33,806,960,855 456,975,748  37,840,758,528 (N CERHPREDIELHHTARTFIREBE YRS (g The analysis is based on below assumptions:
N TERAETHEESH 1% ERVET ot
HtERugR Other debt investments - 11,413,490,160 - 11,413,490,160 1) SCEREIHERED 1% EABYLE B
P e financi (1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and
RHbERA Other financial assets 40192114 1,929,543,586 2767483 1,972.503,183 (2) EMMCEEmZIEZ T ARTCERRNRRKER; losses caused by one per cent change of the closing
SRAFAT Total financial assets 7,022,438,580  73,616,126,478 995,512,711 81,634,077,778 rate (mid-rate) of the different foreign currencies
s Liabilities: (3) WLENPEHOFEEHE~NHRKREKRINIE, against RMB as at the balance sheet date;
BV R H A RAAGFEIFIR  Due to banks and other financial institutions 43973202 3,098,068,224 - 3142041426 HTFET ERRIE, CEREUSEATCR # R E IR (2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation
nanci T alRES LR E DS RRE inst RMB in th direction simul ly;
T ATRE 2 2 o agains in the same direction simultaneously;
FNES mStfteurEi?qtss from banks and other financial 1,399,649,656  8,873,446,492 16,600,214  10,289,696,362 = - 9 y
RHMESRAE Financial liabilities held for trading 12,116,236  2,815,250,116 - 2,827,366,352 (3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.
STt SR R i ) :
TR Derivative financial liabilities 259,419,800 5,196,737,245 5,456,157,045 Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
RUTE R Customer deposits 10,429,753,849  34,222,529,073 722,431,155  45374,714,077 exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank's earnings may
[abEEE= Bonds payable - 3,830,066,856 - 3,830,066,856 differ from above sensitivity analysis.
HittEFsh = Other financial liabilities 26,310,481 300,049,338 69,322,783 395,682,602
ERAGRET Total financial liabilities 12,171,223224  58,336,147,344 808,354,152  71,315,724,720
BT Net position (5,148,784,635)  15,279,979,134 187,158,559  10,318,353,058
TSR T AR XL i';'];’tt;ﬁ;‘:n‘ig"o“”ts of derivative financial 135,096,776,521 343,364,396,322  9,750,383576  488,211,556,419
SR Commitments 1574661131 9904685191 1641518123  13,120,864,445
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3.2 FEN L

ZEE

REKETECREARSZ BNSHE AR ZMCERMINE
RpeTRFENR BRSNS T AEMBERK T, ZSKEH
NHZNREURTRZNITR, SEMR LR RENE.
BAmihis. ERMNES.

FIEMEREETEREERTHHINLER, EHA
EPIRAL AT B MIT R 5 MK E T 17 XU,

FITERTHIHXLEEFRRA 97.5% EEXiE FUMER M
HEREBIRSL (Expected Shortfall) BIFSEEINE, ZAEINA
IR, CENE RN EREE TR ZEHIFERT L
BEMBREDEHIERST. MEPEIRL (ES) REIFIHRL
DHEBIE, INNBEHTEERATE—EGEXERITENE
EfK,.

FEEINIHP, FITRAHEEDE 99% BEXETHHEK
MANE (VaR) o REaME (VoR) STREREEMAK (ES) B9
BERDH—E BEIEFNIR LR ZMEN B S NN E
(VaR) MERFKWIEREERNREREHTIKRDSHH
ARG ST R, FRA RN S PRV RN K AR 75 S 88

BORERFNHRER R

B VoR M ES EHETZNMNEETR, BEXERENR
REE—ERFIFME, fla0:

s HRRZERAT, AIE 1 NRZ ANNEHANHTCEER
FHENRIREE, EEHHRKNATERMETEHER
T, 105 BRNERRIZ TR T LIRER;

* VaR M ES REBWHEENE, FARMRRZEXRFCH
REEIXSBIXPL 5

« PEMIERFHERRERNVEAIETENEE, T—EER
FRrERIRERR, Rl =fIsET,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading
purpose or to avoid risks of other items in the trading
account. The market risk in trading book depends on the
tools of the transaction, including interest rates, exchange
rates, stock prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads,
etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach
for the calculation of regulatory market risk capital and
uses the Internal Models Approach to measure and to
control trading market risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES)
within a 97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-day
holding period, using the historical simulation method,
as a control for market risk. This method assumes
observed historical market movements can be used to
imply possible future changes in market rates. ES is the
average of the worst losses in the distribution, assuming
that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR
within a 99 per cent confidence interval over a one-
day holding period. VaR uses the same loss distribution
as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether the
exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market
volatility. All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO
with recommended actions and resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure
market risk, there are certain limitations on the assumptions
of the model, such as:

* In most cases, the assumption that a position can be
hedged or sold within the observation period of one
trading day is reasonable, but in the case of severe
liquidity shortage in the market over a long period
of time, the assumption of the observation period of
one trading day may not be in line with the actual
situation;

* VaR and ES are calculated based on the day's closing
benchmark and do not reflect the risks that may be
faced by positions held on the trade day;

* Historical data is used as a basis for determining
the possible range of future results, and may not
be applicable to all possible situations, especially
exceptions.

AR AR ER ISR (ES) MEEMTR R, AITEBEINE
RfESNE, HHIRITEEY R LR E R T L IATRR.
XEMHX AT AT XL ERRM T RATEES, UNXH
BERIR IR IR

78172024 %12 B 31 B EFERRER R K (ES) WART 1,579
Frw (2023128 318: AK™ 2,021 A7) o

$B(TIK

BEAGERIATSBRAN RN EEERNER L. B h
BRRREEBHI RN GRER O TENIRITHCE TE9F =X
BB

HEARERNEE B FRRESHUNEFTESD, B
EIRIRITH SR BMNRRIFFHOHRTASNEF 0 B8
K

KIEAPHT IR, SEEENHRNSZIESTEENER
THCEM R XL O, @ XY REURZEF A FAEN TR
BBV, ISRARBENFBRAREFNEBTER . 7
KYREZENENRR. DIHRRERENBRM. BT
FEERTEEC, KHARYMREEC MR LI NENFMER,

KITIRRAINEF BN R B =N EEEN 7 EER
BITRRREEME , UERRITNRR SRR AFED
RIEREIIRITE A RROFM, B, ZEDWHERTF
MWRIRTER TR BER £ SRR R EIFNE H R IRITTE RIE
RENBI T IZIF G TR B BRI XL,

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress
and scenario tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to
event risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of
plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2024 was RMB15.79
million (The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2023 was
RMB20.21million).

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The Balance
Sheet Risk Management (BSRM) Division supports the
ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in
net interest earnings under a broad range of possible
economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified
using analysis tools include repricing schedules and
sensitivity analysis. They provide indications of the
potential impact of interest rate changes on interest
income and economic value through the analysis of the
sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest
rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies with different
repricing periods, currencies and embedded options
mismatches in the longer tenor will experience greater
impact in the price-value of interest rate positions than
similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method
of net interest income and economic value of net assets
regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in
meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements
on the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed
to provide early warnings of potential extreme losses,
facilitating the proactive management of interest
rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.
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BTFER, CTEMBRRNMEZMHRZZNKE THIR @D
7N EIRAEZ SR T E IR M1

F 2023 %12 A 31 B, &TRITKELSHFRABNES kR
RIREREENHHEHAAREREEDTNT:

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank's assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of

The risks arising from the trading book, such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices

184

F 2024 £12 B 31H, AMTRITKERSHIFERNES KRR

FREFEENAHZPEREREEDTINT:

are managed and controlled under the market risk
framework.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank's assets/liabilities of
banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of
maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

2024 2023
31MAR 3MBE1E 1E58F 5 E T2 it 31MAR 3MNBE1E 1E58F 5&FE N ait
Within three Three months One to five Five years  Non-interest Total Within three  Three months One to five Five years Non-interest Total
months to one year years above bearing months to one year years above bearing
A= Assets: &= Assets:
0 o o , . L
A RfEERE  Cash ond deposits with the 4 qg 406,792 - - - 580,181,720  4,848,588,512 AERIFRPRR  Cash and deposits with the 735 31 403 ; ; - 538913089 5272223492
1TFRI Central Bank 1T Central Bank
, Due from banks and other Due from banks and other
ENE Wil - - - ENEN - - -

ERENL R financial inctitutions 1,021,227,590 39,859,602  1,061,087,192 EREL R financial institutions 557,708,982 103,857 557,812,839
RS Placements with banks and 5 635 958 895 841,448,521 53,109,029 - 13303480  6,540,789,926 RHES Plocements with banks and 5 331 786 569 496,836,308 ; - 19114057  3,847,736,934
- other financial institutions T g U U R - other financial institutions e N . e

<y = Reverse repurchase - = Reverse repurchase
3 ELES ~Evers - - - ELSFE ~EVers - - -
INEERRSRF L 4,743,761,970 1,384,985  4,745,146,955 ENBEEMAS ] qesets 6,591,988,451 5,511,827  6,597,500,278
RIRECRAIRER tﬁstgsmoe”rg advances to 20,633,643,473 15,213,591,168 910,952,597 24,770,755 697,133,857  37,480,091,850 BIEEERFRER ESStr;SmZTS advances to 22715,475,609  13,948,944,283 619,969,446 74446918 481,922,272  37,840,758,528
H AR HE Other debt investments 4,447,717,450  1,330,673,984  3,453,911,590  1,485,532,990 218,547,117  10,936,383,131 HAEAUEE Other debt investments 4,845,113,350 451,345,008  4,673,043,736 1,343,051,820 100,936,246  11,413,490,160
Hitt&phE = Other financial assets - - - - 111,498,180 111,498,180 Hittmar~ Other financial assets - - - - 61,056,246 61,056,246
EREFEIT Total financial assets 40,747,686,171 17,385,713,673  4,417,973,216  1,510,303,745 1,661,908,941  65,723,585,746 ERAFEIT Total financial assets 42,775,383,364  14,897,125,599  5293,013,182 1,417,498,738 1,207,557,594  65,590,578,477
fafs: Liabilities: fafk: Liabilities:
Bl EMER4Y],  Due to banks and other FE R EfMERH  Due to banks and other
el financial institutions 5,544,245529 147,130,978 - - 4,584,583  5,695,961,090 s T financial nstitutions 2,993,419,388 145,106,739 - - 3515299  3,142,041,426
N Plocement from banksand 4 43 366 780 157,388,488 - - 16,681,026  2,117,936,294 YN £ Placement from banks and 5 444 545 950 - - - 8,986,492  2,500,228,542
" other financial institutions TR T T T other financial institutions e R RS EES

TRME TR Customer deposits 35,447,997,849  5,540,834,424  1,908,769,757 - 440,599,826  43,338,201,856 RULTERR Customer deposits 38,838,167,899  4,506,418,876  1,439,041,991 - 591,085,311 45,374,714,077
= E inanci HE B
iﬂ:‘nlﬁlﬂ!’h}ﬁmﬂﬁ? Financial assets sold under 190,000,000 ) ) ) 7,649 190,007,649 MNAHRS Bonds payable 975,897,149 1,840,403,642 998,054,590 15,711,475 3,830,066,856
TA repurchose ogreements

Hith:Ri a5 Other financial liabilities - - - - 352,421,659 352,421,659
AT RS Bonds payable 597,908,946  1,988,453,023 - - 10,099,726  2,596,461,695

Z£miEEsR G£1)  Structured deposits (Note 1) 965,315,613 323,360,000 - - - 1,288,675,613
HithE Rk Other financial liabilities - - - - 1,016,417,974 1,016,417,974

E L= Total financial liabilities 46,264,042,099  6,815,289,257  2,437,096,581 - 971,720,236  56,488,148,173
ZMtErERR GE1)  Structured deposits (Note 1) 1,234,222,372 113,630,000 - - - 1,347,852,372

. S s (s Derivative financial assets ) } )
SRNEST Total financial liabilities 44,957,741,476  7,947,936,913  1,908,769,757 - 1488390784  56,302,838,930 TTEERAT (X2 (o0 2) 11,805,690,310  1,416,540,000 13,222,230,310
. s s Derivative financial assets P = N Derivative financial
I e . . . TSRS G oerva - - -
FTERRAE CE2) (Note 2) 4,609,286,736  2,731,526,470 7,340,813,206 TTESMABCED | iiios (Note 2) 11,814,600,823  1,398,251,800 13,212,852,623

o IZR iti

SRR (12) (DNecr’g%og)ve financial liabilities 4592,218,139  2,714,196,681 . . R 7,306,414,820 FIZERPQERO Net position (3,497,569,248) 8,100,124,542  2,855,916,601 1,417,498,738 235,837,358 9,111,807,991
FIER RO Net position (4,192,986,708)  9,455,106,549  2,509,203,459  1,510,303,745 173,518,157  9,455,145,202
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A1 RENEEFRAR S WCEMRITHE Z B EREIL T,

E 20 AMTRITKEEENITESRE™ / AFIREXAEN
BREEN BRI AREREEHITOM,

FATHF R TRRBEENH, WEEMZETARREIE
HEEITEERAT KT EERMAGHEENE .

UTRAERMEZEFTHNERT, MERITERENGETRYY
AR AR,

Note 1: The structured deposits represent the position
between the trading book and the banking book.

Note 2: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of
banking book are analysed based on the earlier of re-
pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and
liabilities based on maturity date for fixed rate items or
re-pricing date for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest
rate movement on the Bank's net profit is as follows:

4. RAME

41 A EITERNGERANBANE

NAMNE, BETHSESEEHEBRENEFRSST, HE
—IE PR B E R B — A SR IBNE. X3
EERZ ™1 (FRDLARNES RSP FENFHET, mhhE
RIAEQAANEZREIER. AW, XIMFERETZED
EMAFRAGHET M. Bit, WFEBAEHNATERZE
BMIR, LITPRZ IER RIS EEREAANEBR,
ERLEGEMTZNESRBRRRASRELRT, HElE
Rig, UMPRFRAZITIERF M.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

(4.1) Fair value measurement valuation technique and
inputs

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Subject to the existence of an active
market, such as an authorised securities exchange, the
market value is the best reflection of the fair value of
financial instruments. As there is no available market
value for some of the financial assets and liabilities held

FrRBZ AR BRI T: and issued by the Bank, the discounted cash flow method

2024 2023 or other valuation methods described below are adopted

() UAANETEEET ST N\ YHIRENSRESE / &/t to determine the fair value of these assets and liabilities.

T 7 5 HO R TR IR g (BETESREST /SRR LESERsRY However, the value determined by such methods would

Impact on net profit Impact on net profit

T ERERANE, WEAHSRZTN, WERER

depend on the amount of future cash flows, time period

TRTE Change in interest rate EFNEEAANEISRIZWHTHRNAELRANE. assumption and discount rates used.

. N AAMMEFTIEFNE 2 KEEE;
FIEHEIN 100 MES +100 basis points (923,988) (171,198) The following methods and assumptions are used in
R 100 PR - 100 basis points 923,988 171,198 (i) F12 PENEE HthERAT SRn GHTHRRE, estimating fair values:

USRS ETAFNAGEERSHMNERLENR, B
KD NEE—FAFREN, RRA—FAFITESNR
BRVEMENN A TIREMHEN SWMNEMm, EFUTR

%

() FFEE=ZTAAR=TBERE—FERERENHEHNE
PR FISRISTER X BREREERE N HEIH;

(2) e Reh MR T UM FIT5;
(3) BEFEMARASHILTEMEN;

(4) WRERREHOFEERITESR TRUIMIE A HRE
KRR,

BTFETLERRIE, FIRERSBRITHEEBNHIRISEFR
TR RES UM D ITBVE SRR,

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis
that assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk
structure. It reflects the impact of interest rate movement
on the Bank's net interest income over a one-year
period. The key assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less
than three months or between three months and
one year are assumed to be re-priced in the middle
of the respective time bucket.

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate
change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other
changes;

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial
instruments are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

ENNKEMNMES AARNEERS;

(i) RESERRYEATRMERZBHFREH, HAQ
AMEUSRBHH XSG EZLEE. SRAGPEEREZ
ZUERESAANENTTER, BAEENMRZEM
RBEREARRBR, MKEERQANETNR;

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at
fair value by reference to the quoted market prices
when available. If quoted market prices are not
available, the fair value is estimated using discounted
cash flows or quoted price from the counter parties.
The carrying amounts of these items reflect the fair
value as at the balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal
to their carrying amounts in view of their short
maturity;

(iiiy The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market
rate at the time the loans are extended shall
be determined using prevailing market rates of
similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in
determining the fair values as the impact of credit
risk is recognised separately as impairment provision
which shall be deducted from the carrying amounts
and fair value.
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(iv) ERERDEAEGTERBE TSR, ERFERKR
TiEEBEHRZ EEKARIREE ARENNAET AR
AMNE. BEEMRZERNRAANEURERETIE
E5, FIMRNSEERFROOR KRR LA IITER
=,

ITHRE R AN ER AT LA LU A
() WEIN: HNEERRILIHARZEROTIRN;
(i HETN: HNEERGHERAHTHE,

HERBEARALAANEN —TBEAR, EXRREZUE
5, WRSMEHTEBURBRAANERER . FITER
HEEREGEERIFRANAR, FINEENEGLEREN
BRAEGERE, UBRIHNNEEEN.

FITRUY T ABEFNGEIRBRIANMENSEN. MRXA
BRAENGE, BREPHRIRNRABPIEREIIRTI LT ZNA
BIEEIE L5, RERNIKE MASH. RIRMGEER
BEEMEIBRENEL, AUNAERFEREEZND
TEEES,

FTRFIEHITARNMERENERTRYDN=PBX:
BE—RR. RATHNE
XMEERARZBERZE A GRRERTIRNSHEES

o WIFRNLRARNER” REEH LERSXZAAM LEH
KRGS AATHINENEERE.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate
or floating rate depending on the product type. The
fair value of demand deposits and saving deposits
without specific maturity date is determined based
on the amount payable on demand. The fair value
of fixed deposits is estimated using discounted cash
flows method with the prevailing deposit rate for the
remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as the discount
rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can
be categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used
to determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair
value process that requires the exercise of judgment
to ensure correct fair value representation. In making
appropriate valuation adjustments, the Bank follows
the methodologies that consider factors such as bid
offer spread valuation adjustment and model valuation
adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value
is determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter
inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments are
subject to verification and review processes. Other
valuation control includes review and analysis of daily
profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments
according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Financial instruments included in this category are
precious metals whose market prices are published
by Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai Futures
Exchange on daily basis.

BERR. HERASHIUEIHINESINHERAR

XiEEAXDEIITEREHE, MBNNTESHEET
M7 LEENE. IMRAREFEASRITAI . BRENE
BEN—Ehmip25&8 ZRERMEIIRA. BAAXTNER
NERMTREBNGFNEFRRE, BRI, REEIFE,
SNOTAA / =0, SRR /i / B, P PR ms.
FIEREMR, KHEMR. Aol /3N REHAN. SNCEN
KL fo

FZBR. HTESHTRERNEFIRABOMGERA

XEERARZASETDRIREM ERNEERTNES
. BRIATTERE=ZRERETRANEGENEE 2o

U EBRIGRRTTEDAEITEFRAGRZ AN ERE—HZ
HEEN, A, AFEMNANZERRRZGERRIR,
BERIMPMREZ AN ERGTE2EEA,.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly investments in bonds and
negotiable certificates of deposit, loans, precious mental
borrowing and lending, foreign exchange forward/
swaps, precious metal forward/swaps/options, certain
pledge-style repo, interest rate swaps, currency swaps,
commodity swaps/options, equity options, foreign
exchange options and structured products.

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-
observable inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed
on reasonable assumptions made on market conditions.
The Bank has no financial instruments in this category.

All the assumptions and techniques mentioned above
provide a consistent basis for the fair value measurement
of the Bank's assets and liabilities. However, they may
differ with other institutions' practice. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may
not be entirely comparable.
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2023
4.2 URAMEITENEFTRAG 4.2) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value -
7 g (4.2 ARNEBERRIBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
SPAFNERBREAIFHEURAN AT BIIEFHA The hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair G EEAE EERANE a3t
FARSHARANEITENERTIRINT: value on a continuing and discontinued basis at each a ?ﬁfg . ?fa“.u)\fﬁ Sionif LN |
. . uote ignificant ignificant non- Tota
balance sheet dqte thoF wgre measured at fair value in market price  observable inputs  observable inputs
the current reporting period is set out below: (B—BR) (BZBR) (BZBR)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
2024 FEUARNEITEEF Recurring fair value assets
ARNEITEERNRNE e Precious metals 2,659,155,486 - - 2,659,155,486
Inputs in fair value measurement XSS RAE Financial assets held for trading - 4,976,326,490 - 4,976,326,490
SEEKTH BEEAME BEERAME &it A .
BN BN{E HNE = TEEmA Derivative financial assets 2,240,909,516 3,162,399,640 489  5,403,309,645
Quot.ed Signi'ficant Significun_t non- Total URANMEITEEETHITAE  Loans and advances to
market p|:|'se observable_lnp}.l'j:s observable_lnp}l:s fhZr & W ER Y & BT TR AN 2R customers at fair value through - 498,016,028 - 498,016,028
(B—BR) (BZBR) (B=ZEBR) other comprehensive income
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HM G Other debt investments - 11,312,553,914 - 11,312,553,914
= é%sl‘\ AY M= \;ﬁ\ ; H N
BEURANEITENEF Recurring fair value assets oy Other assets i 1,715.286,067 . 1715.286,067
= .
BER Precious metals 5,682,650,768 5,682,650,768 SREE AT Total financial assets 4,900,065002  21,664,582,139 489 26,564,647,630
RS ERMAF Financial assets held for trading - 4,032,601,030 - 4,032,601,030
P - ) BEUARMEITEN AR Recurring fair value liabilities
SRR Derivative financial assets 4,811,748,085 4,296,541,555 - 9,108,289,640 PSR 9
_ FRANEL Placements from banks and other
UAANETEEETEITAE  Loans and advances to financial institutions - 7,783,532,139 - 7,783,532,139
RS UL E A& BT AR R R customers at fair value through - 2,260,857,928 - 2,260,857,928
U 2 DT ) R
other comprehensive income R TR G tFrlggir;%ol liabilities held for ) 2.827,366,352 . 287,366,352
Hth A= Other debt investments - 10,845,360,254 - 10,845,360,254
TEERAGR Derivative financial liabilities 2,390,247,884 3,065,866,317 42,844  5456,157,045
Hh#r~ Other assets - 1,678,488,593 - 1,678,488,593
. N . . ERAGRET Total fi ial liabiliti 2,390,247,884 13,676,764,80 42,844 16,067, X
SEAF AT Total financial assets 10,494,308,853  23,113,849,360 . 33,608,248,213 BAEEH ot Tinancial iabrities 8 844 16,067,055.536

BEUAANEITENR G

Recurring fair value liabilities

Placements from banks and other

UAsNETE BTt N S ER G TR LY ESITR Loans and advances at fair value through profit or loss

PN finoncial institutions - 11,050,997,656 - 11,050,997,656 HNMIEHIA R AN E, are stated at fair value by reference to the price stated in
ST the transfer agreement.
P Calod Egg{;%“' liabilities held for - 1,565,148,966 - 1,565,148,966
FE T RN SMEERE = A : .
Ehife =t Ak o Derivative financial liabilities 5,801,549,533 4,502,471,216 - 10,304,020,749 43 REBE=RRAANEHREBETES (4.3) Reconciliation of Level 3 financial instruments
ERAGEEIT Total financial liabilities 5,801,549,533 17,118,617,838 - 22,920,167,371 2024
FTEERAR FTEERAGR ait
Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total
FRT Opening balance 489 (42,844) (42,355)
HHAFSEIRKBE Movement through profit or loss during
IR the year (489) 42,844 42,355
FRREN Closing balance - - -
2023
TSR FTEERAGR ait
Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total
FYRE Opening balance 45,196 (83,241) (38,045)
LHAFSEIR&EE Movement through profit or loss during (44.707) 40.397 (4.310)
AR E the year ; , :
FRRT Closing balance 489 (42,844) (42,355)

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE
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4.4 FEARMETERNR R

(4.4) Hierarchy transformation of continuous fair value
measurement

AFEARERE, RTRREURANEITENSE —FRHE
“ERREmMEFMAGZENER. WHRoEMIAGESZE
B UENEEERERMNSHERNTNER LN TNER
NAANETEZMETFEAFRE, FMITTEFAHERE
RXESMTAMUAANETENE=ZBREHELE_ERX
ERFESMAF.

EERINA, FEFAGRERE, ATURAAMETENTRE
FHAGREE_BRANE=ZRBRZBMNEREMAEKR, 17
HHMbERACNERMAGHAANESHNNKENEH T
BRER

4.5 RURANEHENERESNER AR

FIRURANETEN TR TR T ECFEEFRPRTITRIA.
FRENLRT. FHES. ENRESREAS. UBREEZE
TTENERERMBRIUARE MU PERE AT ENERA.

PRUUERBAE T B AR RMBRIS, KEDEREY
F—E2REH, EKENERIQANE,

RGN AR AR F) SRR ER K EETIIK
(MPERE. 7) o BHBFABERMBROOFREETRHZRNF
KRR URRE SR EHIFRBE &S R RE PRI S,
EE ZREFRMBERH QAN ESKE N B,

FITUBERA AT B R 01 i B B R L K H At & A AL
FHRIL IFAFE. REER. RHEMERES~. BR1T
RS AR EMURERA AT ENERMA . FHRFARE
H, &TERAGHKENERIQANE.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

As at the balance sheet date, the Bank had no transfers
between level 1 and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for
financial assets and liabilities which were recorded at fair
value. Certain financial instruments were transferred from
level 3 to level 2 due to changes in valuation techniques,
unobservable inputs that have impact on the valuation
results become observable or the impact of unobservable
inputs on fair value measurement is assessed to be
insignificant.

The transferring balance of financial instruments between
level 2 and level 3 was immaterial and the difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount of other
financial assets and financial liabilities was not material as
at the balance sheet date.

(4.5) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured
at fair value

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at
fair value mainly include deposits with the central bank,
due from banks, placements with banks, reverse repurchase
financial assets and loans and advances at amortised cost.

Except for loans and advances measured at amortised cost,
most financial assets are due within one year, therefore
their carrying amounts are close to their fair values.

Loans and advances to customers are presented at
amortised cost plus accrued interest, and deducted by
impairment losses (Notes V.7). Since the interest rates for
loans and advances are adjusted timely upon loan prime
rate, and the net values of impaired loans reflect the
recoverable amount by deducting the impairment losses,
the carrying amounts of loans and advances are close to
their fair values.

The Bank's financial liabilities that are measured at
amortised cost mainly include due to banks and other
financial institutions, placements from banks and other
financial institutions, customer deposits, financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements, debt securities issued
and other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
As at the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of the
Bank's financial liabilities are close to their fair values.

+. XBAXARRXS

1. REXFTRYIAE T A

TS BRI TRIRERTS |

M) FTNERE;

(2) FTHFRE;

() 5FRTRE—SAEEHEME;

(4) XNAITEREHRIERIRRET;

(5) WARITHEMEBRFMBIIRET;

6) FTHEERI;

(7) AITHUEXE R,

(8) ATFAREERMEAMM S BN (BEFARMFARE)
JEEEWBER,;

(9) WARITERHEEIEFRINEINESER I REE R

(10) WARITHEMEBRZ AP EWNEER;

(1) FTHEBRABEPANSHIXREYINRERR ;

(12) FTHXBEEARHB AR KBEREAR, UKSEX
RERYINREM S ;

(13) AT EBRHBENA. XBEEARARSHXRATTIN
KERRIEH. HREEHSEMEAZMREME L (F
R—HEARMIERXES) ;

(14) FATRIVEWFEEE;

(15) XBEEARRSHIRMTS.

2. KTRAF

NZ=2k350
Nature of business

KERITERAE RIT R ERIARSS
United Overseas Bank Limited  Banking and Financial Service

RABNRZIEHHE ARERITAERAE.

AR AR

Registered Address

X. Related Party Transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

The following parties are the related parties of the Bank:

(1) Parent of the Bank;

(2) Subsidiaries of the Bank;

(3) Other entities controlled by the parent of the Bank;

(4) Investors that have joint control over the Bank;

(5) Investors that have significant influence over the
Bank;

(6) Joint ventures of the Bank;

(7) Associates of the Bank;

(8) Joint ventures or associates of other members
(including a parent and subsidiary) of a group of
which the Bank is a member;

(9) Joint ventures or associates of an entity that has joint
control over the Bank;

(10) Joint ventures of an entity that has significant
influence over the Bank;

(17) Principal individual investors of the Bank and close
family members of such individuals;

(12) Key management personnel of the Bank or of the
parent and close family members of such individuals;

(13) Other entities controlled or jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the Bank's principal
individual investors, key management personnel or
close family members of such individuals (not related
party if significantly influenced by the same third party);

(14) Enterprise pension funds established by the Bank;

(15) Providers of key management personnel services.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

AL

Share Capital Shareholding

o Hmh 49.61127T
Singapore SGD4,961 Million

100%

The ultimate controlling party of the Bank is United
Overseas Bank Limited.
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3. FAFASFTEXRERZHEMKEKTS

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
with during the year are as follows

FRZBAEHEHIN AT
Entity controlled by the parent

NZ=d54
Nature of business

AR
Registered Address

AR
Registered Capital

EERRA
Legal
Representative

KERTT (SRAL ) BRAF fRIT R ERIARSS SR HFER SRATMERF 793 27T E-¥-
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.  Banking and financial service Kuala Lumpur RMO0.793 Billion Ng Wei Wei
Malaysia
1E4R1T 3 INE
A e oy puplic | EIIRERIES #E 84 % 248.6 127 Maloney Richard
7" Banking and financial service Bangkok Thailand Baht24.86 Billion David JR

Company Limited

KERT (ENERAL) BIRAH RITRERMARS ENERAEI #iNiA ENERAEILALL 30,568.98 Hendra

PT Bank UOB Indonesia Banking and financial service Jakarta Indonesia 1zt Gunawan

IDR3,056.898 Billion

LRERBELERAT DaEREIZHENEE. RN HE LE AEM 1799 1Z7¢

UOB Property China Co., Ltd. B2 Shanghai China RMB1.799 Billion
Operating, leasing and LAIJING WEY
management for offices and
commercial facilities

MEGBIEAER (L£5) BIRAF KRAEE, BERATEE, AL HE LS %75 1,555 A7t HIES

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)

Consulting and investment

Shanghai China

USD15.55 Million

Seah Kian Wee

Co., Ltd management

KRERFEERBRAF REEE NI #rmh 6,300 BT KA

UOB Asset Management Ltd. Investment management Singapore SGD63 Million Thio Boon Kiat
KIERTT (HE) BRAF RIT R EREARSS g #AERA W& 8 A1zt RKE

United Overseas Bank (Vietnam) Banking and financial services ~ Ho Chi Minh VNDS8 Trillion Victor Vinh Tri
Limited Vietnam Ngo

194  KERTT (PE)BRQAE 2024FERE

RHAREARMNAE

Entity under the significant influence of the parent

WEERWEREZE (bR ) BRAE
InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

BEFRAARERAR

InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

LEREMNEESEEFRAR
Shanghai InnoVen Equity Investment
Management Private Limited

Rlg (2 UBEERAE
InnoVen (Jiashan) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

g (F8) tlBESUEL (BREW
InnoVen (Jiashan) Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)

Rig (ZR) L EBEERAR
InnoVen (Ziyang) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

AMBRIERAUEEEUEL (BIREN)
Suzhou InnoVen Equity Investment Part-
nership (Limited Partnership)

ANTUEX AL EIESESEIRGIRAT
SIP UOB-KAY HIAN Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

NZ=k350 JEARM
Nature of business

A ERL RS RE bR
Enterprise management and Beijing China
consultancy services

MAARUVSRRESTEWSHE FEKE
KB RIB 55

Financial leasing and related
factoring business

Tianjin China

WERNERESEE, QR +E L&
HESEERS Shanghai China
Private equity fund management

and venture capital fund

management services

HIER, BIEERE. 2L FE L
FEMRS. MEEE. 58518 Zhejiang China
RS, mHRAEE

Enterprise management;

Enterprise management

consulting; Social and economic

consulting services; Financial

consulting; Information

consulting services; Market

research

HIER, RIEEZE. 8L FE L
FEMRS. M5E8. 52518 Zhejiang China
RS, mHREE

Enterprise management;

Enterprise management

consulting; Social and economic

consulting services; Financial

consulting; Information

consulting services; Market

research

HIER, RIEESE. L SE [
FEMRS. MSEE. EE%18  Sichuan China
RS, miHREE

Enterprise management;

Enterprise management

consulting; Social and economic

consulting services; Financial

consulting; Information

consulting services; Market

research

—RImE: UWAEESNBERAUE  HE M

#n. BRAEE. ArEE%EEN Suzhou China
Private equity fund manage-

ment.investment management.

capital management etc

MERIGRESEE. MR FE HIMN
HEEIERS Suzhou China
Private equity fund manage-

ment and venture capital fund

management services

Registered Address

AR
Registered Capital

%150 A7t
USD1.5 Million

%75 1,000 A7t

UsD10 Million

%755 200 AT
USD2 Million

AE™ 1,000 Bt
RMB10 Million

AEK™ 1,000 Bt
RMB10 Million

AEK™ 1,000 Bt
RMB10 Million

AE™ 3.021Z7
RMB302 Million

AEK™ 1,000 Bt
RMB10 Million

HEERRA
Legal
Representative

L
Cao Ying Xue

e

IE]

Cao Ying Xue

HEME
Cao Ying Xue

YT

Cao Ying Xue

Not applicate

YT

Cao Ying Xue

Y

Cao Ying Xue

XI5
Liu Wei
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FITHXRBEEAR

XREBEAR, BEATHESR. BENSREEAR,

RETRBEEAREATMNAG

Entity under the significant influence of the Bank's key management

v (=) BERRAE

Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited
REENFEFEHM=FRERAT

Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
RigE (L8) BRRBEERQGE

Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd

B EFEABRAR
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd.

EHNELBRAF

Haw Par Corporation Limited

FEEM (#) KEERAGE
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.,
Ltd.

e ELBRAR

Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd.
fEER (K2) KBRERAR
UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

LEREBREIERAR

Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd.
ZAFE (BB BEEEEERAR
Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.
[EERITRIDBIRAT
Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd.

WEE (B8 BUIERAR
Qinruijia (Shanghai) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

Key management personnel

NZE=1kd5q
Nature of business

ZEERAEE
Hotel management

B &R

Real estate development

BHEER. CIVERKRAEEESN
Business information consulting; Corporate
management consulting, Investment
management consulting

HREFT, BmEEO; AREBMEER
5, RIAREEF; BESERS; F—
KETHRIMHEE

Drug production; Drug import and export;
Pharmaceutical Internet information
service. General projects: production of
traditional Chinese medicine extracts;
Health consultation services; Category |
medical device sales

(o) #iE. HEMRZETRES S

(b) RHSBEFEXNYEMARS ;

(o) BHRIER

(a) manufacturing, marketing and trading
healthcare products;

(b) providing leisure-related goods and
services;

(c) investing in properties and securities

BHIFEFA. 28, AEMERE
Real estate development, operating,
leasing and management

B AREE
Real estate development and operation

WMEBAMEES. BFH. AREBEE. Bl
RHEREEE. R B

Manufacturing of new construction
materials, sale, lease and management
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities

BHFEFEREE

Real estate development and operation
BEEEE, 8AEH. BLEREN

Hotel management, investment consulting
and corporate management consulting

BALRIT - RINERAMETR, NBEH, B
w’lEE

Commercial Banks - Customer deposits,
Loans and advances to customers,
settlement and bill business, etc

BHFEFREE

Real estate development and operation

ARt

Registered Address

HEE

Xiamen China
E X#
Tianjin China

FE bE
Shanghai China

PE =

Xiamen China

Hrhns

Singapore

FRE BLER
Chengdu China

FE £
Shanghai China

PE XE

Tianjin China

FE £
Shanghai China

FE £
Shanghai China

FRE LR
Shandong China

FE £
Shanghai China

AR A
Registered Capital

%7t 3,700 At
USD37 Million

ARM 113127t
RMB1.13 Billion

%71 650 A7t
USD4.5 Million

%7t 820 A7t
UsD8.2 Million

#h 2.66228 127t
SGD266.228 Million

%7t 2400 AT
USD24 Million

AR 23127t
RMB2.3 Billion

AR 2406 127t
RMB240.6 Million

ARM 9191 127¢
RMB919.1 Million
EmT5AT
USD50 Thousand

AR 1112.096 127t
RMBT111.2096 Billion

ARM 20127
RMB2 Billion

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor
and senior management.

EERRA
Legal

Representative

RIRE

Neo Soon Hup

RIRE

Neo Soon Hup

B
Wee Ee Chao

NG WAH TONG

B

Wee Ee Lim
(president &

CEO)

Chua Yu Lee

Lim Beng Teong

REN

Eu Zai Jie,
Jonathan

Lim Beng Teong

RIRE

Neo Soon Hup

EMA
Xin Shu Ren

Lim Beng Teong

BRTRBEEAREAZMHA

Entity under the significant influence of the Bank's key management

FEFIRE =
SIingapore Chamber of Commerce and
Industry in China

UIC Asian Computer Services Pte Ltd.

NZ=1c354 - oo
Nature of business FEffH AR

EERRA
Registered Address  Registered Capital Legal

Representative

fRHPIHBEZAR, NRREMHRS

To promote economic and trade
exchanges between China and Singapore,
provide services to members

FE bR Not applicable _
Beijing China EFFT
Ong Tze Guan

ITENBEAMENEE R L HE N ¥ 200 AT
Wholesale sales of computer hardware Singapore SGD2 Million

and auxiliary equipment Not applicable
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4 BITEXREAZEERS

KTEXREBZEIETERZRE

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

Main transactions balance between the Bank and related

parties

2024 2023
RGBT Loans and advances to customers 118,436 308,290,065
Due from and placements
TR IR IR with banks and other financial 683,042,266 764,962,103
institutions
TEERAF Derivative financial assets 212,644,232 370,996,781
=R G E A Other debt investments 299,764,200 89,864,190
fERANE Right-of-use assets 36,823,712 73,668,170
EIN T I o Due to and placements from banks 11,980,215,460 9,510,716,500
N and other financial institutions e o
Hithzz /= Other assets 95,673,942 16,832,013
TRU TR Customer deposits 4,219,955,257 4,046,474,292
TEERA R Derivative financial liabilities 293,221,446 372,620,357
sk b Lease liabilities 34,682,966 71,514,463
HAthth 2 Other liabilities 943,024,780 261,899,229

TITEXRBEAZEEERZ M Main transactions amount between the Bank and related
parties

2024 2023
FEWN Interest income 54,405,727 75,022,111
FEXH Interest expense 127,755,347 132,532,119
FHRERASEAN Fee and commission income 11,493,503 16,696,248
FEBRAEZH Fee and commission expense 3,435,468 7,196,607
AApMES S | (85 \%}Ee/(loss) from changes in fair 748,176,897 (254,976,875)
Lo (RR) [ Uras Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (204,303,375) 52,618,953
BRI Investment income 113,071,077 452,559,993
UEREmE Sxe;:rzcs’('eg”d administrative 164,756,468 148,834,364
=CiNIZ=1 9N Other operating income 3,108,664 -

KERIT (PE) BRQAE 2024 FEIRE

EITESXBEAEREAREFLRMHERZ 5N 8,710,073 7T

(2023 £ 3,3793757T) ©

The amount of software development transactions between
the Bank and related parties during the reporting period

was RMB8,710,073 (2023: RMB3,379,375).
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IMIEXREH ZETEFARRERIMTEERTRENR XED

Main derivatives notional amount between the Bank and
related parties

2024 2023

INOREAEEY FX forward
INCIEEREH FX swaps

SNCHAN G FX options

FIZEERE L Interest rate swaps
AmEREY Commodity swaps
AmiINEL Commodity options
RENSEBIINEGL Equity options
REEIEHEY Precious metal swaps
EREEREH Credit swaps

1,971,085,426 1,175,098,512

4,509,386,444 10,274,024,507
1,245,698,207 1,869,150,059
11,280,037,280 9,970,231,798
1,894,349,772 1,245,475,092
- 9,561,645

292,015,699 413,171,325
6,350,429,632 4,574,906,071

28,777,322 28,354,173

TSRS ZBIF AP RRARINEERE

Main off-balance commitments between the Bank and

related parties

IMISRBEEARNRS
FIZMLXREEARFEENNT:

Main transactions between the Bank and key management
personnels

Key management personnel's salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2024 2023
fREK Letter of guarantee 182,249,771 13,442,345
EETAGE Credit commitments 480,903 242,710

FT5 ERXEKAHITHR B RIBESHEWRZFFHT, U
—RRZNEAENEM, FHRERVSEFHT,

200 AHRTT(PE)BRAE 2024FERE

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned
related parties are conducted in accordance with normal
commercial transaction conditions, based on general
transaction prices, and in accordance with normal business
procedures.

2024 2023
= RS Employee salaries and other short-
BB & R EMEERET term incentives 101,709,656 111,616,737
FITEZITRINRZ S Transactions between the Bank and the annuity

FIEAFRUNEINFEREEMRIEBHRI SN, FERR
EHMKERRZZ.

+—. BEAGRKRERSEN
KTF 2025 F 2 B 24 BRHEXTF (EXARERITHEDS AL
FIRE) NEEEN, ETHERELSFETE, £7E5E
E-RITERADEZBHIN, BEHEZILERTHDIALS, EE
HMEPAZFAHENKF. #R. SRNEXMEEE> R, M
AR TF 2025 £E=FEEM.

B EEWYF 1T 2024 £12 B 31 BRI SIROA. 2024 £E
HNEERRMNERETEANTEM. MTIEFER FZETIZA
TR SRE. SRR FIEZE R BT AEF IR,

+=. bR
ETFLRBENSTER G, USAREEZIIRER,

+=. USikERZAtE
WERELESTEERTF 2025 % 3 B 19 BRI,

No transactions other than normal contribution to the
annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity
established by the Bank.

XI. Post Balance Sheet Events

On 24 February 2025, the Bank issued a notice on retail
banking business. As part of the strategic transformation,
the Bank has entered into an agreement with Fubon Bank
(China) Co., Ltd to transfer the retail banking portfolio,
including customer accounts, deposits, loans, and relevant
wealth management products held by individual customers
to Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd. The transfer is expected to
be completed in the third quarter of 2025.

The above matters have no significant impact on the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2024, the
operating results and cash flows for the year 2024. The
Bank will continue to monitor its potential impact on the
business operations, financial condition, and operating
results.

Xll. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to
conform to the current year's presentation.

Xlll. Approval of the Financial
Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 19 March 2025.
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